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Message from the chairman of the supervisory board

Dear investors and partners,

The year 2009 was one of the most complicated one in the entire 18 years of history of Arco Vara AS, which is also
reflected in the Group’s annual report. In spite of everything we managed to overcome the difficulties, and this is the most
important thing.

Looking back at the last year, and in spite of the recession, we can recall some favourable instances as well. The collapse
of the myths created by the property boom has brought market participants back to the reality, has caused them to make
more effort, and to search for new and efficient solutions. Property prices have indeed dropped, but at the same time the
market has cleaned itself, and is becoming increasingly a business place for serious operators. This benefits both those
who develop the living environment, as well as those who will be subsequently enjoying these fruits.

The key issue is to use difficult times for learning, analysing and drawing conclusions. Arco Vara AS has done all this, and
— compared with the same time last year — has become considerably stronger, wiser and more united. We have refinanced
several major loans, disposed of holdings in companies, which were not completely under our control, have developed a
future strategy, reorganised the management of the Group to match the current times, and have found new strong partners
for competitive development projects.

In spite of complicated times the Group has not abandoned charity. The Group supports the football club “Némme kalju”,
the Russian Theatre, and the Estonian Academy of Arts, paying monthly scholarship to the best postgraduate majoring in
architecture.

Arco Vara AS is optimistic about the future and is prepared for new challenges. Recently we executed a co-operation
contract with AS Merko Ehitus on developing the next stage of the Kodukolde residential area in Tallinn, we intend to start
building of the Tivoli seaside residential complex in Kadriorg, and will complete in the nearest future the largest
development project in the history of Arco Vara situated in Sofia, Bulgaria. We have confidence in ourselves, our partners
and investors and we are doing everything in our power to ensure that the current financial year is considerably more
successful for the Group than the previous one.

Richard Tomingas
Arco Vara AS
Chairman of the supervisory board
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Management Report
GENERAL INFORMATION

Arco Vara AS and other companies of its Group (hereinafter Group) are engaged in various aspects of the real estate
development that can be divided into three business lines: Service, Development and Construction division.

The performance of all divisions of the Group is subject to seasonal fluctuations. The transaction volumes of the Service
Division are usually higher in autumn and spring than in summer and winter, while the turnover of the Construction Division
and the investment volumes of the Development Division subside in the winter.

The principal activity of the Service Division is real estate brokerage, valuation, management, consulting and short-term
investment in residential real estate.

The principal activity of the Development Division is developing integrated residential environments and commercial real
estate. Fully developed housing solutions are sold to end-consumers. Commercial properties are developed until they start
generating cash flow after which they are sold to a real estate fund or another developer. The Group holds some
completed commercial properties that are yielding income from rent, but have not been sold yet as they have not been
developed to their final potential.

The principal activity of the Construction division is offering general and subcontracting service and carrying out
environmental engineering works.

At the end of 2009, Arco Vara AS Group comprised 26 subsidiaries (2008: 29), 8 joint ventures (2008: 17) and one
associate (2008: 1).

Group’s operations doesn’t result major negative environmental or social effect.

Domestic markets of the Group are Estonia, Latvia and Bulgaria.

Mission, objective and common values

The mission of Arco Vara is to be a valued provider of comprehensive real estate solutions.
The objective of Arco Vara is to become a symbol of real estate.

Core values of Arco Vara:

Partnership — our client is our partner
Reliability — we are reliable, open and honest
Professionalism — we deliver quality

Respect — we respect our client’s personality
Responsibility — we keep our promises
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Management and Supervisory Board Members of Arco Vara AS

Manager Lembit Tampere

Lembit Tampere graduated the Concordia International University in international business administration in 1997, and has
studied further at the Lakeland College Wisconsins, USA.

Lembit Tampere worked from 1997-2004 at the Union Bank of Estonia as Project Manager in the Corporate Finance
Division. Starting from 2003, he was a Member of the Board in ECE Capital OU, and the Director of Corporative Banking at
SBM Pank AS. Starting from 2008, Lembit Tampere is the Chairman of the Board of Arco Vara.

Chairman of the Supervisory Board Richard Tomingas

Richard Tomingas studied civil engineering at Tallinn Polytechnical Institute from 1987-1990, and graduated the Estonian
Business School in business administration in 2005.

Richard Tomingas is one of the major shareholders of Arco Vara and has worked for the company since 1992. From 1992
to 1993 he was the Manager of the Arco Vara AS Kuressaare office. Since 1997, Richard Tomingas is a Member of the
Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS and since 2006, the Chair of the Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS.

Member of the Supervisory Board Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu

Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu studied sports sciences at the Tallinn Pedagogical Institute from 1978-1979, and graduated the
University of Tartu in law in 1995.

Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu is one of the major shareholders of Arco Vara. From 1996 to 2005, he was a Member of the
Supervisory Board of Arco Vara Kinnisvarablroo, from 1999-2004, a Member of the Board of Arco Vara AS, and since
2004, a Member of the Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS.

Member of the Supervisory Board Aare Tark

Aare Tark has graduated the University of Tartu in law in 1983.

Since 1991, Aare Tark is the senior partner in the law office Tark&Co. In 1994, 1995 and 1998-2001, he was the Chairman
of the Estonian Bar Association. Starting from 2003, Aare Tark is a Member of the Legal Ethics and Practice Committee of
the Estonian Bar Association. Since 2007, he is a Member of the Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS.

Member of the Supervisory Board Kalev Tanner

Kalev Tanner has graduated the Tallinn University of Technology in 1984, the University of Vermont in 1990, and the J. L.
Kellog Graduate School of Management in MBA in 1994.

From 1994-1998 Mr Tanner worked as investment banker in Goldman Sachs' branches in New York and London, from
1998-2001 as Director General in AS Cresco and as a Member of the Supervisory Board in AS Tallinna Bors. Since 2003,
he has served as a Senior Adviser of the private equity company BaltCap, and is the founder and CEO of OU Sparkling
Group, company operating in luxury hotels and restaurants, and OU IG Partners, a venture capital and advisory services
company. Since 2007, Mr Tanner is the Chairman of the Supervisory Council of insurance company IIZI
Kindlustusmaakler AS and since the same year, a Member of the Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS.

Member of the Supervisory Board Ragnar Meitern

Ragnar Meitern has graduated the State University of New Jersey in 1996.

Since 1996, Mr Meitern has been working in the team of the Citygroup investment banking. From 1998-2000, he served as
an investment manager at the investment fund Stanton Capital Corporation, New York Starting from 2006, he has been
working at the Citigroup investment bank in Dubai. Since 2008, he is a Member of the Supervisory Board of Arco Vara AS.

STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Group’s ownership interest

Company Domicile 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

%

Service segment

Subsidiaries

Arco Real Estate EOOD Bulgaria 100 100
Arco Real Estate AS Estonia 100 100
Arco Ukraina Valdused OU* Estonia sold 75
Arco Vara Kinnisvarabiiroo® Estonia 100 100
Adepto SIA* Latvia 80 80
Arco Real Estate SIA" Latvia 80 80
Arco Neruhomist TOV* Ukraine sold 75
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Group’s ownership interest

Company Domicile 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

%

Development segment

Subsidiaries

Arco Invest EOOD* Bulgaria 100 100
Arco Facility Management EOOD" Bulgaria 80 -
Arco Project EOOD! Bulgaria 100 100
Arco Bulgaaria OU* Estonia 100 100
Arco Investeeringute AS Estonia 100 100
Arco Vara Kinnistute AS* Estonia merged 100
Arco Vara Puukool OU* Estonia sold 100
Arco Vara Riia Valdused OU* Estonia 100 100
Kerberon OU* Estonia 100 100
Kolde AS" Estonia 100 100
Parnu Turg OU* Estonia 100 100
Waldrop Investments ou* Estonia 100 100
Wilson Kinnisvara OU* Estonia 100 100
AD Saulkrasti SIA* Latvia 63 63
Arco Development SIA* Latvia 99.9 80
Ulmana Gatves Nami SIA® Latvia 99.9 80
Arco Invest UAB® Lithuania 100 100
Arco Development UAB® Lithuania 100 100
Arco Capital SRL* Romania 100 100
Arco Investments TOV Ukraine 75 75

Jointly controlled entities

Arco HCE OU* Estonia 50 50
Arco Vara Arenduse OU* Estonia 50 50
Arco Vara Saare Kinnistud OU* Estonia 50 50
Arco Arikeskus OU* Estonia sold 50
Chalwell OU* Estonia merged 50
Kodukiila OU* Estonia 50 50
Noland Grupp ou* Estonia merged 50
Parnu Elumaja OU Estonia 50 50
Redman Invest OU* Estonia merged 50
Steadman OU* Estonia merged 50
Tallinna Oliimpiapurjespordikeskus AS* Estonia sold 50
Varamaad Kinnisvara OU* Estonia 33.4 33.4
Bigumuizas Nami SIA* Latvia 49.83 40
Sporting Riga SIA® Latvia 49.83 40
Associate )

Gilmor Grupp OU (in the process of

liquidation)1 Estonia closing 20
Jiiri Arendus OU* Estonia 20 20

Construction segment

Subsidiaries

Arco Ehitus OU Estonia 100 100
Arco Construction SIA® Latvia sold 55
Tempera Ehitus OU Estonia bankrupted 55

T Shareholding through subsidiaries.
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CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE

On January 16" 2009, Arco Investeeringute AS, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS (shareholding of Arco Vara AS 100%)
established the company Arco Facility Management EOOD, a subsidiary in Bulgaria that will provide complex property
management services on the Bulgarian market.

Floriston OU, a 50 % subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, has merged with its 100 % subsidiaries Chalwell OU, Noland Grupp OU,
Redman Invest OU and Steadman OU.

On 26.02.2009 OU Tempera Ehitus OU was declared bankrupt by a decision of the Harju County Court. Tempera Ehitus
OU is not consolidated.

On 15.04.2009, Arco Investeeringute AS, a 100 % subsidiary of Arco Vara AS merged its 100 % subsidiary Arco Vara
Kinnistute AS. As a result of merger, Arco Vara Kinnistute AS dissolved and Arco Investeeringute AS became its legal
successor.

On 22.05.2009, Arco Investeeringute AS, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, increased its share capital in the joint company
BiSumuiza Nami SIA from 40% to 49.38%. The share capital was increased by non-monetary contribution. After the
transaction, the 50.0% owner of BiSumuiza Nami SIA is SIA Linstow Baltic, owner of 49.38 % shares is Arco
Investeeringute AS, and owner of 0.62% shares is SIA Mazais Baltezers. As a result of the transaction SIA Mazais
Baltezers has a termless option to buy from Arco Investeeringute AS a 9.38% share capital at nominal price.

On 21.07.2009, Arco Investeeringute AS, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS increased its share capital in the Latvian subsidiary
Arco Development SIA from 80 % to 99.99 %. The share capital was increased by non-monetary contribution.

On 18.08.2009 the division of Arco Vara Puukool OU, a 100 % subsidiary of Arco Vara, by separation entered into force.
This transaction separated the principal business of Arco Vara from its ancillary activities, i.e. property development from
production of forestry plants. The newly separated entity, Arco Vara Avrikinnistute OU, being a 100 % subsidiary of Arco
Vara AS was filed with the commercial registry. Arco Vara Arikinnistute OU owns in the city of Tartu one-half of the
property situated in Tartu at Turu 34a.

On 18.09.2009, Arco Vara AS transferred its 100 % holding in Arco Vara Puukool OU (a 100% Arco Vara AS subsidiary),
with a holding of 0.04 million kroons (0.003 million euros), see also Note 7 and 35.

On 21.10.2009, Arco Vara transferred 100% of its holdings in Tallinna Olimpiapurjespordikeskuse AS and Arco
Arikeskuse OU, which made up 50% of the holding or share capital of both companies, and 75% of its holding in Floriston
Grupp OU, which made up 37.5% of the holding of the company. Arco Vara will maintain a 12.5% holding in Floriston
Grupp OU. The holding was transferred to enterprises related to Marcel Vichmann and Olav Miil.

On 08.12.2009, Arco Vara AS transferred 75 % of its holding in Arco Ukraina Valduste OU with a net book value 0,15
million kroons (0,009 million euros), see also Note 7 and 35.

On 29.12.2009, Arco Ehitus OU, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, transferred 55% of its holding in Arco Construction SIA with
a holding of 0.08 million kroons (0.005 million euros), see also Note 7 and 35.

Changes in the Group structure after the balance sheet date:

Arco Investeeringute AS, a 100% subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, transferred its holding in Arco Vara Saare Kinnistute OU (a
50% associate of Arco Investeeringute AS) with a holding of 0.2 million kroons (0.01 million euros) in book value. The
transaction is based on the strategic goal to exit from an activity where no full control and management is possible. Sale
price was 6 million kroons (0.4 million euros).
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Key Financials

e Revenue and other income for the year totalled 541.6 million kroons (34.6 million euros), 21.5 % down year-over-
year.

e  Operating loss was 137.1 million kroons (8.8 million euros), 87.0 % down year-over-year.

e Netloss was 324.4 million kroons (20.7 million euros), 72.0 % down year-over-year.

e Equity ratio was 27.8 % (2008: 36.1 %) of the balance sheet total. ROE was negative (2008: negative). ROIC was
negative (2008: negative).

e In the construction division, new agreements in the amount of 171.0 million kroons (10.9 million euros) were
concluded, 2008: 299.0 million kroons (19 million euros).

e Group’s order backlog in the construction business stood at 80 million kroons (5.1 million euros) against 185.0
million kroons (11.8 million euros) last year.

e During the year, 82 apartments and plots were sold under Arco Vara projects (2008: 98 apartments and plots).

EEK EUR

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
In millions
Revenue and other
income 405 660 727 484 476 350 26 42 46 31 30 22
Gross profit -92 -351 185 135 118 109 -6 -22 12 9 8 7
EBIT -137 -1 050 103 260 154 130 -9 -67 7 17 10 8
Profit before tax -325 -1151 250 227 121 109 -21 -74 16 15 8 7
Profit for the year -324  -1160 236 217 116 107 -21 -74 15 14 7 7
Gross margin, % neg neg 25% 28%  25% 31% neg neg 25% 28% 25% 31%
Operating margin, % neg neg 14% 54% 32% 37% neg neg 14% 54% 32% 37%
Net margin, % neg neg 32% 45%  24% 30% neg neg 32% 45% 24% 30%
Net revaluation
gains/losses -110 -1086 77 375 104 58 -7 -69 5 24 7 4
Net loans 738 842 517 1143 578 555 47 54 33 73 37 35
Weighted average
loan term (in years) 0.9 25 2.2 2.7 n/a n/a 0.9 25 2.2 2.7 n/a n/a
Weighted average
loan interest at the
end of period (%) 5.3% 7.0% 6.7% 5.6% n/a n/a 5.3% 7.0% 6.7% 5.6% n/a n/a
ROE, % neg neg 14% 32% 27% n/a neg neg 14% 32% 27% n/a
ROA, % neg neg 8% 12% 9% n/a neg neg 8% 12% 9% n/a
ROIC, % neg neg 10% 16% 12% n/a neg neg 10% 16% 12% n/a
Quick Ratio 0.3 0.9 1.1 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.3 0.9 11 0.2 0.5 0.2
Current Ratio 1.3 25 2.2 0.6 0.8 0.8 1.3 25 2.2 0.6 0.8 0.8
EPS, in kroons -3.4 -12.2 2.8 3.1 1.6 1.6 -0.2 -0.8 0.2 0.2 0.1 0,1
Lowest share price,
in kroons 0.9 24 20.5 n/a n/a n/a 0.1 0.2 13 n/a n/a n/a
Highest share price,
in kroons 5.9 23.2 38.8 n/a n/a n/a 0.4 15 25 n/a n/a n/a
Number of staff 163 396 664 478 280 220 163 396 664 478 280 220
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Comments by the CEO

In 2009, 82 apartments or plots were sold under Group projects. In Latvia, 12 BiSumuiza apartments and 11 residential
plots in the project near the Mazais Baltezers lake. In Estonia, 44 Kodukolle apartments and 16 Merivalja plots were sold.
In the Boulevard Residence Madrid project in Sofia, a 30-year rental agreement was concluded with the Austrian
supermarket chain Billa, by which the supermarket will rent approx. 900 m? of the ground floor sales space of the building.
A long-term lease agreement was concluded with a financial intermediary company that will lease 4,700 m? office space.

Despite of the difficult situation on capital markets and in the economies of countries, the strategy of Group’s development
division is to finish the unfinished apartments in the BiSumuiZa-1 project in Riga, the apartments and business areas in the
Boulevard Residence Madrid and Manastirski projects in Sofia and last phase of Kodukolde project in Tallinn, due to more
favourable construction prices. In autumn, the construction of the Kodukolde 3" stage and Merivélja projects in Tallinn was
completed. The finished residential areas help to release invested equity and reduce the liabilities of the Group. In order to
stay in competition and accelerate sales pace, we reduced plot and apartment prices in all Arco Vara projects in the first
half-year.

The restructuring of the service division has considerably reduced our administration costs, and the operating loss from
ordinary operations of the quarter has reduced to 1.0 million kroons (0.063 million euros). Reduction of the number of
employees has stopped and the staff makes up 47 % on year-over-year basis. Within the year, the division has sold most
of its real estate objects acquired for short-term investments This has helped the division to manage by itself. The work
organisation of some smaller offices outside the capital city was changed by giving up the classical office-based work
organisation and applying the home office system by maintaining our full service selection at the same time. In other
offices, more cost effective work organisation solutions are being implemented in cooperation with employees. The aim of
the service division is to continue implementing the partially applied and in the current market situation justified work
organisation also in foreign markets. This allows increasing service provision with limited means in these countries, with a
future focus on Estonia, Latvia and Bulgaria.

During the quarter, the construction division has concluded new contracts in the amount of 171 million (10.9 million euros).
After the balance sheet date, Arco Ehitus OU has been announced as best tenderer either alone or in a consortium or as
sub-contractor in tenders with a total value of 129.9 million kroons (8.3 million euros).

In summary: The overall result of 2009 was most influenced by fair value adjustments and disposals of interest in three
jointly controlled entities. The gross profit without revaluation was 49.7 million kroons (3.2 million euros). The net profit
without revaluation of inventory, property investment, financial assets, and goodwill, and without the loss of transfer of
holdings and assets amounted to -58.7 million kroons (-3.7 million euros).

The savings in fixed costs on the year-over-year basis has exceeded the original expectations of the management two
times. The Group considers the relation between construction prices and sales perspective good enough to start the last
stage of the Kodukolde (96 apartments) and Tivoli (approx. 150 apartments) developments. After the balance sheet date, a
construction and construction financing agreement has been concluded with AS Merko Ehitus for the Kodukolde project.
The company is carrying on negotiations with potential partners and banks in order to find a favourable financing structure
for the Tivoli project in Tallinn.

In order to improve liquidity, the Group has, on a current basis, sold smaller property investments and holdings in three
joint ventures where the working capital was not under the full control of the Group. By selling the holdings, the company
improved its liquidity position by 55 million kroons (3.5 million euros). Due to adapting the Arco Vara AS management
structure to the reduced operations and cost saving policy, the number of Members of the Board was reduced to one. As
manager of Arco Vara, Mr. Lembit Tampere continues his work.
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REVENUE AND PROFIT

EEK EUR

2009 2008 2009 2008
In millions
Revenue and other income
Service 38.0 104.1 24 6.7
Development 266.6 246.4 17.0 15.7
Construction 277.2 416.8 17.7 26.6
Eliminations -40.3 -76.8 -2.6 -4.9
Total revenue and other income 541.6 690.4 34.6 44.1
Operating profit
Service -16.6 -47.9 -1.1 -3.1
Development -80.3 -985.1 5.1 -63.0
Construction -10.1 6.3 -0.6 0.4
Eliminations -10.5 -2.6 -0.7 -0.2
Unallocated expenses -19.6 -20.4 -1.3 -1.2
Total operating profit -137.2 -1 .049.7 -8.8 -67.1
Interest income and expense -32.8 5.1 2.1 0.3
Net other financial items -155.3 -106.7 -9.9 -6.8
Income tax expense 0.9 -8.8 0.1 -0.6
Profit for the year -324.4 -1160.1 -20.7 -74.2

The overall result of the year was most influenced by fair value adjustments. The net fair value adjustments totalled to -110
million kroons (-7.0 million euros), which is 90% less than a year ago. As a single transaction, the loss was increased by
transfer of holdings in three important jointly controlled entities. As a result of the transaction, a financial expense of 138.9
million kroons (8.9 million euros) was recognised. See additional information in Notes 4, 18 and 20.

Main cost cuttings have been made and striving towards reduced costs has become a routine practice in all of our
business units: we are aiming at saving fixed costs additionally by 15.6 million kroons (1.0 million euros) on an annual
basis. The main focus is now set on increasing the turnover, completing the Madrid project, and improving the liquidity
through the sales of projects and stock-in-trade. The results of operations in 2010 are mostly influenced by completing the
Madrid project where the sales of reservations will be recognised as turnover and according to the sales, the loan burden
is reduced.

The claim against AS Uhendatud Kapital with the new book value of 32.6 million kroons (2.1 million euros) was additionally
written down. Construction division EBIT without assets and goodwill write down was 3.3 million kroons (0.3 million euros),
i.e. 60% down year-over-year. The same indicator for th service division was -11.3 million kroons(0.7 million euros), i.e.
down 69% year-over-year. For 2010, a positive operating profit is forecasted for both divisions.

The biggest write up of the year was made in Latvia where the right of superficies under inventory was reclassified to
investment property as in the near future, no development activities are planned and buyers for the development projects
are searched for. It is a residential plot project with an area of 86 ha, located at the Mazais Baltezers lake near Riga.
According to the detailed plan, a total of 189 plots for houses with a total gross enclosed area of 172,380 m2 can be built.
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CASH FLOWS
EEK EUR

2009 2008 2009 2008
In millions
Cash flows from operating activities -26.6 -127.6 -1.7 -8.2
Cash flows from investing activities 95.5 -62.6 6.1 -4.0
Cash flows from financing activities -170.4 -402.2 -10.9 -25.7
Net cash flow -101,5 -592,4 -6,5 -37,9
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 172.6 765.0 11.0 48.9
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 71.4 172.6 4.5 11.0

In January 2009, 40 million kroons from the loan principals related to the Tivoli and Laeva projects were paid back to AS
SEB Pank on an extraordinary basis, by releasing the Group from the obligation to keep liquid assets in an amount of 150
million kroons (9.6 million euros) in AS SEB Pank. On an extraordinary basis, smaller loans and principal amounts have
been paid back, too. In order to improve cash position, holdings in three joint ventures were sold, that generated positive
net cash flow ca 55 million kroons (3.5 million euros) by the end of the year.

We have extended and restructured a half of our commercial papers in the amount of 26 million kroons (1.6 million euros),
whereof approx. 8 million kroons (0.5 million euros) have been paid as a result of the sales of security assets.
Major short-term liabilities during the next 12 months:

e the Ahtri project loan of 94.3 million kroons (6.0 million euros),
o Tivoli” and ,Laeva2” project loans in the total amount of 105.5 million kroons (6.7 million euros),
¢ Kodukolde® project loan in the amount of 46.0 million kroons (2.9 million euros),

e The loan for the BiSumuiza-1 (BM-1) development project in Riga in the amount of 48.2 million kroons (3.1 million

euros),

e Calculated principal returns from the sales of booked spaces in the ,Boulevard Residance Madrid“ project on
Sofia as the house will be finished by the 1% half-year 2010 at the latest, in an amount of 120.7 million kroons (7.7

million euros),
e Commercial papers in the amount of 18 million kroons (1.2 million euros).

On a current basis, loans have been redeemed in the ,Kodukolde” and Merivalja 2 projects in Tallinn and the ,BiSumuiza-
1”in Riga as well as in cash flow projects. Most of the liabilities are in euros.

SERVICE DIVISION

Cost and business model optimisation has had good results but is still not sufficient for earning net profit on a current
basis. By cash flow, the revenues and expenses of the division were in balance during the year and do not need any
subsidy from parent company. By setting the cash position of the division as a priority, the division sold objects acquired
for short-term investments. Due to the market situation, the prices have sometimes been under the cost price. Division
total EBIT was amounted to -16.6 million kroons (-1.1 million euros), whereof property and goodwill adjustments made up -
5.3 million kroons (-0.3 million euros). Optimisation of the cost structure and preparation of the business model and
processes for the improvement of the market situation is going on in the division.

The number of brokerage transactions of the Group for the year has decreased by 41 %, but the fall has stabilized
recently. The number of valuation reports has decreased on year-over-year basis by 51%, but has demonstrated a slight
increase starting from the 2nd quarter. As at the end of the year the division employed 66 people ( 2008: 139 persons).
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2009 2008 change, %
Number of brokered objects 986 1674 -41 %
Projects being sold, pcs. 151 282 -47 %
Number of valuation reports 3350 6816 -51 %
Number of appraisers* 34 38 -11%
Number of real estate brokers* 79 114 -31%
Average number of staff 66 139 -53 %

* Includes authorisation agreements
CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The construction division has won tenders of
environmental and infrastructure engineering. The
average volume of the tenders has decreased and the
contractor is the state institutions or local
governments. During the year 2009, the construction
division has concluded new contracts in the amount of
171 million (10.9 million euros). After the balance
sheet date, Arco Ehitus OU has been announced as
best tenderer either alone or in a consortium or as
sub-contractor in tenders with a total value of 129.9
million kroons (8.3 million euros).

The amount of revenue of the division totalled 274.7
million kroons (17.6 million euros) in 2009, which is

32.54% less than in 2008 (407.3 million kroons or 26
million euros). The turnover decreased first of all due
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to the increase of the turnover in the Latvian subsidiary, which was caused by a steep fall in the Latvian construction
market as well as by a decrease in internal turnover. The net loss of the division amounted to 17.9 million kroons (1.1
million euros). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 2.3 million kroons (0.2 million euros). The results of the year were
mostly influenced by fair value adjustments, the total adjustment amounted to 13.4 million kroons (0.9 million euros).
Thereof, property investments were adjusted by 1.6 million kroons (0.1 million euros), property, plant and equipment was
adjusted by 0.9 million kroons (0.06 million euros), and the goodwill adjustment was 10.9 million kroons (0.7 million euros).
As at the end of the year the division employed 59 people ( 2008: 191 persons). On 29.12.2009, the holding in Arco
Construction SIA was sold, as a result of which the number of employees in the Construction Division reduced by about 80

persons.

Biggest objects in 2009:
Estonia
Civil engineering

=

construction of Helme 7a and 7b apartment houses
reconstruction and extension of Rduge kindergarten

construction of six family houses and one hobby house for the Parnu Children’s Home

renovation of Tartu Hiie school

reconstruction of Képu kindergarten-library
nvironmental engineering

Antsla. Parts 4, 5, 6, 10.

2
3
4,
5. designing and construction of the new part for the Aravete High School
6
E
1
2

designing and construction works of the water and sewerage project in the Matsalu sub-basin part 1 and part 3
reconstruction of water and sewerage constructions in the Emajde-Véhandu sub-basin in the towns of Véru and
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construction woks of sewage disposal devices in Turi parish

reconstruction of water and sewerage systems in Aste village, Kaarma parish

water management project of the Emajée and VVéhandu river basin; Emaje subproject, designing and construction

works of water treatment plants part 2

6. water management project of the Emajée-Véhandu river basin, designing and construction of water and sewerage

drains part 5

reconstruction works of the sewage system of the town of Haapsalu

designing and construction subcontracting in water and sewerage constructions in Eastern Saaremaa (Orissaare,

Muhu, Poéide). parts: 1, 3,4, 5

9. designing and construction subcontracting in the water and sewerage system in Northern and Eastern Saaremaa
(Mustjala village)

10. reconstruction works of the Kividli sewerage network

11. water management project of the Emajdée and Vdhandu river basin; Emajée subproject, designing and construction
works of drinking water plants

Latvia

1. construction of the pedestrian tunnel for the Stockmann department house

2. construction of five apartment houses in BiSumuiza

3. construction of the Lic Gotus shopping centre

s

© N

DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Within 12 months, 82 apartments or plots were sold

under Arco Vara projects. Under the Boulevard B Sold residential appartments and land plots
Residence Madrid project in Sofia, a long-term rental 41
agreement with the Austrian su;)ermarket chain Billa was 36

concluded for approx. 900 m“, and a long-term lease

agreement with a financial intermediary company for - 26

4,700 m2 office space. Additionally, the trial on the

establishment of the detailed plan of the Tivoli 16
project was disposed and the Tallinn Administrative 11 14 11

Court decision annulled. Based on the decision, the

original detailed plan will remain into force without

changes.

10/08 20/08 30Q/08 40708 10/09 20/08 3Q/09 40Q/09

The main risk factor for the development division is the

refinancing of loans of plots in Estonia. We consider it to be sensible to finish the unfinished projects thanks to more
favourable construction prices in order to satisfy the demand with ready to be sold stock as well as improve the security
assets of loans.

The most important goal is to finish the Madrid project in Sofia where the relevant development loans were extended after
the balance sheet date. On a current basis, preparations are made for starting the construction works of the last stage in
the Tallinn Kodukolde project and in the Tivoli project. After the balance sheet date, a subcontracting and financing
contract was concluded with AS Merko Ehitus to build the last 96 apartments in Kodukolde project in Tallinn. The selection
of partners for starting the 1° stage in the Tivoli project in Tallinn is ongoing. An increasing sales pace will cause a minimal
stock-in-trade in the near future. In order to create turnover, building of new apartments is planned to be started.

In order to manage the liquidity risk, the prices in current projects in the Baltic as well as in Sofia were decreased in the
first half of 2009 in order to improve sales. Also, holdings in three important jointly controlled entities were sold. For some
employees, salaries and working times have been optimized. As of 31 December 2009, the division employed 23 people
(2008: 44 persons).

Additional information on projects is available at www.arcorealestate.com/arendus

SUMMARY TABLE OF MAJOR PROJECTS

Type Name Location Holding Eﬂgiﬂgg;;ﬂgﬁs cleeE i e Current state gla?ZrS\::féc:rt':ggt 1 Uhee
The old plan and building
permit are in effect.

Establishing the detailed plan

Commercial  Ahtri 3 Estqnla, 50 % approx. 44,500m? for increasing the building Investment property
Tallinn N g
rights is in the end phase. In
the new plan, above-ground
building rights are 51.100 m?
Detailed plan approved.
Commercial Laeva 2 Est(_)ma, 100 % 7.776 m? Building p_erm|t o th_e pmldmg Investment property
Tallinn part acquired. Negotiations
with potential tenants.
Commercial  Paldiski 80 Ez}ﬁ:{!a‘ 100 % 24.000 m? Detailed plan established. Investment property
. . Building rights according to Classification in the
Type Name Location Holding business plan Current state belEmee Shes
Cash flow Enerpoint Estonia, 100 % 3.326 m? Building rights in place. Investment property
Kuressaare Generates cash flow.
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Cash flow Kaarli 2
Cash flow Kerberon
Cash flow Parnu turg
Cash flow Raekoja 10
Ruatli Str. 16
Cash flow /18
Type Name
Apartments  BiSumuiza 1
Apartments  BiSumuiza 2
Apartments  Hills
Apartments  Kolde
Apartments  Madrid
Apartments ~ Manastirski
Apartments  Tivoli
Plots Baltezers-2
Plots Baltezers-3
Plots Baltezers-5
Plots Merivalja 2
Plots Partli
Plots Tooma
Plots Vahi

Estonia,
Tallinn

Estonia,
Tallinn

Estonia,
Parnu

Estonia,
Kuressaare

Estonia,
Tallinn

Location

Latvia, Riia

Latvia, Riia

Lithuania,
Vilnius

Estonia,
Tallinn

Bulgaria,
Sofia

Bulgaria,
Sofia

Estonia,
Tallinn

Latvia, Riia

Latvia, Riia

Latvia, Riia

Estonia,
Merivalja

Estonia,
Saue

Estonia,
Saue

Estonia,
Vaana

33 %

100 %

100 %
50 %
50 %

Holding

100 %

49,4 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

50 %

50 %

100 %

Plot 4.791 m?

15.750 m?

2.529 m?
1.493 m?

980 m?
Building rights according to
business plan

Unsold/unreserved building rights
17.825 m?

87.770 m?

6.500 m?
Unsold building rights 12.504 m?.
Unsold/ur;reserved building rights

12.150 m

Unsold/unreserved building rights
23.593 m?

58.470 m?

Plots for one-family dwellings
172.380 m?, total land 861.900 m”
41 plots unsold

Unsold/unbooked 41.451 m?, 35
plots

84 plots, average plot 1.500 m?

107 plots, average plot 1.802 m?

21 plots, average plot 3.363 m?

Café with a total area of 242
m? and the parking area are
producing cash flow.
Building rights in place,
building rights.. Generates
cash flow.

Building rights in place.
Generates cash flow.

Generates cash flow.

Building rights in place.
Generates cash flow.

Current state

Sales of the apartments in
progress. In 2010, the
completion of the second-
phase apartments will be
started.

Designing has been
postponed.

Building rights acquired.
Project is on sale.

Right of superficies, building
rights acquired. Apartments
are on sale. Designing of the
two last stages ongoing.
Building rights. Construction
and sale of apartments are
under way.

Building rights. Construction
and sale of apartments are
under way.

Detailed plan established.

All plots sold. Sales of one plot
is reflected in the turnover of
January 2010.

Rights of superficies. 189
plots. 1% stage of infrastructure
in preparation(1st stage
includes 3 plots).

Building rights acquired.
Construction finished, sales
ongoing.

Construction of roads and
utility lines finished, sales of
plots ongoing.

No building rights. Adoption of
a detail plan suspended until
improvement in market
situation.

No building rights. Adoption of
a detail plan suspended until
improvement in market
situation.

Building rights and building
design in place, suspended
until improvement in market
situation.

Investment property

Investment property

Investment property
Investment property

Investment property

Classification in the
balance sheet

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories

Investment property

Investment property

Inventories

Inventories

Investment property

Inventories

Inventories

Note: The development and success of the Group’s development projects depend largely on external factors. Their

success is the adoption of plans and the issuance of building permits by the local government and the planning authorities.
The information presented in the tables, such as building rights according to business plan, current state, project type and
classification of the project in the balance sheet, has been recorded based on management’s intentions and best judgment
and may change in line with changes in the planning process. Expectations of the projects’ realisation may also change
over time according to changes in the market and in competition. Management estimates the value of the project portfolio
on an ongoing basis and is prepared to sell any project or part of a project at any time, depending on the results of the
cost-benefit analysis.

The projects presented in the summary table account for the following portions of the Group’s assets:

EEK EUR
Balance Book values of Balance sheet Book values of
Balance sheet item at projects item at projects presented
Sheet Item 31.12.2009 presented in the 31.12.2009 in the summary
summary table at table at
31.12.20009. 31.12.20009.
In millions

Total assets 1379.2 1063.8 88.1 68.0
Inventories 776.6 749.2 49.6 47.9

Investment
property 329.0 314.6 21.0 20.1
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Property,
plant and
equipment 10.5 0.0 0.7 0.0

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN DETAIL PLANS IN 2009:

Tivoli: a detailed plan was established by the Tallinn City Council on 17 April 2008. The building rights set out by the
detailed plan were as follows: the gross enclosed area of up to five-storey apartment houses is 51.400 m2, the area of
business areas 7,000 m2, additionally, the detailed plan provides for up to 780 (21,150 m2) underground parking places.

A resident of the neighbouring residential district contested the detailed plan in court and the court of first instance has
annulled the decision of establishing the detailed plan. The City of Tallinn and Arco Investeeringute AS as interested party
appealed the decision. The session of the court of second instance was held at the end of October 2009 and resulted in
disposal of the trial and annulment of the Tallinn Administrative Court decision. Based on the decision, the original detailed
plan will remain into force without changes.

Ahtri: The property has a valid detailed plan and building rights. Due to a new architectural solution and a change in the
intended purpose, an application was submitted on 21 August 2008 to the Tallinn City Planning Department for initiating
drafting of a new detailed plan. A new detailed plan was initiated on 7 May 2008 and it provides for ground based building
rights 51,110 m2 gross enclosed area. The detailed plan was adopted on 16 September 2009. The detailed plan was
displayed to public from 21.10-04.112009 during which one remark was submitted by AS Tallinna Sadam. AS Tallinna
Sadam wants to achieve an agreement on the fee for the use of a street land property with a size of 600 m2 that has been
established in the valid detailed plan. Negotiations will be started at the beginning of 2010. As long as there is no new
detailed plan, the building rights of the previous plan are in force.

PM80: The detailed plan was adopted at a session of Tallinn City Administration on 13 May 2009. After the adoption, the
detailed plan was displayed to public from 2 June to 16 June, during which no objections or suggestions were received.
The detailed plan was adopted by the Harju county governor and was established by the Tallinn City Council on 26
November 2009. The valid detailed plan changed the effective Tallinn comprehensive plan with regard to storeys.

STAFF

The Group considers professional and committed employees as the biggest value and a clear intention of the Group
management in 2010 is to contribute into the development of employees and work environment more than in the previous
year.

The Group employed 163 people at the end of 2009, while in 2008 the number of employees was 396 persons. Payroll
including associated taxes totalled 73.9 million kroons (4.7 million euros) against 129.3 million kroons (8.3 million euros) in
2008. Payroll, including taxes has decreased 42.9 % on annual basis.

The remuneration of the Group’s management board for the 12 month of 2009, including associated taxes, totalled 5.3
million kroons (0.3 million euros). In 2008, the same indicator amounted to 21.9 million kroons (1.4 million euros).

The remuneration paid to members of the supervisory board, including the associated taxes amounted to 0.6 million
kroons (0.04 million euros). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 0.6 million kroons (0.04 million euros).

Starting from 5 September 2009, the Group has one board member — Mr. Lembit Tampere.

As at 31.12.2009 the distribution of the employees by regions and areas of activity was as follows:

2009 Estonia Latvia Ukraine Bulgaria TOTAL
Service 39 15 0 12 66
Development 11 4 0 8 23
Construction 59 0 0 0 59
General management 15 0 0 0 15
TOTAL 124 19 0 20 163
2008 Estonia Latvia Ukraine Bulgaria TOTAL
Service 58 35 29 17 139
Development 27 7 0 10 44
Construction 63 128 0 0 191
General management 22 0 0 0 22
TOTAL 170 170 29 27 396

The year 2009 continued to be tense on the whole European real estate market and therefore, the volumes of real estate
transactions were not increased compared to previous years. As a result of this, the number of employees in all
subsidiaries of the Group decreased considerably due to smaller workload. As a result of centralising the internal services
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of the company and streamlining the management structures, a high-quality service has been ensured with smaller
workforce in all activity fields of the Group.

On 08.12.2009, the holding in Arco Ukraina Valduste OU and on 29.12.2009, the holding in Arco Construction SIA was
sold, as a result of which the number of employees in the Service Division was reduced by about 29 persons and in the
Construction Division by about 80 persons.

58 % of all employees of the Group have higher education or higher education with additional post-graduate training. This
proves the high professionalism, broad conception of the world and ability to develop. 28 % of Group's employees have
vocational education according to their position.

m Higher education or higher
education with additional post-
graduate training (master or
doctorate}

| Higher education (diploma or
bachelor)

m Vocational education

| Secondary education

m Other

34 % of employees have worked in the Group for 1 -3 years and 32 % of employees 3-6 years, thereby 7 % of
employees have a job experience under 1 year. 93 % of Group's employees have worked with the Group over 1 year, thus
mostly started working with the Group before the start of the global economic downturn and real estate crisis. This is a
proof of employees' loyalty, commitment and belief in the Group's sustainable development.

| Less than 1 year
m 1o 2 years

M 2 o & years

=, 6 to 10 years

m hMore than 10 years

Starting from 2008, an employee motivation system has been developed in the Group and was unconditionally
implemented in 2009. The Group management contributed into the development of team relations and into integration of
employees of the different structural units of the Group. In 2009, the traditions of national information days, summer days
and Christmas party continued, also the best employees of the Group in 2009 were elected.

Although in 2009, the Group mostly organised for employees essential trainings required for the immediate fulfilment of
work tasks, considerably more is planned to be contributed in 2010 into a broad-based development of sales skills of
employees in the Service Division.

Starting from 2008, the Group Sports Club consisting of employees of the Group is operating. The purpose of the sports
club is to create preconditions and possibilities for doing collective sports and contribute into physical strengthening of
employees. In 2009, members of the sports club participated in numerous summer and winter sports competitions and
have concluded cooperation agreements with various sports clubs for doing indoor sports. The Group management has
supported regular health checkups of employees and concluded relevant cooperation agreements with medical institutions,
also possibilities have been created for vaccinating employees against viral infections.

In 2010, the Group plans cooperation with Estonian Unemployment Insurance Fund in order to provide job practice for job
seekers.

CHARITY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
In spite of complicated times the Group has not abandoned charity. The Group supports the “Ndmme kalju” football club,

the Russian Theatre, and the Estonian Academy of Arts. Furthermore, the company patrticipates in a number of social
projects, including co-operation with the Labour Market Board. Through this co-operation the Group has provided broker
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training as well as work and practical training opportunities to several people who have lost their jobs, thus contributing
directly into reduction of unemployment in the country.

Through charity the Group has also assumed certain social responsibilities for influencing processes occurring in the
society. By supporting the “Némme kalju” football team the Group not only promotes the development of Estonian sport,
but also fosters purposeful leisure activities of youth, thus reducing the risk of going astray.

By sponsoring the Russian Theatre the company promotes both cultural development as well as successful integration
processes at the nationwide level.

Through the architecture scholarship of the Estonian Academy of Arts the Group supports the academic education system
as well as young and talented architects and architectural historians. This is how we hope to improve the professional level
of architecture and property development in Estonia. Both this as well as different co-operation and support projects are
initiated with a view to the future in order to support harmonious development of the Republic of Estonia and her people.

SHARE AND SHAREHOLDERS

The total number of outstanding shares of the company is 95,284,150. As of end of 31.12.2009, the company has 2,444
shareholders and the share price was closed at 2.66 kroons (0.17 euros) level, staying at the same level of 31.12.2008.
The company holds 450 000 of its own shares with the average acquisition value of 8.87 kroons (0.57 euros).

In order to reduce the volatility of share price and to provide opportunities for more effective pricing of the shares, the
special general meeting decided on 11.12.2009 to reduce the share capital of Arco Vara AS by 20 times (Note 17). As a
result of the decision, the consolidated assets, liabilities and the equity did not change. Theoretically, the market value of
Group's equity should not change either. After the cancellation of shares, 4,741,707 shares will remain. New share capital
was registered after the balance sheet date on 16.03.2010.

Furthermore, the Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia provides that the equity of a company has to make up at
least a half of the nominal value of the share capital. Cancelling of shares has enabled us to meet this requirement.

Diagrams of share price changes of the shares of Arco Vara AS, and changes of transaction volumes during 2009:
In Estonian kroons (EEK).
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Change in share price compared to the reference index OMX Tallinn within 2009:

Jar Feb Mar Aar [SE

+/-

01.01.2009 31.12.2009 %

Index/share

OMX Tallinn 274,83 404,58 47,21

ARCIT 0.17EUR 0.17 EUR 0

Bigger shareholders on 31.12.2009
FREIER PROJEKT OU

OU TOLETUM

HM INVESTEERINGUD OU
GAMMA HOLDING 0U

SEB Ab Clients

Central Securities Depository of Lithuania
SEB PANK AS KAUPLEMINE
LOKOTAR INVEST OU

Other

TOTAL

Jun

Jul A Sep

Number of shares
22 358 584
20 757 258
20 722 383

5 040 022
4633 048
3104 166
1169 000
680 001
16 819 688
95 284 150

Oct Mowe Dec

Shareholding %
23.5%
21.8%
21.7%

53%
4.9 %
3.3%
1.2%
0.7 %
17.6 %
100.0 %
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Share price and other relevant indicators' statistics within the last three years:

EEK 2009 2008 2007
Share price, at year end 2.66 2.66 22.69
Share price, lowest 0.94 2.35 20.50
Share price, highest 5.95 23.16 38.16
Share price, average 2.58 10,29 28.14
Traded shares 60 708 002 65 497 405 41 457 570
Turnover, million 182.97 575.63 1254.04
Market value, million 253.45 253.45 2161.77
Earnings per share (EPS) -3.42 -12.18 2.76
Dividends per share n/a 0.39 0.26
Dividends / net profit n/a -0.03 0.09
P/E -0.78 -0.22 8.23
P/BV 0.66 0.35 0.97
EUR 2009 2008 2007
Share price, at year end 0.17 0.17 1.45
Share price, lowest 0.06 0.15 1.31
Share price, highest 0.38 1.48 2.44
Share price, average 0.16 0.66 1.80
Traded shares 60 708 002 65 497 405 41 457 570
Turnover, million 11.69 36.79 80.15
Market value, million 16.20 16.20 138.16
Earnings per share (EPS) -0.22 -0.78 0.18
Dividends per share n/a 0.02 0.02
Dividends / net profit n/a -0.03 0.09
P/E -0.78 -0.22 8.23
P/BV 0.66 0.35 0.97

P/E - share price at year end / earnings per share
P/PV - share price at year end / equity per share

Share positions of the members of the management board and the supervisory board

Share positions of the members of the

management board and the supervisory . Number of :
hoard Position shares Shareholding %
. Member of the o
Lembit Tampere Management Board 0 0.00 %
Chairman of the
Richard Tomingas (Toletum OU) Supervisory Board 20 757 258 21.8%
Member of the
Mar ; : % Supervisory Board
Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu (HM Investeeringud OU, 20 884 710 21.9 %
related person)
Member of the
Aare Tark Supervisory Board 0 0.00 %
Member of the
Kalev Tanner Supervisory Board 0 0.00 %
Member of the
Ragnar Meitern Supervisory Board 0 0.00 %
Total 41 641 968 43.70 %

Dividend Policy

Historically, the Group has announced dividends in the amount of up to 15 % of the consolidated net profit. Nevertheless
the Group cannot warrant that dividend payments will be continuing at the same rate in the future, because the exact sum
of dividends depends on the results of the latest financial year of the Group and the estimated liquidity position in the
medium run.
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DESCRIPTION OF MAIN RISKS

Credit risks
Credit risk is most apparent in the construction division of the Group. We are continuously monitoring the payment
behaviour of our contract partners. Within 2009, we have noticed some worsening in payment behaviour.

Liguidity risks

Cash balance is kept in biggest Estonian banks as overnight deposits or fixed rate short-term time deposits. The lengths of
time deposits are usually one week. Management of cash flows is tense due to the high refunding risk. The cash and cash
equivalents balance of the Group is permanently lower than the loan balances needing refunding within the next 12
months. The weighted average length of interest bearing liabilities is as of 31.12.2009 0.9 years, which means that on
average, all loans need refunding each year. Although the consolidated cash and cash equivalents balance of the Group at
the end of 2009 is 71.4 million kroons (4.6 million euros), 33.9 million kroons (2.2 million euros) of it are under the direct
control of the company, while the rest is on the accounts of joint companies or project companies where payments to other
group companies or parent company require an approval by the partner or the bank. These resources can be used by
relevant companies for their daily operations and investments. The liquidity risk will certainly be the most serious risk for
the next twelve months.

Interest risks

Most of the Group loan agreements have been concluded in euros and the base interest is the 3-month and 6-month
EURIBOR. Thus, the Group is open to what is happening on international capital markets. At present, the long-term
interest risk is not covered. The interest bearing liabilities of the Group have decreased within the year by 249.2 million
kroons (15.9 million euros). As of 31.12.2009, the interest bearing liabilities of the Group amount to 802.2 million kroons
(51.3 million euros). Actually paid interest expenses in 2009 amounted to 47.3 million. kroons (3.0 million euros).
Compared to 2008, the weighted average interest cost has reduced from 7.0 % to 5.3 %.

Currency risks
Sales agreements are usually concluded in local currencies: Estonian kroons (EEK), Latvian lats (LVL) and Bulgarian levis

(LEV). A claim with a book value of 32.6 million kroons (2.1 million euros; 3.0 million dollars) has been concluded in US
dollars. The currency risk of this claim has not been managed as the Group is not protected against devaluation of
currencies. Most of the liquid resources are kept in short-term deposits in Estonian kroons.

An overview of the financial risks management policy and the risk positions as at 31.12.2009 has been provided in Note 32
to the financial statements of the consolidation group.
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FORMULAS

Invested capital = current interest-bearing liabilities + long-term liabilities + all equity

Net debt = current interest-bearing liabilities at the end of period + long-term liabilities at the end of period -
cash and cash equivalents at the end of period - short-term investments in highly liquid securities

Equity to assets ratio = equity at the end of period / total assets at the end of period

Average equity = the past 4 quarters’ closing equity / 4

ROE = net profit for the period/ the period’s average equity

ROA = net profit for the period/ the period’s average total assets

ROIC = the sum of pre-tax profit and interest expenses for the last 4 quarters / average invested capital for 4
last quarters

EPS = net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent / (weighted average number of ordinary
outstanding shares of the period — own shares)

Current Ratio = current assets at the end of period / current liabilities at the end of period

Quick Ratio = (current assets at the end of period — inventory and biological asset balance at the end of
period) / current liabilities at the end of period

Gross Margin = Gross profit / Net sales

Operating Margin = Operating profit / Net sales

Net Margin = Net profit / Net sales
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Corporate Governance Code (CGC)

The shares of Arco Vara AS were listed in the main list of the Tallinn Stock Exchange on 21 June 2007.

Being a publicly traded company Arco Vara AS is governed in its operations by the legislation effective in the Republic of
Estonia, the requirements, rules and guidelines established by the Tallinn Stock Exchange, and the company’s core
values.

Partnership — our client is our partner

Reliability — we are reliable, open and honest

Professionalism — we deliver quality

Respect — we respect our client’s personality

Responsibility — we keep our promises

Along with the annual report Arco Vara AS also submits its Corporate Governance Code (CGC) report, in which the
management of the company confirms the adherence to the CGC requirements, and explains the reasons of any failure to
do so.

The annual report has been prepared in compliance with the CGC guidelines. This CGC report is a separate chapter of the
management report constituting a part of the annual report.

| General Meeting of Shareholders

The highest directing body of a company is the general meeting of shareholders.
The competence of the general meeting, the procedure for calling a meeting and passing of decisions is set forth in the
articles of association of the company.

In 2009 the company held one annual and two special general meeting of shareholders.

The annual general meeting took place on 22.05.2009. in Tallinn at Viru véljak 3, but as less than a half of votes
represented by shares were present, the general meeting did not have a quorum and the Management Board called a new
general meeting with the same agenda. The new annual general meeting took place on 04.06.2009 in Tallinn at Narva mnt
7C. The notice on calling the meeting was published on 23.05.2009 in the newspaper Postimees and on the company’s
website. The notice contained information on the location where the shareholders were given the possibility to review all
the essential data and materials of the general meeting, and where to submit their questions, as well as a direct link to the
company's website with the information and documents mentioned in the meeting's agenda. The contract executed with
the auditor was not published to shareholders, because according to the pre-contractual negotiations the contents of the
contract was not subject to disclosure At the same time, as the auditing company Ernst & Young Baltic AS was re-elected,
the previous auditing agreement was extended.

This information was provided to the shareholders both in Estonian as well as in English. Before the general meeting, no
written questions were submitted on the items on agenda.

Before the general meeting, the Supervisory Board did not separately publish its proposals regarding the topics on the
agenda of the meeting, because the supervisory board did not have additional suggestions of any relevance, instead, they
were published in the summons to the general meeting.

The meeting was chaired by sworn advocate Hannes Vallikivi, who is not the chair of the Supervisory Board of the
meeting, nor a member of the Management Board. The agenda of the meeting included approval of the annual report,
division of profit, election of auditors. The distribution of profit was discussed at the meeting as a separate topic, and a
separate decision was taken in respect to the same. The general meeting of shareholders was held in the Estonian
language and the chair of the meeting ensured smooth running of the meeting. All the members of the management board,
the Chair of the Supervisory Board (Richard Tomingas), one member of the Supervisory Board (Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu) and
a sworn auditor from Ernst & Young Baltic AS (Hanno Lindpere) attended the meeting. The rest of the members of the
Supervisory Board (Aare Tark, Kalev Tanner and Ragnar Meitern) were unable to attend the meeting due to their duties in
other companies.

The first special general meeting of shareholders was held on 27.08.2009 in Tallinn at Narva mnt. 7c. The notice on calling
the meeting was published on 19.08.2009 in the newspaper Postimees and on the company’s website. The notice
contained information on the reason for calling a special meeting, the location where the shareholders were given the
possibility to review all the essential data and materials of the general meeting, and where to submit their questions, as
well as a direct link to the company's website with the information and documents mentioned in the meeting's agenda. This
information was provided to the shareholders both in Estonian as well as in English. Before the general meeting, no written
guestions were submitted on the items on agenda.

The meeting was chaired by Rainer Osanik, who is not the chair of the supervisory board of the meeting, nor a member of
the management board. Amending company's Articles of Association in a way where the company's Management Board
could consist of one to five members instead of the current three to five members was on the agenda. The special general
meeting of shareholders was held in the Estonian language and the chair of the meeting ensured smooth running of the
meeting. All the members of the management board, the chair of the supervisory board (Richard Tomingas) and one
member of the supervisory board (Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu) attended the meeting. The rest of the members of the supervisory
board (Aare Tark, Kalev Tanner and Ragnar Meitern) and the auditor didn’t attend the meeting.
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The second special general meeting of shareholders was held on 17.12.2009 in Tallinn at Narva mnt. 7C. The notice on
calling the meeting was published on 19.11.2009 in the newspaper Postimees and on the company’s website. The notice
contained information on the reason for calling a special meeting, the location where the shareholders were given the
possibility to review all the essential data and materials of the general meeting, and where to submit their questions, as
well as a direct link to the company's website with the information and documents mentioned in the meeting's agenda.
This information was provided to the shareholders both in Estonian as well as in English. Before the general meeting, no
written questions were submitted on the items on agenda.

The meeting was chaired by sworn advocate Hannes Vallikivi, who is not a Chair of company's Supervisory Board or a
Member of the Board. Extension of the powers of the members of the company's Supervisory Board, remuneration of
members of the Supervisory Board, amendment of the Articles of Association, and reduction of share capital were on the
agenda. The special general meeting of shareholders was held in the Estonian language and the chair of the meeting
ensured smooth running of the meeting. All the members of the management board, the chair of the supervisory board
(Richard Tomingas), one member of the supervisory board (Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu) and a notary (Merle Saar-Johanson)
attended the meeting. The rest of the members of the supervisory board (Aare Tark, Kalev Tanner and Ragnar Meitern)
and the auditor didn’t attend the meeting.

The company did not consider it possible to monitor and attend the general meetings by means of communication,
because there are no reliable solutions for identifying the shareholders and ensuring the privacy of attending shareholders.

Information pertaining to the agendas of the annual and special general meetings of shareholders, as well as the questions
posed by shareholders before the meetings, and the responses given are displayed on company's web page until the
notice on calling the next general meeting of shareholders is published.

Il Management Board

Since 04.09.2009 and at present the Management Board of Arco Vara AS includes 1 member:
e Lembit Tampere — manager, who organises the work of the company;

From 16.10.2008 till 03.09.2009 the management board included 3 members: Lembit Tampere (chair of the management
board), Heigo Metsoja (member of the management board, financial manager) and Veiko Taevere (member of the
management board, head of the development division).

Reducing the number of members of the management board to one was deemed necessary for the purpose of better
organisation in companies business, ensuring management efficiency, and restructuration of its activities. The relevant
changes were adopted by the special general meeting on 27.08.2009 when the Articles of Association were amended
respectively.

Upon assuming the office every member of the management board has executed a service contract with the company
governing the service assignments of that member. Contracts with members of the management board have been (were)
entered into for the term of three years. None of the members of the management board is concurrently a member of
management boards of more than two issuers, a chair of the supervisory board of another issuer, nor a chair of the
supervisory board of an issuer of the company’s group.

The member of the management board has executed a contract of a member of the management board with the company,
which specifies the rights, obligations and liability of the member of the management board, and lays down the provisions
governing payment of principal remuneration. The amount of the remuneration was agreed upon in line with the service
assignments and activities entrusted to the member of the management board, the current state of the business, and the
future trends. Upon removal of the member of the management board from the office without a good reason, the member
of the management board is paid a severance pay in the amount of four months principal remuneration of the member of
the management board.

The contracts of service for board members concluded with Heigo Metsoja, Veiko Taevere and Lembit Tampere did not
include the procedure for paying bonuses and the Supervisory Board of the company has not approved any other similar
procedure.

In 2009, the remuneration paid to the Members of the Board totalled 1.9 million kroons (0,1 million euros). No bonuses or
severance pay were paid.

The members of the management board have informed the company of their participation in other business entities, which
are not members of the Group, or management bodies thereof.
e Lembit Tampere — member of the management board of OU Alasniidu, OU Overseas and OU Harku
Projektijuntimine and the sole shareholder and member of the management board of OU Remmelga Aiand,;

Certain interest held by the members in management board, and their participation in managing bodies does not constitute
a breach of the prohibition on competition. Moreover the members of the management board have assumed the obligation
to refrain from any breach of the non-competition obligation under their respective agreements. Furthermore, the internal
work procedure rules of the company stipulate that no member of the management board or any employee shall demand
or accept in their own personal interest any moneys or other benefits from any third persons in connection with their job,
nor grant any third persons unlawful or unreasonable favours.
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The members of the management board have not concluded any transactions with themselves, any persons connected
with or related with themselves, nor taken any decisions based on their personal interests.

Ill Supervisory Board

The task of the supervisory board is to plan the operations of the company, organise the business and carry out
supervision over the activities of the management board. The members of the supervision of Arco Vara AS are elected by
the general meeting of shareholders.

In line with the CGC one-half of the members of the management board of the issuer have to be independent. If the
supervisory board includes an uneven number of members the number of independent members may be less by 1.

The supervisory board of the company consists of 5 members. For the whole financial year, the members of the
supervisory board were Richard Tomingas (chair of the supervisory board), Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu, Aare Tark, Kalev Tanner
and Ragnar Meitern.

Since 16.05.2008 the independent members of the supervisory board, in line with the definition provided by CGC, are Aare
Tark, Kalev Tanner and Ragnar Meitern. The members of the supervisory board Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu and Richard
Tomingas cannot be deemed independent members, because within the last three years they have been members of the
management of a number of business entities of the issuer's group, and have business relationships via the business
entities OU HM Investeeringud and OU Toletum in which they hold interest.

Therefore the supervisory board of the company includes 3 independent and 2 dependent members, which meets the
CGC'’s requirement according to which, in the case that the supervisory board has an uneven number of members, the
number of independent members may be one less than the number of dependent members. Such composition of the
supervisory board ensures efficient management and is the best option for the company and the shareholders.

The members of the supervisory board elect from among themselves the chair of the supervisory board.
Starting from 21.01.2008 and at present, the Chair of the Supervisory Board is Richard Tomingas.

The remuneration for the Members of Supervisory Board was from 31.05.2007 until 17.12.2009 per member 7,500 kroons
(gross amount). On 17.12.2009 the general meeting approved as a new remuneration of Supervisory Board members
15,000 (959 euros) per month (net amount). No additional remuneration is paid to the members of the supervisory board,
and no special remuneration is paid to the chair of the supervisory board. No severance pay is paid to resigning members
of the supervisory board.

Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu and Richard Tomingas who are also active members of supervisory boards of companies controlled
by the issuer, have been granted the use of cars, computers and mobile telephone, and according to the resolution of the
general meeting the expenses connected with the same are borne by the issuer.

The supervisory board has formed no committees.

Altogether 8 meetings of the supervisory board were held in 2009. In 2009 most members of the supervisory board of the
issuer participated in more than one-half of the meetings of the supervisory board held during their term of office. Ragnar
Meitern was not able to participate in more than a half of Supervisory Board meetings due to being abroad.

No conflict of interest has emerged in 2009 with respect to any members of the supervisory board.

IV Co-operation of Management Board and Supervisory Board

In line with the articles of association of the issuer, and the established routine of work the management board and the
supervisory board work in close co-operation.

The members of the supervisory board Hillar-Peeter Luitsalu and Richard Tomingas are actively involved in the
supervisory boards of all the parent companies of all the three key areas of activity (Arco Ehitus OU, Arco Investeeringute
AS and Arco Real Estate AS); in addition, Richard Tomingas is a Supervisory Board Member of Arco Development SIA.
The management board and the supervisory board hold joint meetings when matters concerning the company’s strategy
are discussed, and the parties continuously exchange information pertaining to the strategic development of the issuer.
Furthermore, at such meetings the management board informs the supervisory board of any deviations from the
company’s plans and targets and the reasons thereof.

When needed meetings of the chair of the supervisory board and the chair of the management board are held to exchange
information. With respect to exchange of information the internal rules governing the keeping, disclosure of internal
information, as well as transactions with the shares of Arco Vara As are applied.

On 18.08.2009, the Supervisory Board decided to remove Members of the Board Heigo Metsoja and Veiko Taevere
starting from approving the amendments to the Articles of Association by the general meeting. Reducing the number of
members of the management board to one was deemed necessary for the purpose better organisation of the business of
the company, ensuring management efficiency, and restructuration of its activities.
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V Disclosure of Information

Since listing of the shares Arco Vara AS on the Tallinn Stock Exchange the company has been adhering to the information
disclosure requirements laid down by Tallinn Stock Exchange and in compliance with the objective of applying equal
treatment to all its shareholders.

The website of Arco Vara AS can be found at the address www.arcorealestate.com and the information targeted at
shareholders is available at the easily found section http://www.arcorealestate.com/en/investor-info/general where it is
available both in Estonian as well as in English. The issuer has disclosed on its website all the facts and assessment
pertaining to the issuer, which have been disclosed to financial analysts or other persons. Moreover, the website of the
issuer discloses information about meetings held with analysts, presentations made to analysts or investors, as well as the
time and place of presentations and press conferences intended for institutional investors, and general directions of the
issuer’s strategy. The issuer did not draw up a so-called financial calendar at the beginning of the financial year, inasmuch
as the issuer has published all the information subject to disclosure by the deadlines set forth in the relevant legislation.

On company's web page (www.arcorealestate.com) the following information is available to shareholders: Corporate
Governance Practices (CGC) report, dates, locations, agendas and other relevant information of general meetings, Articles
of Association, composition of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board; information on auditor, annual and
interim reports. On company's web page no agreements on concerted exercise of rights between shareholders are
presented because no such agreements have been concluded. The general directions of the issuer’s strategy approved by
the Supervisory Board have previously been accessible to shareholders on company's web page, but not at present,
because the strategy documents are being updated.

The company has not arranged presentations to investors or analysts directly before publishing the financial reporting and
has never published company's internal information or unpublished financial information at meetings with analysts or
investors.

VI Financial Reporting and Auditing

The consolidated financial reports of Arco Vara AS have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

The financial reports have been prepared and submitted for approval in conformity with the requirements and liabilities set
out in the Estonian Accounting Act, the stock exchange rules, the Commercial Code and other legislation.

The company publishes its annual audited accounts once a year and unaudited interim reports during the financial year; all
reports are available to shareholders on company's web page.

The meeting of the supervisory board, which discussed the auditing results, was attended by the auditor. The auditor
submitted his report, the members of the management board were not present when the results were reviewed. Minutes
were taken at the relevant meeting of the Supervisory Board.

In the notice for calling the company's annual general meeting the candidate for auditor was published, however, no
information on the candidate or the fact that the same auditor's association continues was not published. Since 2009 the
audit team works under the supervision of Ivar Kiigemagi. As the auditor has been auditing the financial results of the
company for past years, and inasmuch the supervisory board had no negative comments regarding the auditor’'s activities
the supervisory board deemed unnecessary to have a separate report on the auditor's activities be presented to the
general meeting.

Prior to signing, the draft agreement with the auditor was submitted by the Management Board to the Supervisory Board
for approval. In the mentioned agreement, the tasks, the time schedule and the remuneration of the auditor were set out
above all. The company did not disclose the amount of the fee paid to the auditor, inasmuch as, in the opinion of the
issuer, the non-disclosure thereof does not affect the reliability of the auditor’s report prepared following the auditing.

In order to better assess the company's risks and for better management, most relevant companies of the Group prepare a
budget for the next financial year, which will be approved by the Supervisory Boards or the general meetings of the
relevant subsidiary. Company's own budget and the consolidated budget will be approved by the Supervisory Board. The
company employs a controller for adhering to approved budgets and if necessary, additional internal audit services are
ordered from relevant experts.

The total internal and external audit costs of the company in 2009 were 1.7 million kroons (0.1 million euros). The
corresponding figure for 2008 was 2.3 million kroons (0.2 million euros).
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Confirmation

The Group’'s management board confirms that the management report presenis fairly the development,
performance and financial position of the company and the Group provides an overview of the main risks and
uncertainties.

Lembit Tampere
Member of the management board

24 032010
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Consolidated financial statements

Statement of management’s responsibility

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements on pages 27 io 84 of this
repor} and confirm that: '

1. the accounting policies applied on the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of Arco Vara AS (the
“Parent”) and its subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities (together referred fo as the “Group”) comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union;

2. the consolidated financial statements give a true and falr view of the financial position of the Group and of the
results of its operations and its cash flows; '

3. the Group and the Parent are going concerns.

Lembit Tampere
Member of the Management Board

«2 \// -~ :;’ i
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

EEK EUR
Note | 2008 2008 2009 2008
In thousands e e
Revenue from rendering of services E _ a0g 448 i 487 478 Caprry 31156
Sale of goods o . .'::' RNNE 5 Z?d 172 301 .
Total revenue e 6 o '?.’?3 . 659 779
Cost of sales DT o A7 ;2‘0 . Lshe1e et
Gross profit B2405 351001
Other incorme 1eees 30644
Seliing and distribution expenses 10 : ~$ 417 -13 422
_Administrative expenses o eewss -124 506
_Other expenses 9 ' . 450945 91
Operating loss ) -4:5”;_’ 153
Finance income ) 12 .
Finance expenses ) 12 0 nhenRrors ST 02
Loss before tax 1151 330
Income tax 13 i B BIT
Met logs of the period =1 180 141
Net loss attributable to: : i
Parent company's shareholders’ inferest in foss ” ; -.:'432._4 41 2 ................... -1154 956
Non-confrofling interest in loss e O -5 182
324412 -1 160 141
Other comprehensive income .
_Exchange rate differences in converting foreign company 303 -1
Total comprehensive income for the period ’ -‘32; :'1 ﬁg -1 160 178
Parent cormpany's shareholders' inferest in : IR
_comprehensive income 304 1089 -1 164 896

Non-conirofiing interest in comprehensive income

Earning per share 14
-Basic G 022
- Diluted 34z 0,22

Notes on pages 32 to 84are inseparable parts to the consolidated financial statement
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Consolidated statement of financial position

EEK ) EUR
. Note 31.12.200¢ 31.12.2008 o 81.12.2009 31.12.2008

In thousands

Cash and cash aquivalents 34 -
Financial invesiments 16 S .
Receivadles - 17 .. :.1;5"‘? 075 I
Prepayments ﬁ 883 8185 coome2 .88
Inventories . 18 TrEELT | BA94d0 . ASERA 54 289
Biologicalassets ‘ 19 - C . 3879 SR o ...235
Total current assets _ 1§16 357 1366 826 B4985 87 343
Financial investments .- O 15613 255 a8 36
Recelvables . L 6. 804 BET1 b _:' 403 e A2
investment properly o 326088 SAR7S3 21026 34088
_Property, plant and equipment 21 ’ 10845 41812 B AR 2872
Intangible assets 2% 81z e 12 4TS 52 e T9T
Total non-current assets B 362262 603966 _ -33 f53 3B 600
TOTAL ASSETS iaens 1970582 8 e 125943
_Loans and borrowings 23 605 2e9 35347 coseesr 22 587
Payabies 2 o07e __1amers o i5s0 ___ sas
Deferred income o 26 g2164 85174 s
e L A .' 12850 5917
Total current iabilities — T80 85’? - 557 185 35810
Loans and borrowings ) 23 o -::.1:96 98% ________ 44 286
Payables - 25 Uezis 4404 281
Deferred income tax liabifity _. 0 I S T 1.
Provisions . 277 . e BTA
Total non-current liakilities 294 :3_52 e T01 634 s 5 BA2
TOTAL LIABILITIES 395:153 1258819
Share capital 29 { 952 842 60 898
Share premium 29 _ o 712614 35 538
Statuiory capited reserve N 07_"‘_5.53. 31 463 201
Retained earnings o 4696 26 e 282 668 82932
Tressury shares (minus) ® . mwme s )
Total equity attributable to eguity hoiders of the o
parent S asednn  70B 159
Total aguity aiiribuiable to non-controliing interest ) ‘ R 5.".::0 ____________ 231
Total equity : 384 EFSé . 711773 45 481
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Fiy a9 4 1870 592 125943

Notes on pages 32 to 84 are inseparable parts to the consolidated financial statement
For identification purposes only
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Change in overdraft 0

0

Change in group account tiability

Interest paid

AT 261 e

Purchase of own shares

. k G R
2

Dividends paid

Income tax paid on dividends

NET CASH FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES

76 416

NET GASH FLOW

4401:485

785008

::' 3’72 574 B LT

R R e B

EEK EUR
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
in thousands SR T S, e e ———
Netprofit {fossy 324412 17180 141 eEBTEE o TA4T
Interest income and expense 12 B g0 -5 080 2098 325
Gaing and {osses on disposal of subsidiaries and s
_interests in jointly confrolled enfities iz 1385 935 41295 Bazr _ 2639
_Gains and losses on other long-ierm financial assets 12 -4 4gE 2499 A 155
Impairment losses on financial assets 12 Asess 72435 1002 4629
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 8,11 3827 7412 245 474
Goodwiil adjustment 11 10 896 8720 £86 557
Gain / loss on the sale of ;)ro;)er&y. plant and equipment
and infangible assets 2411 248 154 <16
0ss on the sale of investment property “fess 1538 R 88
ge in the fair vaiue of investment property and .
biological assets -44 466 BBB 629 -z BAZ B 35 511
Loss on_decrease of net realisable value of inventories 47 147 434272 H088 27 755
_[Exchange rate gains and losses 12 2945 ...A608 148 -295
Corporate income fax expanse BEE 12744 B BB
Operating cash flow before working capital changes -23 585 41534 -1 508 -2 857
Change in receivables and prepayments 59543 -12 481 3806 -798
_Change in inventory and biclogical assets -los43e 0 -99831 Gei1 o -B38C
Change in prepayments y B 40854 28273 2611 1879
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACT!VETIES S2EEHT 27673 e «§ 156
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and ) . T
iniangibte assets 188y 039108 . "2 499
Praoceeds from saie of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets syve o129 386 41
Acquisition of investment property s AR =200 270
Proceeds from sale of investment property 8581 32218 548 2059
Acquisition of subsidiaries and interests in jointly
controlled entities e 586 A8 8TE -87 -2 882
Proceeds from disposat of subsidiaries and interests in
jointly controfled enfites T 3se 0 -2812 2435 -186
Acquisition of other financial investments O -202 665 G -12 853
Proceeds from disposal of other financial invesiments 40416 204 621 2583 18 830
Loans granted 2t =130 158 ~135 8319
Repayment of loans granted 3878 2422 378 abBb
Interest received 4818 32328 285 2066
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 95538 _ -B2622 5108 -4 402
Proceeds from loans received 120988 312739 7733 109088
Repayment of ioans and payment of finance iease
liabifities -24 1599

45892

_Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofperiod
Increase / decrease 101485 592434 Copags 37883
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations ose 0 B )
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 34 ?‘! 382 172 574 fe 562 11 028

Motes on pages 33 to 84 are inseparable parts to the consolidated financial statement
- For identification purposes oniy
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Consolidated stalement of changes in equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

non-
Share capital ShareStatuiory capital ~ Other Trsasury  Refained Total controlling Total
pramium reserve reserves  shares  earnings interests equity
{minus)
In thoysands EEK P R B .
A 31.12.2007 o e52842 T12514 20084 37 g 1584 367 25265 1920572
Dividends declared B 0 B . “37 168 1252 38412
Change in non-controlling R
interests (from change in the S
Group's interests in subsidiaries) ¢ 0 0 0 8 o.....5 o 15217 =15247
Transfer 1o capital reserve ¢ 0 11379 0 0 -11 379 O o 9
Purchase of own shares {note 29) g 4] 90 .50 o -3992 0 -5 882 4 -3 992
Comprehensive income for the
periad - loss) g 0 9 =37 0..-1184959 1184088 -5182 1160178
At 31 December 2008 952842 792514 31463 G -3982 084 668 Fogise 0 3614 TI1TTS
Change in non-controlling ; T
intarests (from change in the o
Group's interests in subsidiaries) g 8 Y N 0 0. R 3 614
Covering of accumulated joss : R
(note 29) o 0 712514 b 0 Y 712814 - ks 0 i}
Comprehensive income for the Sln
period (-loss) e B LU Do B0s D3R4tz 324908 4 -325 109
AT 31422009 ©52 842 ] 31 463 ags 3992 SebSES 384058 B 384 050
Equity aftributabie to equity hoiders of the parent non-
Share capital ShareStatutory capial  Other Treasury  Retained Total contralling Total
premium reserve reserves  shares earnings interests equity
{minus}
In theusands ELR . e . e e e et
At 31.42.2007 60 308 45 538 1284 2 Y 13986 921 748 1815 123323
Dividends declared o 0 Q 0 0 0 2378 R BT 5
{hange in non-controlling
interests (from change in the
Group's interests in subsidiaries} b G .o 0 0 973 473
Transferto capital reserve a Yy Ter 0 g 0 0
Purchase of own shares (note 29} e 0 0 b 288 - o -2B5
Comprehensive income for the ol
period(-logg} 0 0 0 -2 ¢ 73818 S7EBYY 331 T4 48
At 31 December 2008 60 898 45 538 2011 0 -255 «62 931 45 261 o 231 Ab482
Change in non-contraling :
interests {from change in the :
Group's inferests In subsidiaries) ¢ 0 4 Y Q@ 4@ < S )
Covering of accumulated loss
(note 29} b 45538 e 0 0 45 538 0 8 0
Comprehensive income for the
period (-loss) o 0 19 0 20738 20716
At 31122008 §0 B33 2011 149 -255 ~38 128 24 BAE

Notes on pages 32 to 84 are inseparable parts to the consolidated financial statement
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Notes to the consclidated financial statemeants

1 Corporate information

These consolidated financial statements of Arco Vara AS and its subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities as
at and for the year ended 31.12.2009 were authorised for issue by the management board on 26.03.2009. Under the
Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia, the final approval of the annual report prepared by the management board
and approved by the supervisory board rests with the shareholders' generzl meeting. The consolidated financial
statements are part of the annual report, which is subject to approval by the shareholders, and they serve as a basis for
adopting the profit allocation resolution. Shareholders may decide not to approve the annual repori, which has been
prepared by the management board and approved by the supervisory board, and may demand that a new annual report be
prepared.

Arco Vara AS (the "Parent’) is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in Estonia. At the end of 2009, Arco Vara AS,
its subsidiaries and joinlly controfied entities (the "Group”) employed 163 people {2008: 388 people). The principal
activities of the Group are described in note B and 6 “Segment reporiing”. in addition to Esionia, the Group operates
mainly in Latvia and Bulgaria.

The structure of Arco Vara Group as at 31.12.2009 is presented in note 37.

2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statemerts of Arco Vara AS and its subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities have
been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. The
consolidated financial statements have been presented and submitted for approval in conformity with the requirements of
the Estonian Accounting Act and the Commercial Code.

The functional and presentation currency of Arco Vara AS is the Estonian kroon (kroon, EEK). Based on NASDAQ OMX
Tallinn AS requirements, the main statements and notes have aiso prepared in thousands euros, unless another currency
is referenced to. As the Estonian kroon is bound to the euro at a rate of 1 euro = 15.6466 Estonian kroons, no currency
exchange differences are created, however, arithmetical inaccuracies up to 1 thousand euro may occur due to
approximation.

The consolidated financial statemenis have been prepared on a historical cost method, unless otherwise indicated in note
4 *Summary of significant accounting pelicies” {e.g. certain investments, derivative financial instruments, investment
properties and hiotogical assets have been measured at fair value).

Besiz of consoiidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Arco Vara AS and its subsidiaries, combined
line by line, and the Group's interests in jointly controlled entities (joint ventures), recognised using propartionate
consolidation. The financial statements of all Group entities coincide with the calendar year. The accounting policies of
foreign Group enfities have heen adjusted, where necessary, 10 ensure consistency with the policies adopied by the
Group,

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Parent. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity under & statute or an agreement or by some other means. Control is presumed fo exist when the Parent owns,
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity.

A joint veniure is a confractual arrangement wheraby two or more parties (including the Parent) undertake an economic
activity that is subject o joint control. Joint control exists when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures are consolidated
from the date the control or joint control commences until the control or joint control ceases.

The Group's interest in a jointly controlled entity is recognised using proportionate consolidation — the Group's share of
each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a jointly controlied entity is combined with similar items in the
consolidated financial statements.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, all recelvables, liabilities, income, expenses, cash flows and unrealised
gains and losses arising from transactions between the Parent and its subsidiaries are eliminated in full. The effect of
fransactions with jointly controlied entities is eliminated to the extent of the Group's share. Unrealised losses are eliminated
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

A non-controlling interest, i.e. the portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary atiributable to equity interests
that are not owned, is separately presented in the consolidated balance sheet (within equity) and the consolidated income

statement. For identiffcation purposes onfy
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Acquisitions of subsidiaries and interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by applying the purchase method.
Under the purchase method, the acquirer's assets, fiabilities and contingent liabilities ("net assets") are recognised at their
fair values. The excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquirer's
net assets is recognised as goodwill. If the Group’s interest in the fair vaiue of the acquirer's net assets exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the Group reassesses the identification and measurement of the acquirer's assets, liabifities and
contingent liabilities and.recognises any excess remaining after that reassessment (negative goodwill) immediately as
income in the income statement. For subsaquent measurement of goodwill, see policy “Goodwill’ in note 4.

Acquisitions of non-controlling inlerests are accounted for by recognising the difference between the book value of the
share of the net assets acquired and the cost of the interest acquired as (positive or negative) goodwill. The net asseis
acquired are not re-measured 1o fair value {acquisitions of non-controlling interests are not accounted for by applying the
purchase method described in IFRS 3 Business Combinations). In case that the Group acguires a group of assets or net
assets that does not constitute a business, it allocates the cost of the group assets between the individual identifiable
assets and liabilities in the group based their relative fair values at the acguisition date.

When an interest in a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity is disposed of, the difference between the sum of the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the Group’s share in the subsidiary’s or jointly controlled entity’s assets,
fiabilities and goodwili is recognised immediately in the income statement, either as a gain in “Finance income” or a loss in
‘Finance expenses’. If control ceases {e.g. the Group's interest decreases below half of the voting power) but influence
does not cease, the remaining interest in the carrying amounts of the subsidiary's assets, liabilities and goodwill is
classified either as an investment in an associate, an interest in a jointly controlied entity, or an invastment in other
financial assets.

3 Changes in accounting policies and preseniation practice

Consolidated financial report is compiled on the basis of the principles of consistency and comparability, which means that
the Group always applies the same accounting policies and presentation practices. The accounting policies and
presentation practice are modified only in the event that this is required by new or amended International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations thereof, or If the new accounting policy andior presentation practice
provides a more objective overview of the financial standing, financial results and cash flows of the Group.

implementation of new andlor amended IFRS standards and Interpratations

The Group has implemented the following new and amended IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations in the financial
year:

IFRS 8§ Operating Segments;

Amended IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

Amended IAS 23 Borrowing Costs;

Amended IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and IAS 27 Consolidated and

Separate Financial Statements;

Amended {FRS 2 Share-based Payment;

o Amended IFRS 7 Financial Instrumaents: Disclosures;

»  Amended IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and I1AS 1 Presentation of Financia! Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obiigations Arising on Liguidation;

»  Amended IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial Instrumerds: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded Derivalives;
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes;

2 [FRIC 14 |1AS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Reguirements and their Interact
project;

¢ IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Reat Estate:

e [FRIC 16 Hedges of a Nef Investment in a Foreign Operation;

¢  Amendments to IFRSs (published in 2608 and effective since 1 January 2609).

2 & & 9

]

The most important effects accompanying the mentioned amendments are as follows:

IFRS B Operating Segments;

IAS 14 Segment Reporting was replaced by IFRS 8. The Group assumes that the operating segments based on IFRS 8 do
not considerably differ from the business segments previously defined based on IAS 4. Disclosures required by IFRS 8,
the presentation method of operating segment has been changed. The operating segment report in the annual accounts
have been adjusted with the presentation method of the quarier report.

For identification purposaes onfy
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Amended IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

The amendment under question will bring along several changes comprising new terminology and changes in the
presentation methods of equity transactions. Additionally, the standard introduces the term of staternent of comprehensive
income and new requirements to the preseniation of retrospective restatements.

Amended IAS 23 Borrowing Costs;

The amended standard sets out that all borrowing costs that are directly atiribuiable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a gualifying asset form part of the cost of that asset should be capitalised. The Group applies this
amendment, but the amendment has no financial impact for the Group as similar accounting policies have been used by
the Group eatlier.

The rest of the standards, interpretations and their amendments approved in 2009 do not have any effect fo the Group's
financial statements as the Group has no respective accounting staterment elements or transaciions that the relevant
amendments apply to.

Standarde approved, but oot vet entared into effect

The Group has not implemented the foliowing IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that are approved but not vet entered into
effect:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment amendment {appiied to reporting periods starting on 01 January 2010 or later after
approval by EU).

The amendment specifies the presentation and exient of Group internal cash-settled share-based payment {ransactions.
The amendmeni does not have any effect to the financia! condition or economic resuits as the Group has no share-based
payment transactions.

Amended IFRS 3 Business Combinations and 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (applied to
reporting periods starting on 1 July 2009 or later).

The amended IFRS 3 (IFRS 3R) sets out several changes in the accounting policies of business combinations influencing
the goodwill measurement, reporting resulis of the period the acquisition takes place, and further reporting results. 1AS
27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary {without loss of control} is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or foss.
Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary. Based on this, the standards IAS 7 Cash Flow Statements; |AS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign, |AS 28 Investments in Associates and IAS 31 Interests in Joint Veniures were amended. According to
transitional provisions, the Group will apply these amendments henceforth. Thus, the assets and liabilities obtained during
husiness combinations that tock place before the enforcement date of the standard will not be revaluated.

IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments {applied to reporiing periods starting on 01 January 2013 or later after approval by EU).
IFRS 9 will replace 1AS 39 step by step. IASE has issued the first part of the standard that established a new framework for
classifying and measuring financial assets. The Group has not yet assessed the effect of impierenting this standard.

Amended 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (applied to reporting periods starting on 01 January 2011 or later after
approval by EU).

The changes simplify the definition of related part by explaining its meaning and removing the contradictions of the
definition. Additionally, the amended standard aliows some publication exceptions for state-owned companies. The
amendment does not have any effect to the Group's financial condition of economic results, but may influence the
information published on reiated parties.

Amendment to JAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation - Classification of Rights issues (effecfive for financial
vears beginning on or after 1 February 2010).

The amendment changes the definition of a financiat liability to exclude certain rights, options and warrants. The
amendment will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group, as the Group does not have such
instruments.

Amended IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - eligible hedged items (applied to reporiing
periods starting on 1 July 2009 or later).

The amendment concerns determining the unilateral risk in an eligible hedged item and determining inflation as hedged
risk or its part in certain situations. This explains that a company can determine a certain part in the change of a financial
instrument's fair value or a change in cash flow as hedged item. The amendment does not have any effect to the financial
condition ar economic results as the Group has no such instruments.

Amendments to IFRSs

In May 2008 and April 2009 JASB issued omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with 2 view fo removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The second omnibus,
issued in April 2009, is still to be adopted by the EU. The adoption of the following amendments (all not adopted by the EU
yei) may result in changes to accounting policies but will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group:

For identification purposes only
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® IFRS & Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Disconiinued Operations. Specifies that for the groups of non-
current assets and assets held for sale that are classified as non-current asseis held for sale or discontinued
operations, only the disciosure requirements provided for in IFRS 5 apply. The disclosure requirements in other
IFRS only apply when it is specifically required for such non-current assets or discontinued operations.

® |AS 7 Staterment of Cash Flows. Specifies that only expenditures as a resuit of which asseis are presenied can be
classified as investment cash flow.
® IAS 36 Impairment of Assets The amendment specifies that the biggest cash-generating unit to which goodwill from

aequisition can be allocated Is an operating segment as defined in IFRS 8.

The rest of the amendiments by the collection of amendments do not have any effect to the accounting policies used by the
Group, its financial condition or economic resulis:

@

RS 2 Share-based Payment;

JAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemen(s;

IAS 17 Leases;

IAS 38 Infangible Assets

IAS 38 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement;
IFRIC & Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives;

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation;

®

& & @ a8 @

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (applied to reporting periods starting on 29 March 2009 or later).

The interpretation applies to service concession operators and describes the presentation of liabilities taken and righis
obtained in a concession arrangement. As no Group company is an opevator, the interpretation does not have any effect to
the Group.

Amended IFRIC 14 |AS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
(applied to reporting periods starting on 01 January 2011 or later after approval by EU).

The amendment applies to the presentation of future payments made in the event of minimum funding requirement. The
amendment has no effect to company's accounting statements as the Group has no defined benefit assets.

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners(applied to reporting periods starfing on 31 October 2008 or tater).
The interpretation describes the accounting procedure for cases where the company allocates dividends in form of non-
cash assets. The amendment does not have any effect io the Group's consolidated financial statements as the group does
not allocate non-cash assets to owners.

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers (applied {o reporting periods starting on 31 Qctober 2009 or later). The
interpretation specifies presentation of such agreements where an entity receives from a customer an item of property,
plant, and equipment that is used either to connect the customer to a network or to provide the customer with ongoing
access to a supply of goods or services {e.g. electricity, gas or water supply). IFRIC 18 does not have any effect to the
Group's consolidated financial statemenis as the Group does not have any such agreements.

IFRS 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (applied to reporting periods starting on 01 April 2010 or
later after approval by EU). The interpretation describes presentation of transactions where the financial liabilities are paid
by equity instruments.

IFRIC 19 does not have any effect to the Group's consolidated financiai statements as the Group does not have any such
transactions.

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting judgements, estmates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial siatements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and contingent labilifies.

Although estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and they are based on historical
experience and expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances, actual results
may differ from the estimates.

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the financial statements:

Classification of properties

Properties are classified as inventories, investment properties and items of property, piant and equipment both on initial
recognition and on any subsequent reclassiication based on management's intentions regarding their further use.
Realization of management's plans depends, among other factors, on resolutions adopied by other parties (e.9. changes
in the intended purpose of land, approval of detailed pians, issuance of construction permits, etc). This lessens the
accuracy of the classification.

For Identification purposes only
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Properties which are acquired for the development and subsequent sale of living environments, single residential buildings,
or residential plots, and properties which are acquired for resale in the ordinary course of business are classified ds
inveniories. - s

Properties which are held to earn operating lease rentals or for capital appreciation and properties which are held over an
extended period for an undetermined future use are classified as investment property.

Properties which are being developed for future use as commercial or business environments that wiil be et under
operating lease and commercial and business properties which are being extensively renovaled are classified as
investment properties.

Estimation uncertainty

The estimates made by management are based on historical expetience and the information available at the date the
financial statements are authorised for issue. There is a risk that the estimates applied at the balance sheet date in respect
of assets and [abilities and associated income and expenses need o be revised in the future. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments {o the consolidated financial statements
are discussed below.

Carrving value of receivables

The Group’s receivables include mostly receivables from construction division and given loans. Further details on risks
that might affect the carrying values of receivables are disciosed in note 17,

Estimates of net realisable value of inventories

The Group has severai real estate objects classified as inveniories. As at 31. December 2009 the net realisable value tests
has been performed for all significant inventories. The net realisable value test for real esiate objecis was carried out at the
same time with determination of fair value of real estate objects by using the following methods:

«  discounted cash flow analysis

s  sales comparison method

s  sales contract of the object under the law of obligations conciuded as at balance sheet date
For the most important inventories, a valuation report was ordered from an independent real estate appraiser. At
31.12.2008, the carrying amount of inventories tested and presented in net realisable value was 677,120 thousand kroons

{43,276 thousand euro). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 516,561 thousand kroons (33,014 thousand euros). The
discount rates used in assessment remained in 2009 between 11 % - 18 % and in 2008 between 12,75 % - 24 %.

At 31.12.2009, the sensitivity of the inventories testad by using the discounted cash fiow method to the key valuation
assumptions applied was as follows:

» a1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would have caused a decrease in the net realisable vaiue in an
amount of 18,384 thousand kroons {1,239 thousand euros) (end of 2008: 11,839 thousand kroons (757 thousand
euro);

s a 1,5 % percentage point decrease in the discount rate would have caused a 20,492 thousand kroons (1,310
thousand euro) increase in the net realisable value {end of 2008 11,685 thousand kroons (747 thousand euro),

= an average budgeted 5 % decrease in sales prices of apartments/plots would have caused a decrease of 70,637
thousand kroons {4,514 thousand suros) in the net realisable value. In this case, the naet realisable value would
have decreased by 37,524 thousand kroons (2,398 thousand euros) as at end 2008;

= an average budgeted 5 % increase in sales prices of apartments/plots would have caused an increase of 70,636
thousand kroons (4,514 thousand euros) in the net realisable value. In this case, the net realisable vaiue would
have increased by 37,032 thousand kroons (2,367 thousand eurcs) as at end 2008.

Additional information on inventorigs is presented in notes 8 and 18 ,19.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group assesses whether goodwill arisen on the acquisition of subsidiaries and interests in jointly conirolied entities
may be impaired (i.e. whether the carrying amount of the goodwili exceeds its recoverable amount) at least annuaily. This
assumes estimating the fair value (less costs to sell) or value in use of the cash-generaiing unit to which the goodwill has
been allocated. Value in use is defermined by estimating the future net cash flows to be derived from the cash-generating
unit and by applying an appropriate discount raie fo calculate the present value of those cash flows. impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. At 31.12.2009, the carrying amount of goodwill was 0 thousand kroons (0 thousand euro). The
corrgspending figure for 2008: 11,397 thousand kroons (728 thousand euro) . Further information on the principles and
resulis of impairment testing is provided in the present note and in note 22.

For Idenfification purposss only
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Investment property: determining the fair value

At each reporting date, investment properties are measured at their fair values. In addition to management assessment of
the fair value of an asset the Group orders valuation reports from independent valuation offices if needed. This means that
if nesded independent valuations are performed by qualifiedl independent appraisers. Fair value is determined by
reference to two basic technigues - the discounted cash flow method and the sales comparison method,

Discounted cash flow method is used for cash flow generating assets or in cases where according to management's
assessment sales comparison methed doesn’t represent fair value (for example, low liquidity of property market in the
region, lack of comparable deal flow or too fong period between comparable deal and the reporting date). in order to
calculate the present value of a properly’s future cash flows, the appraiser has io forecast the property's fulure income
{including rental per one sgm and the occupancy rate or apariment sales forecast), capital expenditure needs and
operating expenses, The present value of the future net cash flow should be found by applying a discount rate which best
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific fo the asset. At 31.12.2009, the
carrying amount of investment properiies whose fair value was determined using the discounted cash flow method was
240,558 thousand kroons {15,374 thousand euro}. The corresponding figure for 2008 was 337,367 thousand kroons
{21,562 thousand euros). Further information on measuring the fair value of investment property is provided in note 20.

At 31.12.2009, the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the discounied cash flow
meathod to the key valuation assumptions applied was as follows:

e a3 1% increase in the discount rate would have caused a 34,610 thousand kroons (2,212 thousand euro)
decrease in the fair value of investment property (end of 2008: 19,981 thousand kroons(1,277 thousand euros)
decrease);

= & 1% decrease in the discount rate would have caused a 38,224 thousand kroons {2,443 thousand euro)
increase in the fair value of investment property {end of 2008: 21,751 thousand kroons (1,380 thousand euros)
increase);

+ a5 % decrease in the forecasted net operating cash flows would have caused a 28,779 thousand kroons (1,903
thousand euro) decrease in the fair value of investment property. As at end of 2008, the fair value of investment
property would have decreased by 16,843 thousand kroons (1,076 thousand eurc);

= a5 % increase in the forecasted net operating cash flows would have caused a 29,779 thousand kroons (1,903
thousand eurc) increase in the fair value of investment property (end of 2008 a 16,959 thousand kroons (1,077
thousand euro) increase).

Sales comparison method is used in cases, where there's no cash flow at the moment or the asset is heid for future
development possibilities or for the purpose of future value appreciation. The method compares deal fiow with assets in
kind in the neighbourhood and the vaiue is determined by using the same values o land sgm value. Because comparable
deals are never identical, the value of the deal is adjusted by time, location, size and zoning rights or some other method is
applied to determine the fair value (discounied cash flow method for example}, if it should represent more logical result
according to management’s assessment.

Ssament reporting

Segment reporting is based on the grouping of structural units for the Group’s internal accounting and reporting purposas
{management accounting and budgeting). The Group’s primary reporting format is business segments. A business
segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services that are different
from those of cther business segmentis, and which operates as an independent profit cenire.

The Group’s business segments comprise:
= [evelopment. The development of residential and commercial environments and long-term investment in real estate.
s Service. Real estate brokerage, valuation and management and shori-term investment in real estate:

s Construction. General and sub-contracting in the field of general construction and environmenial engineering, and
construction supervision.

Segment revenue is revenue that is direcily aftributable to a segment and the relevant portion of the Group’s revenue that
can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. These are revenues from sales to external customers or from
fransactions with other segments of the Group. Revenue arising from transactions with companies belonging to the same
segment is eliminated.

Segment expense is expense resuiting from the operating activities of a segment that is directly attributable to the segment
and the relevant portion of the Group’s expense that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. These are
expenses relating to sales to external customers and expenses relating to transactions with other segments of the Group.
Segment expense does not include finance expenses, the Group’s general administrative expenses and other expenses
that arise at the Group level. The costs incurred at the Group ievel are allocated to a segment only if they relate o the
segment’s operating activities and they can be directly attributed to the segment on a reasonable basis. Expenses arising
from transactions with companies belonging to the same segment are eliminated.

Segment result is segment revenue less segment expenses.
For identification purposes only
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Unrealised gains and losses arising from fransactions between the Group's segmenis are not allocated to any segment but
are presented in inter-segment eliminations. Unrealised gains and iosses arising from transactions between the Parent and
a division which can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis are included in the segment resuit. Such gains and
losses may include previcusly capitalised interest expense which upon the reclassification of assets accounted for under
the cost model to assets accounted for under the fair value modet is recognised as a fair value adjustment in the period in
which the assets are reclassified,

Segment asseis are those gperating assets that are employed by a segment in its operating activities and that either are
directly atiributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on reasonable basis. Segment assets include, for
example, current assets, investment properties, property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets used in a segment’s
operating activities, If an asset's depreciation or amoriisation expense is included in segment expenses, the assei is
included in segment assets. Segment assets de not include assets used for the Group's general needs or which cannot be
directly aliocated to the segment. Assets shared by two or more segments are aliocated to those segments if a reasonable
basis for allocation exisis.

Segment liabilities are those aperating liabiiities that result from the operating activities of a segment and that either are
directiy attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment liabilities inciude,
for example, trade and other payables, accrued expenses, advances received from customers, warranty provisions and
other liabiiities related to the segment's products and services. Segment liabilities do not include loans, finance leases,
debt securities and other kabilities related to financing activities. Income tax liabilities are not included in segment liabiliies
either.

Unallocated items comprise revenue and expenses and assets and liabilities which are not directly related to any segment
and therefore cannot be aliocated to any segment.

The Group’s secondary reporting format is geographical segments. At 31.12.2009, geographical segments comprised
Estonia, Latvia and Bulgaria.

Forelgn qurrenoy

All currencies other than the Estonian kroon (the functional currency of the Parent) are treated as foreign currencies.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the foreign exchange rates of the Bank of Estonia ruling at the
date of the fransaction. Monetary assets {cash, cash equivalents and receivables) and monetary liabilities {loans and
borrowings, payables and other liabilities) denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated fo
Estonian kroons at the Bank of Estonia exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement in finance income and finance expenses respectively in the petiod in which
they arise. Non-maonetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are
transiated using the Bank of Estonia exchange rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated using the Bank of Estonia exchange rates
ruling at the date when the fair value was determined.

When the functional currency of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity differs from the Parent’s functional currency (e.g.
the functional currency of the Latvian entiies is the Latvian lais, the financial statements of the subsidiary or jointly
controlled entity are translated for consolidation purposes using foliowing exchange rates:

= the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries and jointly controlled enfities (including goodwill and fair value
adjustmenis arising on acquisition) are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date

= the income and expenses, other changes in equity, and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the period.

The exchange differences arising on translation, i.e. the differences between the rates ruling at the balance sheet date and
the weighted average exchange rates are taken directly to equity and reported in "Other reserves”, On the divestment of a
fareign entity, the relevant amounts in “Other reserves” are transferred {o profit or loss,

Ravenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of properties (real gstata)

Sales of properties are recognised when all significant risks and rewards related to the properties have been transferred to
the buyer and the Group has no obligation to perform significant additional work, In general, a sale is deemed o have
occurred when the real right contract has been signed. Payments rnade by customers before the signature of the real right
contract are recognised as deferred income.

Revenue from long-term service contracts

The revenue and expenses arising from long-term service contracts (including construction contracts) are recognised by
reference to the stage of compietion method. The stage of completion of a service is determined as the proportion that the
costs incurred until the balance sheet date bear to the estimaied total costs of the transaction. If the amount of progress
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billings as at the balance sheet date differs from the revenue determined by reference to the stage of completion method,
the difference is recognised as a payable or a receivable.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Revenue from ofher services

Revenue from the rendering of other services arises on the rendering of the service. Revenue from brokerage services is
recognised when the transaction has been completed. Rental income from investment properties is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Revenue and expenses from intermediation of utilities services (electricity, heat,
water, etc, charges) are offset against the costs of purchasing those services.

Revenue from the sale of other goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferrad to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Finance income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognised
when the Group's right to receive payment is esiablished.

Cash and cash sauivaients, cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, current accounts, demand deposiis and short-term {(up fo 3 months)
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Such assets are cash, term deposits with a maturity of up to three months and shares in money market
funds. Net cash used in operating activities are presented by using indirect method.

Financial assels

When a financial asset is recognised initiafly, i is measured at cost, which is the fair vaive of the consideration given for it.
Acquisition costs are any costs that are directly attributable © the acquisition of the asset, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, as well as any nen-recoverable levies, taxes and duties. Exceptions include
fransaction costs direcily atiributable to the acquisition of a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss which are
recognisad as an expense when incurred.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. The trade date is the date on
which the Group commits itself to purchase or sell a financial asset (e.g. the date on which the agreement is signed). A
regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or saje of a financial asset under a confract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established by reguiation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Subsequent {e initiai recognition, financial assets are classified into different categories (see below). The designation is re-
evaluated and adjusted at each financial year end. Financial assets whose reclassification is not permitted by IFRS are not
reclassified. After initial recognition, financial assets are measured as follows:

1)} financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - at their fair values;
2} held-to-maturity investments — at their amortised cost;
3) loans and receivables — at their amortised cost;

4} available-for-sale financial assets - at their fair values or, in the case of equity instruments whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, at cost.

Financial assets measured at fair valug

Financial assets that are measured at fair value are re-measured to fair value at each balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on the sale or disposal of the asset. The fair values of listed securities
are based on the closing prices of the securities and the official exchange rates of the Bank of Estonia ruling at the balance
sheet date. The fair values of unlisted securities are determined based on all available information and by reference to
comparison with the fair values of other instruments which are substantially the same and/or the discounted cash flow
analysis,

A gain or foss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset is recognised in profit or loss (in “Finance income”
and “Finance expenses” respectively). An exception is a gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset which is recognised directly in the revaluation reserve in equity. When an available-for-sale financial
asset is derecognised or determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the revaluation
reserve is removed fram equity and recognised in profit or loss. In the case of impaired items, the amount of the
curmulative loss that is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

A gain and loss arising on the disposal of financial assets measured at fair value as well as the inferest and dividends on
these assets are recognised in the income statement {in "Finance income” and “Finance expenses”).

Eor Identification purposas only
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Loans and receivables and held-fo-maturity invesiments

Loans and receivables, except those that the Group intends to sell in the near term, and held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premiurm on acquisition and any directly attributable transaction costs.

If thers is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Impairment losses on financial assets related to operating activities are charged to administrative
expenses and impairment iosses on financial assels related to investing activities are charged to finance expenses.

Financial assets that are individually significant are assessed for impairment individually. Receivables overdue for 180
days or more are considerad impaired and are expensed in full. If impairment becomes evident sooner, the asset is written
down eatlier.

If a receivable which has been written down is collected or any other event occurs which reverses an impairment loss
which has been recognised, the reversal is recognised by reducing the expense item in which the impairment loss was
initially recognised.

Interest income on loans and receivables and held-fo-maturity investments is recognised in the income statement in
“Finance income”.

Financial assets measured at cost

A financial asset measured af cost is written down fo ifs recoverable amount when the latter decreases below the asset's
carrying amount. The recoverable amount of a financial asset measured at cost is the present value of its estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment josses are
recoghnised in “Finance expenses” and afe not reversed.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
when the Group assumes the obligation to transfer the cash flows from the financial asset without material delay to a third
party to whom most of the risks and rewards associated with the financial asset are transferred.

Darivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk. Such derivative
instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date the coniract is signed. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
instrument is restated to fair value at each balance sheet date. Derivatives with a positive fair value are carried as assets
and derivatives with a negative fair value are carried as liabilities. The fair value of the Group's existing interest rate swaps
is determined by reference to the discounted cash flow method based on Reuters’ estimates of 6-month EURIBOR.

(Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in “Finance
income” and "Finance expenses” respectively except for the gains and josses on derivative instruments that qualify for
hedge accounting. In the reporting and prior periods, the Group had ne instruments that qualified for hedge accounting.

Treasury shares

Own equity mstruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain
or loss recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or canceliation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised in the other capital
Feserves.

inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are initially recognised at their cast of conversion. The cost of conversion includes all
direct and indirect production costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Production
overheads are allocated to the costs of conversion based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. Other
inventories are initially recognised at cost. The cost of inventories includes all direct and indirect costs incurred in bringing
the inventaries to their present location and condition. The cost of properties carried as inventories includes, among other
items, the borrowing costs {interest charges, amortisation of contract fees, elc) incurred in financing the construction of the
properties. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the construction of the underlying asset is complete. Borrowing costs
related to registered immovable properties and aparliments treated as movable properties are added to the carrying
amounts of the assets uniil a permit of use has been issued.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. As an exception, the cost of registered
immovabhle properties and apartments treated as movable properties is assigned by specific identification of their individual
costs.

In the balance sheet, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. inventory write-downs fo net realisable value are recognised under “Cost of sales” in the
income statement.

For identificatioh purposes onfy
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Invasiment nroperty

investment praperty is property {land or a building or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services of for administrative purposes. In addition, investment property
includes properties which are held over an extended period for an undetenmined future use. Land and bulldings acquired
for development and resaie are carried as inventories. Properties being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties (commercial buildings) and buiidings treated as movable properties {commercial buildings under
renovation) are carried as property investments.

An invesiment property is measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Transaction costs that are direclly atiributable {o acquisition include notary’s fees, stamp duties, advisors’ fees and other
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properiies are measured using the fair value model. The fair value of
investment property reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date,

In addition to management assessment of the fair value of an asset the Group orders valuation reports from independent
valuation offices ¥ needed. This means that i needed independent valuations are performed by gualified independent
appraisers. The following vaiuation methods are applied:

- Discounted cash flow method is used for cash flow generafing assets or in cases where according to
management's assessment sales comparison method doesn’t represent fair value (for example, low liguidity of
property market in the region, lack of comparable deal flow or too long period between comparable deal and the
reporting date). In order to calculate the present value of a property’s future cash flows, the appraiser has o
forecast the propaity’s future income (including rental per cne sgm and the occupancy rate or apartment sales
forecast), capital expenditure needs and operating expenses. The present value of the fultre net cash flow
should be found by appiying a discount rate which best reflects the current market assessments of the time vaiue
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Discount rate is estimated based on market average capital
structure, not based on the asse! structure.

- Sales comparison method is used in cases, where there’'s no cash flow al the moment or the asset is held for
future development possibilities or for the purpose of future vaiue appreciation. The method compares deal flow
with assets in kind in the neighbourhood and the value is determined by using the same values to land sgm vaiue.
Because comparable deals are never identical, the value of the deal is adjusted by time, location, size and zoning
rights or some other method is applied to determine the fair value (discounted cash flow method for example), if it
should represent more icgical result according to management's assessment.

- sales contract of the object under the law of obligations concluded as at balance sheet date for properties that
have been sold at balance sheet date under the law of obligations when the real right contract has not yet been
concluded, the fair vaiue is based on the sales price sat out in the sales contract under the law of obligations. The
sales price in the contract under the law of obligations is only used for determining the fair value if the Group has
a reasonabie assurance that the sales contract under real right will be concluded under same conditions {e.g.
buyer has made after the balance sheet date a considerable prepayment or the real right contract has been
concluded after the balance sheet date, but before approving the financial statement by the Management Board).

Gain or loss on change in fair value is recognised in the income staiement in “Other income” or “"Other expense” as
appropriate.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the propetty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the period of the retirement or disposal {in “Other income” or “Other
expenses” respectively).

Transfers to and from investment property are made when there is a change in use (IAS 40.57). From the date of transfer,
an asset is accounted for using the policies applied to the group of assets to which it has been transferrad. For a transfer
from invesiment property to inventories or property, plant and eguipment, the propery's deemed cost for subseguent
accounting is its fair value at the date of transfer.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property, any positive difference between the
fair value and carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer is recognised in the revaluation reserve in equity. Any
negative difference is recognised in the income statement under depreciation expense. When a property is transferred
from inventories to investment property, any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement in “Other income” or "Other expense” as appropriate.

Biolegica!l assets

A living animal or plant s recognised as a biological asset when it is held to obtain economic benefits and its fair value or
cost can be measured reliably. A biclogical asset is measured on nitial recognition and at each balance sheet date at its
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. If an active market exists for a biological asset, the quoted
price in that market is used as a basis for determining the fair value of that asset. If an active market does not exist, the fair
vaiue of an asset is determined using the discounted cash flow methaod.

On measuring the quantity of plant production, the Group uses 15 sample areas of 77 cm x 77 cm (2 times 2 planting
boxes) or 0.593 mZ per each 100 m2. All living plants on those areas are counted and the average of the sample areas
calculated. Based on this information, the number of plants per 1 m? is identified and multiplied with the area of all planting
boxes.

For identification purposss only
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Biological assets are classified into consumable and bearer biological assets. All biclogical assets in the consolidated
balance sheet are consumable biological assets which have been classified into mature and immature biological assets
{see Note 18). For the determination of fair value, biological assets are grouped according to significant attributes (age,
species, and degree of maturity). For each group, a period of sale, sales revenue (based on the market prices prevailing
during the season) and sales costs are estimated. Fair vaiue is determined using the discounted cash flow method.

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a biological asset is recognised in the income staternent in
operating profit in the period in which it arises.

Broperiy, plant and scuipment

Assets are recognised as items of property, plant and equiprnent when their useful life extends beyond one year. An item
of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to its acquisition. The cost of properties which are carried
as ltems of property, plant and eguipment includes borrowing costs (interest charges, amortisation of contract fees, efc)
incurred in financing the construction of the properties. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences at the daie the
construction of the asset begins and ceases when the asset is complete. Borrowing costs are only capitaiised for qualifying
assets, L.e. assets that necessarily {ake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale

After recognition, an itfem of properly, plant and equipment is carried at cost fess any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

If an item of property, plant and equipmeni consists of significant parts that have different useful lives, the pars are
accounted for separately. Each part of a component is assigned a depreciation rate that corresponds to its useful life.

Subsequent expenditure on an item of property, plant and equipment {e.g. the costs of replacing a part of an item) is
added to the carrying amount of the item, provided that it mests the following criteria: (a) i is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group; and (b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The canmying
amounts of the parts that are replaced are derecognised. All other subsequent expenditures relfated to property, plant and
equipment are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is assigned a depreciation rate that corresponds to its useful life. The foliowing annual depreciation rates are
applied:

= Buildings and structures 2-18 %
¢  Plant and equipment 8-20 %
= \ehicles 15-25 %
e  Other equipment and fixiures 20-40 %

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated until their residual value exceeds their carrying amount. The
residual value is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from the disposal of the asset if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Depreciation methods, depreciation rates and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. When measurement
bases are revised, the revisions are applied prospectively.

The carrying amounts of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when there is evidence that
the carrying amount of an asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Impairment testing is described in more detail below
{see the policy “impaiment of assets”).

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in the income staiement in “Other income” or “Other expenses”, as appropriate, in the period
in which the itern is derecognised.

ltems of properiy, plant and equipment whose sale within the next 12 months is highly probable, are reclassified to non-
current assets held for sale. Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the balance
sheet and their depreciafion is discontinued. A non-current asset held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Gioodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost. Goodwill is the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirer's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities (net assets) recognised at the date of acquisition.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each cash-generating unit or
group of units to which goodwili is allocated is not larger than a segment in the Group’s primary reporting format.

For identification purposes oy
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Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually, at the end of the financial year or more frequently It events or
changes in estimates indicate that the carrying amount of goodwili may be impaired. Impairment is determined by
measuring the recoverable amount of the cash-gensrating unit to which the goodwill has heen allocated. An impairment
less is recognised when the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is less
than the carrving amount of the unit. Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in “Administrative expenses” in the
income statement,

Other intangible assets

Other acquired intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are measured
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

intangible assets are divided into assets with finite and indefinite useful iives. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (generally three to six years). Amortisation expense is
recognised in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the underlying asset. The
amortisation periods and amortisation methods of intangibie assets with finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year
end, Changes in the expected useful life of an asset and the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and are applied prospectively.

Intangible assefs with indefinite useful lives are not amoriised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life is reviewed annually fo determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite life assessment
for that asset. If not, the change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate on a prospective basis and the
asset is subjected to amortisation.

intangibie assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the level of the cash-
genersting unit. The carrying vaiues of intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment when there is
avidence that the carrying value may not be recoverabie. If an impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount of an
intangible asset is lower than its carrying amount, the asset is written down fo its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the income statement similarly to amortisation expenses, i.e. they are grouped according to the use of
the underlying assets. Impairment tesfing is described in greater detail in the section “Impairment of assets”.

mpairment of nonfinencial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an
indication exists or af isast once a year (i so required by IFRS), the Group measures the asset's recoverable amount.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable armount, the asset is written down, either individually or as
part of a cash-generating unit, to its recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the present value
of its estimated future cash flows (value in use) and its fair value less costs to sell. In measuring value in use, the
estimated cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where necessary, the assistance of
independent experts is used. Impairment josses, including impairment losses for cash-generating uniis are recognised in
the income statement in other expenses or in depreciation and amortisation expense in the pericd in which they are
incurred.

if there is evidence that an impairment loss recognised in prior years no longer exists or has decreased, the impairment
loss is reversed. impairment losses and prevailing circumstances are reviewed at least annually at each reporting date.
The increased carrying amount of an asset aftributable fo a reversal of an impairment loss may not exceed the carrying
amourt that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised.
The reversal is recognised in the same item in which the impairment loss was initially recognised,

Mon-controliing sharsholders’ put epltions

One non-controlling shareholder of the Group entities has effective put options, which grant the non-controlling
shareholders the right to sell, and the Group — the obligation to purchase the shares of stock or membership shares held
by the non-controfling shareholders. In the case of one shareholder agreement the option exercise price was the amount
equalling the market value of the said shares. In the case of other shareholder agreement, the option exercise price was 2
pro rata share of the book value of the company’s equity.

In compliance with 1AS 32 paragraph 23, the Group recognised financiai liabilities for the present values of the redemption
amounts of the options. The liabilities are measured based on the market value (i.e. adjusted equity) or book value of the
entities in which the non-controlling shareholders have an interest at the balance sheet date, as appropriate in accordance
with the contractual arrangements. Upon initial recognition, the non-controfling shareholders’ interests in the adjusted or
hook equity are recorded as current liabilities and adjustments to retained earnings. Subsequent gains and losses atising
from changes in the carrying amounts of the financial liabilities are recognised in the income statement in “Finance
income” and “Finance expenses” respectively,

As at 31.12.2009 the option provided by the shareholder agreement is effective but the fair vaiue of the option is 0 {2008:
0).
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Financial Habilfties

All financial liabilittes (frade and other payables, loans and borrowings, accrued expenses, bonds, and other short and
long-term liabilities) are initially recognised at cost. The cost of a financial liability includes all transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amoriised cost (except for
financial abilities held for trading which are measurad at their fair value).

As a rule, the amortised cost of a short-term financial liability equals its nominai value. Long-term financial liabilities are
initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received (less the transaction charges). Thereafter, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expenses on financlal liabilites are
recognised under “Finance expenses” in the income statement on an accrual basis except that interest expenses on
financing the development of assets (properties carried as inventories, investment properties, and items of property, plant
and equipment) are capitalised and added to the carrying amount of the asset from the date the development of the asset
commences to the date the development is complete.

A financial liability is classified as current when it is due to be setiled within 12 months after the balance sheet date or the
Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date. Financial liabilities which are due o be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date are classified as
current even i an agreement fo refinance on a long-term basis is completed after the balance shest date and before the
financial staiements are authorised for issue. When a contract is breached on or before the balance sheet date with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand, the liability is classified as current.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelied or expired.

Frovisions and contingent Habilitles

A provision is recognised only when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Promises, guarantees and other commitments that may transform into obligations under certain circumstances (which
have not yet occurred) are disclosed as contingent iiabilities in the notes to the financial statements.

Present obligations arising from past events which according io management's judgement will not realise or cannot be
measured relizbly are also disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Lenses

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset {o the lessee is
ctassified as a finance lease. All cther leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases related to assets acquired are recognised as asseis and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease. Assets acquired with finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful fife of the
asset. Assets leased out under a finance lease are recognised in the balance sheet and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. L.ease payments made are apportioned between finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability and lease payments received are apportioned between finance income and repayment
of the principal. A constant periodic rate of interest is applied throughout the iease term.

Asseis subjeci to operating leases are recognised in the lessor's balance sheet. Operating lease receipts and payments
are recognised as income and expense respectively on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Statutory capital regserve

According to the Commercial Code, the statutory capital reserve has to amount to at ieast 10 % of the Parent's share
capital. Based on thig, the Parent has to transfer at least 5 % of its net profit for the financial year to the capital reserve
until the required level has been achieved. The capital reserve may not be distributed as dividends but it may be
used for covering accumulated losses if the latter cannot be covered with unrestricted equity, and for increasing share
capital through a bonus issue.

Income tax

Income tax assets and liabilities and income tax expense and income comprise current and deferred items. Current tax is
recognised as a short-term asset or liability and deferred tax is recognised as a long-term asset or liability.

Parent company and subsidiaries and joiritly controlled entifies registered in Estonia

Pursuant to the Estonian income Tax Act, companies do not have to pay income tax on their eamings (profit for the
financial year). instead, income tax is levied on profit distributions (dividends). From 31 Becember 2007 the tax rate is
214/79 of the amount distributed as the net dividend. Income tax resulting from payment of dividends is recognised in the
income statement as expense upon declaration of dividends (emergence of the payment obligations).
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As a result of the specific nature of the taxation system Estonian registered entities will not incur deferred income tax
claims or liabllities. The contingent income tax liability, which would atise on the distribution of retained earmings as
dividends, is not recognised in the balance sheet.

Latvian, Lithuanian and Bulgarian subsidiaries and jointly controlied entities

In Latvia, Lithuania and Bulgaria the profit eamed by companies is subject to income tax. The tax rate is 15 % in Latvia,
15 % (in 2008) and 20 % (in 2009) in Lithuania, and 10 % in Bulgaria. Taxable income is identified by adjusting profit
before tax for the temporary and permanent differences permitied by the local tax laws.

in the case of foreign subsidiaries, deferred income {ax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax asset is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. . :

nvestments in subsidiaries and jointly controlied snififes In the Perent's unconsofivated fnanciel sistemgnis
prasented in scoordance with the Esfonian Acoounting At

The Parent's unconsolidated primary financial staterments {note 38 represent supplemeniary information which is
presenied in accordance with the Estonian Accounting Act and they do not constitute separate financial statements as
defined in 1AS 27.

In the Parent's unconsoiidated primary financial staternents, investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are
measured using the cost model. This means that the investment is initialty recognised at cost, which is considered equal to
the fair value of the consideration given for it, and thereafier measured at cost less any impairment losses.

Invesiments are tested for impairment at each financial year end or whenever there is any indication that an investment
may be impaired (see policy “impairment of assets”). lmpairment losses are recognised in “Finance expenses” in the
income staternent.

Dividends received and receivable from subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are recognised in "Finance income”
when the right to receive payment has been established. The dividends distributed from the retained earnings accumulated
by a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity before the date of acquisition are not recognised as income. Instead, such
dividends are recognised as a reduction of the investment.
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& Segment reporting by business segmenis

The Group’s business segments comprise:
Service: Real estate brokerage, valuation and management and short-term investiment in real estate;
Development: The development of residential and commercial environments and long-term investment in real estate.

General and sub-confracting in the field of general construction and environmental engineering, and construction
supetrvision.

Inter-segment transactions are performed on an arm’s length basis and priced similarly to external transactions. A major
portion of inter-segment fransactions is performed by the Construction segment and the Service segment who supply the
Development segment with construction and brokerage services. On the supply of construction services, the Consiruction
segment adds a 0 %-5 % profit margin. The price of brokerage services is 2.5 %-5 % and for bigger objecis and state
awards 1 %-1.5 % of the cost of the brokered property in all markets.

Develop-
Saegmeant ment Service Construction Eliminaiions Consolidated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 20038 2009 2005 2008 2008
n thousands EEK - R
External ; .
Jevenwe o IB1358 212589 20415 93708 242 849 363 604 G _ .0 o amaTIE BB9TRY
Change TR ~68%  -19% 3% 83% . LB 9%
Other external R - s
income S135051 29109 er 1817 o7 346 L 136865 31272
Inter-segment - R
revenue and -7% RN
other income LAB9T 6831 BBE1 33238 82914 A0 2e 822 ol 630
Total revenue ] o L
and other N 76 e
dncome - Z66G40 246375 0 38043 104106 - ¢ 277204 416764 -40 268 822 541588 690423
‘Segment B ) o
result _ -0 288 885 082 47 884 A8 112 6274 <10 544 -2 581 L4718 273
Unaliocated R - s
expenses LR 0 o .89 5 0 -igeal 20444
B : -1 049
Operating profit L Y L o 4 ST eE 77
incl. write down ' ' -
ofinventory = = . -142847 434272 1308 0 0 0 2008 0 . =142147 434272
incl. investment S
property . T
_revaluation 550988 - ~3145 4841 SPETE 0 S0 0 Lo44 486 -BEEE29
incl, : T
depreciation of - :
s BET B30 -2048 2665 2239 R . ~41E 13819
G g -4884 :' o «10_895 B892
0 o 0 B L8046 76089
0 6 0 . S 0. -197 073 _ 177702
Ry o ¢ o __...8 SR 0 E68 | -8B11
Met loss for o . -1 160
the pertod 0 & 0 ] e & 0 -324 412 141
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Annuel reporl 2008 { Translation

Develop Constru
Segment ment Bervice ction Eliminations Consolidated

2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2008

In thousands
EUR i
Externa ! e
revenue G396 13586 qgat 5988 IBEEY | 22503
Change B 49% B6% 19%  C-ui | 83%
Other external _' L .

income CBEX 1860 - SET
inter-segment : i o
revenue and
other income
Total revenue
and other BT . R
income 17041 __ 15748 2432 6853 177i6 26636 . 2576 4910 3613 44127

Segment S L A N .
resuit (W5434 62858 VL1088 -3080 . sdD 401 oc B4 185 -7 51% -B5 783
Unatlocated B e E R

0.0 e 0 6 .0 oto o -vass 1807

o LT R i 0 IR o BTEG 67088
incl. write PR L

down of :

..... fvemtary - <9930 27786 27755
inel.

investment .
property . P SR .
revaluation 3144 35215 =201 297 et o
incl.

depreciation of :
fixed assets -58 -121 ~B% 131 1 i )
Inci. goodwil : L PR AR

impairment o 0 o =312 680 256 oo D 0 - gasts 568
Finance : ; IR : o

ncome 9 0. L o g T . S BTE 4883
Finance ) :.. : KRR s !

expenses LU R o - o, .0

Income tax I v

expense g Y
Net loss for

the period ) ] 4]

LR8I0

-890

O SV azses 11357

-583

o O a3 74145

EEK EUR
Agsets 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

in thousands

Service N 10450 ... 21195
Development " i254069 1610805
_Gonstruction o BTEM4 101633
Eliminations ' 431528 146758
Unallgcated assets areTiz L

1385
103 511
B 496

L9380

23981

Total assets U qavewis 4970 592 125 843

EEK EUR
Liabilities 31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2¢09 31.12.2008

In thousands

Lodkds 0 aTad
LARTATS

Development
Construction

_Unaliocated fiabilifes

Total liabilities 1258 319'"?
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6 Segment reporting by gecgraphical segments

Revenue b
customer’sylocaticm Service Development Construction Eliminaticns Total

and business 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
segments

In thousands EEK

Esionia 25 723 50019 113280 147621 . 208859 184932 B2588 64993  RI5u4 317579

Latvia BE218 21 842 18271 71034 - 65837 231486 - -3 059 -2 533 BT 45T 321829

Lithuania g 5750 0 0 0 0 0 5750

0 0 tode 8633
2852 3036 3414 4726

Ukraine 1042 8 633 G 0 . ¢

Bulgara Lo hes T2 e LR R
Romania _ U N A SO S
0

G 0 0 2127

Eliminaions SRR B o 0 0 -ziee 865

0
Total revenue 37 244 94724 131583 219188 274730 416418 38900  7OSE2 404723 658779

Revenue by . . N
customer's location Service Development Construciion Eliminations Yotal

and business 2009 2008 2009 2008 2069 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
segmenis

Jnthousands EUR e N
Estoria 1544 3187 7240 6435 13 348 11819

20150 20297

latvie oo PST T TR A0 Em NI

thuania o0 36T L e 0 6 %67
L7 552 3 0

O Q 87 552

R L

Hiermine

Buigarie 23 M Te 3

Romania D‘ _— 10%, 6 32.

0 0 0 136

c

.

0: . -180 -194 199 302
- : SR

0

&oe e

Efiminations } - -55 ~138 ¢ J ¢ ~139 -55

Total revenue 2380 6055 8410 14010 17562 26614 2486 4461 25867 42218

Assets by geographical EEK EUR
location 31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008

in thousands

Estonia 814 746 999 969 52071

Latvia R 216658

B 13 847

Lithuania 5178 .16800 B0
Ukrain et 6 .28 o

Buigaria Arioee | ..B14438 07

Romanta 2450 .5 LT
Eliginations <8580 215181 ~18 786

Unaliocated assets ] 178712 374 927 11422

Total assets 1375218 1970 592 88 148 125 843
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7 Changes in structure of Arco Vars Group
7.4 Zeope of consclidation

Estonia Latvia Lithuania Ukraine Bulgaria Romania Total
Subsidiaries
At31.12.2008 . 15 8 2 e 2 1 28
Acquisitions ‘ . . 0 1 0 1
Disposals . 2 o 6 T S AU A
At 31.12.2009 13 5 2 1 4 1 26
Jointly controlled
VBIHHS et
LAzt 122008 15 2 t L0 8 LD 7
Acquisitions S 0 Y 0 ¢ O o
Disposals 4 0 0 G .0 0 5
At 31.12.2009 8 2 6 0 o 0 8
Associates (noteonsolidated)
AL3NI22008 e B . e
Acgulsitions o 14 0 4 e
Disposale T 9. L9 Lo 0. ol
At 31,12.2009 1 0 0 0 0 1

At 31.12.2008, the Group’s consolidated entities broke down between countries as follows: 19 in Estonia (2008: 30), 7 in
Latvia (2008: 8), 2 in Lithuania {2008: 2}, 1 in Ukraine (2008: 2}, 4 in Bulgaria (2008: 3) and 1 in Romania (2008: 1).

in the 12 months of the year 2008 the total number of consofidated entities decreased by nine, incl. one subsidiary and 4
jointly controfled entities was merged with another company of the Group, one subsidiary was founded (Note 7.4) and four
subsidiaries and two jointly controlled entities were sold (Note 7.2).

The structure of Arco Vara Group is presented in nofe 37.

The effect of interests in iointly controlled entities on the consolidated income statement and balance shest:

EEK EUR
As at 31 December or for the year 2008 2008 2009 2008

In thousands

Revenue and other income RIS 37435 2073 L2791
Poeas = - -
Finance income. : . E- e '_'-:392 25 . : 1265

Finance expenses : : 3535 . 194

Current assets e e o 3 76‘472

.......................................... 176 657 RSt 11280
Non-currentassets : ?'E'ng'_?‘@ﬁ e 23 862 LeeTs 27977
Current Hiablitties e ' 2%:??.5"1'33 e 12627 © B ATE 807
Nor-current liabifities 16 405 250 525 ' 65 16 011

The most significant jointly controlled entities include HCE OU (owning the Ahtri 3 development project in Tallinn) and
Nami SHA in Bidumuiza {owns the BiSumuiZa 2 development project in Latvia).

On 19.04.2002 Arco Investeeringute AS, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, increased its share capital in the subsidiary Arco
Devslopment 514 from 80 % 10 99,8 %.

For identification purposas only
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Arnuat rgport 2

Companies belonging o Arco Vara Growug:

Group’s ownership interest

Company Domicile 31.12.2008 31,12,2008
%
JSBervicesegment
Subsidiaries ; :
Arco Rea! Estate EOOD 163 oo
Arco Real Estate AS _Estonia 100 160
Arco Ukraina Valdused OU" Estonia 75
_Arce Vara Kirnisvarabiiroc’ Estonia we o 100
Adepto SIA" _Latvia E=h) 80
. Arco Real Estate SIA' _Lawia 80 80
Arco Neruhomist TOV' Ukraine said 75
Group's ownership interest
Company Domicite 31.12.2009 31,12.2008
e e
Development segment S -
Subsidiaries
Arco Invest EOOD Bulgariz 100
Facility Management EQOD’ Buigara nia
oo Project E00D' Buigasa o 108
~ ' Estonia Ho
__Argo Investeeringute AS Esfonia S8 100
............................ Arco Vasa Kinnistute AS" Estonia . mergeg 100
Arco Vara Puukool OU' Estonia : édé_d 100
_ Areo Vara Riia Valdused O 100 ‘
Kerperon OU' _ Estonia 100 100 .
Kcide AS' Estonia 100 _ 100
Parny Turg O Estonia_ 100 100
Waldrop Investments QU _Estonia 100
Wilson Kinnisvara OU' Estonia e LY
AD Saulkrast! SIA' Lajvia 83
. Airc0 Development SIA” Laivia . 80
Ulmana Gatves Nami SIA' Latvia 80
Arco invest UAB’ . Lthuania 100
Arco Developraent UAB' _ Lithuania 508 100
Arco Capital SR Romania 100 100

Arco investments TOV

Jointly controfled entities

Arco HCE OU ... EStonia 50 L 500
Arco Vara Arenduse OU’ Estonia 50 50
Arco Vara Saare Kinnistud Estonia 50 50
Arco Arikeskus QU Estonia sold 50
Chalweli GU’ JEstonia merged 50
Kodukita U’ Estonia 5 50
........................ Noland Grupp OU' Esto merged 50
Pérnu Efumaja 00 _Estonia 50 50
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Arwnint reporn 2H08{ “winnian Driginal )

.. Redman Invest OU’ Estonia cmerged o B0
Estonia merged . 50
Tallinna Olimpiapurjespordikeskus As' Estonia o : s.aéd 50
Var d Kinnisvara OU' Estonia 334 33,4
BisumtiZas Nami SIA’ Latvia 49,83 40
. Sporting Riga SIA' lawia 4988
Associate e
Gitmor Grupp Qi {in the process of
liguidation)1 Estonia closing 20
_JJiri Arendus OU' Estonia -
Construction segment
Subgidiarles i
Arco Ehitus OU Estonia W 100
_ Arco Constiuction SIA' Latvia sld 58
Termpera Ehitus O Estonia bané(mpied 55
' Shareholding through subsidiaries,
7.2 Bisposals of Interest In subsidizries and jointly controlled entities
In 2008, Fhe Group disposed of interests in the following
companies
% EEK EUR
Company Interest disposed of by Sales price Gain or loss on Sales price Gain or loss on
the Group disposal (notes disposal {notes
12 12}
&in WOUSBALS e e e e
Arco Vara Puukaol OU' 160 800 -4 771 38 -308
Arco Ukraina Vaidused OUF 89,66 4 1120 v 7
AcoConstarcion SIA® 55 e 2100 2B 70 -
Jointly controlled entities” R
Talinna Olimptapurjespordi keskus OU 50 37 500 -82 842 2397 -5 298
Arco ArikeskusoG ) ) 50 12000 . -10819 767 -691
Floristen Group QU 378 . 5500 40 746 382 2604
Total 56 704 -138 025 3624 -8 821

'On 18.09.2009, Arco Vara AS sold its 100 % holding in Arco Vara Puukool OU (& 100 % Arco Vara AS subsidiary), which
net hook value was 40 thousand kroons (3 thousand euros), see alse Note 35, }
2 On 08.12.2009, Arco Vara AS soid 75 % of its holding in Arco Ukraina Valduste OU which book vaiue was 150 thousand

kroons (10 thousand euros}, see also Note 36.

*0On 29.12.2009, Arco Ehitus U, a subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, sold 55 % of its holding in Arco Construction SIA which
book value was 80 thousand kroons (5 thousand euros), see also Note 36. ;

“Arco Vara AS transferred 100 % of its holdings in Tallinna Olimpiapuriespordikeskuse AS and Arco Arikeskuse O[’J‘,
which made up 50 % of the holding or share capital of both companies, and 75 % of ifs holding in Floriston Grupp OL},
which made up 37.5 % of the holding of the company. Arco Vara wilt maintain a 12.5 % holding in Flotiston Grupp OU.
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In 2008, the Group disposed of interests in the following companies

% EEK EUR
Company interest disposed of by Sales price Gain or igss on Sales price Gain or joss on
the Group disposal {note disposal {note 12)
12}
O S aNS
subsédlar‘es e - L o S—
Arco Real Estate umai 100 1 3170 0 -203
Arco Reai Estate Consulting SRL® . B 1. 4487 0 287
Divestment of shares in Taliinna
Linnaehituse AS - acquisition of shares
in Kolde AS and Kerperon OLF S 80 . de94s  Ass8 8w
Jointly controlied entities ] o .
Plavnieku Cenrs SIA* ST Lanase 3047 AN 194
AVEC Asset Management AS® . 50 35708 -38 007 2282 -2 428
Total - 58 785 41 295 3820 -2 638

' On 4 December 2008 the Group sold its holding in the company IKAS Projekt UAB (former business name Arco Real
Estate UAR)

¢ On 30 December 2008 the Group executed a contract of purchase and sale of 100 % of the ordinary shares of S.C.L-
Base Project $.R.L {former business name Arco Real Estate Consulting SRL) that was notarised in Romania on 22.01.09.
The transaction is recognised in 2008.

® Note 7.4
* On 5 December 2008 the Group soid its holding in the jointly contrelled entity Plavenieku Centers SIA. The sales price of
the stake was 11,132 thousand kroons (711 thousand euros) The buyer of the shares was Plavenieku Cenirs SIA itself.

® On 20 June 2008 the Group disposed of its interest in the jointly controlled entity AVEC Asset Management AS. The
sales price of the stake consisted of an immediate payment of 35,708 thousand kroons (2,282 thousand euros), and
deferred payment equalling 25 % of the amount payable upon dissolution of Explorer Property Fund AB. According to the
assessment of the management board of the Group the value of the said claim as at 31.12.2009 amounts to 0 kroons (0
euros) and 31.12.2008 to 0 kroons (0 euros).

The effect of the disposals on the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity was as follows:

EEK EUR

Effect of the disposal of subsidiaries on
the Group’s assets and labilities 2009 2068 2009 2008

In thousands

Cash and cash equivalents - CoeB8E 159 UL

Other current assets ) o =20 222 -1 282 -89

Non-current items - 5018 385

nvestrnent property (noie 20} 60 -4 .
_Froperty, plant and equipment (note 21) -6 381 -8 e 2101
Intangible assets (note 22) 500 a2 -7

Current loans and berrowings -3 730 -238 330

Other current liabillies 26 995 NTE 184,

Non-current foans and herrowings : 4T3 -30 -590
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EEK EUR

Effect of the disposal of interests in jointly
controlled entities on the Group’s assets 2009 2008 2009 2008
and liabilities

_In ihousands

.Cash and cash equivalents — 4 513 19 118

Othercurentasssts 1428 8394

Inventories -4deg 13143
nvestment property {note 20) arenst D

Property, plant and equipment (nete 21) TE 340

intangible assets (note22y 6 -4 209

Current Payables 7858 51T 488 ...7B08
Nen-current liabilifies v DR 218 0 880 o
7.3 Acguisitions from non-controlling shareholders

incraasing the share capital In BiSumuiza Nami SIA

On 14.04 2008 Arce invesieeringuie AS, & subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, increased #s share capital in the joint company
BifumuiZa Nami SiA from 40 % 1o 49.38 %. The share capital was increased by non monstary contribution. After the
transaction, the 50.0 % owner of BiSumuiZa Nami 3IA is SIA Linstow Ballic, owner of 49.38 % shares s Arco
invastearinguie AZ, and owner of 0.62 % shares iz SIA Mazais Baltezers. As a result of the transaction SIA Mazeis
Baltezers has a termless option to by from Arco Investesringute AS a2 8.38 % share capital at nominal price.

Impact of increase in share capital to the Group:

EEK EUR
UIROUSENAS st e s
Cashandcashequivalents B i 1 4_54 B, -
Receivables e 8
inventories " 806
Current liabilities 4

Non-current iiabilities

As a result of the share swap transaction that took place in the beginning of April 2008 the Group swapped the interests
held in subsidiaries, and as a result of the transaction the Group holds 100 % of the membership shares and shares of
stock in Kerberon OU and Kolde AS. in the said transaction the Group disposed of the shares of Tallinna Linnaehituse AS.

EEK EUR
Interest divested / Costof Gain/loss onthe Cost of Gain /loss on
acquired transaction  fransaction {note transaction the transaction
12} {note 12)
In thousands

Divestment of shares in Talinra Linnaehituse
AS -80 % 12,943 -1,084 gt -70
Acquisition of shares in Kerberon CU 16.63 % 10,198 -6857 k52 .42
_Acguisition of shares in Kolde AS 10.71 % 3,101 218 198 14
Total -1,533 -98

7.4 Establishment of companies

On 18.08.2009 the division of Arco Vara Puukool GU, a 100 % subsidiary of Arco Vara, entered into force. This transaction
separated the principal business of Arco Vara from its ancillary activities, i.e. property develaopment from production of
forestry plants. The newiy separated entity, Arco Vara Ankmnlstute OV, being a 100 % subsidiary of Arco Vara AS was
filed with the commercial registry. Arco Vara Arikinnistute QU owns in the city of Tartu one-half of the property situated in
Turu 34a. The Group established no entities in 2008.

On 16.01.2009 Arco Investeeringute AS, a 100% subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, established a company called Arco Facility
Management 00D,
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__________________________ — £l %JQNST&Y (y




Aroo Vars AS

.

Annust raport 2008 Transiation of the

Notes to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

8§ Cost of sales
EUR
2009 2008 2009 2008
In thousands . -
Costofpropeliessold . 7313 ...-148856 BEEG
Cost of consfruction services purchased ~205 216 =308 018 ~13118
_Management and administration costs -8 818 -15 336 -1 082 -980
Personnel expenses 96428 . TE146 2245 4803
Vehicle expanses -4 841 4838 =88 309
ion (notes 21, 22) AR 2A18 -H14 -155

Value decrease of inve note 4, 18) L -14R 347 CB0BE 2T TEE
_Other expenses -4 281 -19.924 2 1273
Total cost of sales 447 126 =1 010 810 w31 772 =G4 603
g Other income and other expenses
Uither income
INCOME EEK EUR
2069 2008 2009 2008
18938 21664 7802 1385
Gains on sale of investment property {Note 20) 488 1547 4¥ 99
Gains on falr value adjusiments to bioiogical assets {note 19) G . 588, 6 88
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment (note 21, 22) 249 .86 6 B
Misceliangous income 10220 . 5775 §5% 389
Total other income ' 30 644 CBT4eT 1959
Uther sxpenses
EXPENSES EEK EUR
2009 2008 2608 2008
O BNaS et e . . e .

Gain or loss e in fair value of pro| ~ra4r2 o -B77283 -4 759 ~36 895
_Losses on sale of investment property (note 20) B30 e 12 407 LA
Loss on sale of property, ptant and equipment (note 21, 22) B -7 946 C o192 . -508
Penalty and other expenses -1 458 . -4 780 83 -305
Other expenses Sh44 -1.371 361 88
Totai other expenses -90 945 591402 .cRE2 ATTeT
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10 Seliing and distribufion expenses

EEK EUR
2008 2008 2009 2008

In thousands

_Advertising expenses : -10 337 A2 661
Broxerage and intermediation fees . SRR SS— B - G -4
Market research expenses . 37 -192 - -12
Personnel expenses ) R I AT 114
Other selling and distibutionexpanses ... EBY o 1 OAT B S 14
Total selling and distribution expenses -4 417 43422 282 -858
11 Administrative expenses
EEK EUR
2009 2008 2008 2008

thousands

_Personnel expenses oz

Office gxpenses, “1 -ﬁae_ .

_Legal and consuiiing fees

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment iosses (Notes St . T

21,22) .. : ' : ‘2 ”45 e T8 248 =271
Goodwill adiustments (note 22) ) --10 896 R -8 895 -5688
Allowance for doubtful receivables ) K _. 2730 73028

Vehicle expenises 493 L 8ea

: S%e6 . BE33 585
Total administrative expenses <80 253 =124 506 -7 857
12 Financial items
Finance income
EEK EUR
2009 20068 2009 2008
Inthousands o . ) e ‘
‘Gains on sale of invesiments in subsidiaries (note 7} S : 1383 4487 74 . 287
interest income i beaz B3ea 361 3404
FOregn eXChANGE JAINS . 180 12 203 .:' : 9 780
Change in the fair vaiue of non-controllmg put option ) e » B122 o 381
_Income on other non-current financiat assets L 2 001 13 : 128 1
Total finance income g aag 76 089 572 4863
Finance expenses
EEK EUR
2008 2008 2008 2008
In thousands i ‘ —
Losses on Sa!.ﬁ..ef..!.nvestments in subsidiaries (note 7} 477 ATes W05 302
Losses on sale of shares in joint ventures (note 7y ) -134 447 -41 054 -3 580 . -2824
Loss from associated company by eguity method R - 8 = 0
Interest expense’ e .. 38462 48184 2458 -3080
Expenses on other non-gurrent financialassets L - B -1 |
change (osses o - B '!3 095 -7 595 -188 .. -ABS
. sses on financial assets” e -15684 72438 G002 469
Total finance expenses ~497 §73 -§77 702 -1 505 -11 357

For Identification purposes only
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" Interest expense includes mainly the interest expense of loans taken and debt securities issued for the acquisition and
construction of properties. Interest expenditures incurred in connection with loans taken to finance development projects
in progress are capitalised. in 2008, capitalised interest expenditures totalled 32,101 thousand kroons {2,052 thousand
suros). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 38,387 thousand kroons (2,453 thousand euros).

2 impairment losses on financial assets in 2009 include the impairment reversal of the claim from 2008 related to the joint
company Bisumuizas Nami SIA in the amount of 19,012 thousand kroons (1,215 thousand eurcs as well as the impairment
of the claim of Uhinenud Kapital in the amount of 33,259 thousand kroons (2,126 thousand auros).

The impairment loss for 2007 related to the Kippsala project in the amount of 25 258 thousand kroons {1 614 thousand
euros) was reversed in 2008, because a part of the loan had been credited to the account by the balance sheet date, and
subsequent receipt is taking place in accordance with the schedule. Impairment losses on financial assets are inclusive of,
arong other items, the partial write-off of the claim stemming from the loan claim against Sigma Real Estate Ltd in the
amount of 54 4683 thousand kroons {3 481 thousand euros).ln 2008 impairment losses on the investment made in the
jointly controlied entity Biumuiza Nami SIA amounted to 41 087 thausand kroons (2 627 thousand euros).

13 income {ax expense
EEK EUR
2008 2008 2008 2008
IVHOUSBNdS
O ....Ti2968 : OB
-3 768 G A8
Income tax expense on the praﬂ of Bulgarian subsidiaries 882 4925 56 315
Total income tax expense : &68 -8 811 55 -563

14 Earnings per share

Basic net profit (ioss) per share has been calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) of the period with the weighted average
of outstanding shares. According io clause 283 of the Commercial Code, own shares do not grant to a public limited
company any shareholder’s rights, thus, they are not included in caiculating the weighted average of ordinary shares.

EEK EUR
2009 2008 2009 2008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
{pe) ] 94834130 948341%5C B4 834150 94834150
Profit attributabie to equity holders of the parent {in
thousands) e e ‘ -324412  -115498¢ -20734 T3 815
Earnings per share (in kroons) -3,42 -12,18 -0,22 -0,78

As of 31.12.2009, the company has 450,000 own shares.

Diluted net profit {loss} is calculated by taking into account potentially issued shares. As of the balance sheet date
{31.12.2009), the Group had no potentially issued ordinary shares, therefore the diluted net profit (loss) of the quarter was
equal to the regular net profit {loss).

15 Operating lease expense

The Group uses office premises, vehicles and office equipment under operating tease. Related expenses break down as
follows:

l.ease expense for EEK EUR
2069 2008 2009 2008

Jnthousends

Premises 2779 7562 SRR 485

Vehidles ... agve 3606 ?ZQ - o230
Ofiice equipment 1758 2199 e 141
Total T AL 13387 519 856
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Notes to the statement of financial position

18 Fingncial investments

Short-term financial investments at 31.12.2008 consisted of Kesko OY commercial papers. At the end of 2008 the Group
held 4,110 pieces of commercial paper of Kesko QY with the total value of 9,834 kroons (629 euros) each, i.e. in the total
amount of 40,416 thousand kroons {2,583 thousand euros). The commercial papers were redeemed on 13.03.2009.

EEK EUR
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

In thousands

129 128 . & ... 8

Non-current investments in equity instruments
Non-cutrent investments in equity instruments .
vaiug' 15 484 126 . o0 8

Total other non-current financial assets : 15§13 255 o ] ey 18

'Nen-current investments in equity instruments carried at fair value inciudes mainly investments in Floriston Group OU
(12,5 % holding} which at 31.12.2009 totalled 15,423 thousand kroons (986 thousand euros).

17 Fecelvables
Current items EEK EUR
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

in thousands

Trade receivables

Receivabies fromcustomers — 56 387 3804 ... 8152

Allowance for doubtful receivables 2872 A0 3Te
Total trade receivables o534t Tae4 8773

Qther short-term receivabies
Receivables from jeintly controfled enfities (note 38} 14811

Loans granted' e 1159

[Othershortterm receivables 10898

Total other receivables BB 866 140 418 D553 BG75

Accrued income

Interest receivable a2
Due from customers under fong-term construction contracts
{note 26) : 293

124902

Other accrued income

7879
23994

e

crued inco

Total current receivables 154 075 294352 - 0486 18 813

'"The loans given are inclusive of, among other items, the claim stemming from the claim against Sigma Real Estate Ltd,
the claim has been written-down in 2009 by 33,259 kroons (2,126 thousand euros), in 2008 respectively 54,463 thousand
kroons (3,481 thousand euros). The new book value at 31.12.2009 is 33,259 thousand kroons (2,126 thousand euros).
The corresponding figure for 2008 was 66,657 thousand kroons (4,260 thousand euro). See additionally Note 30 an Note
12.

The ciaims are written down when the Group has reasonable grounds for assuming that not all receivables according to
the original conditions will be paid back. Circumstances referring te a decrease in claim value are considerable financial
difficulties of a debtor, likeliness of bankruptey or financial reorganisation of debior, and default in payment or delay in
payment (more than 180 days).

For identification purposes onfy
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Non-current items EEK EUR
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008
_in thousands
Receivables from jointly controlied enfities {note 35} g 5750 g 3687
Long-term oan receivables L -, 04 )
Other non-current receivables LAET2 667 . Vi 44
Total non-current receivables £ 304 6671 .. AUR 42T
18 inventories
EEK EUR
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
IVNQUSENAS et e
Properties purchased and developed for resale 788 649 785 906 48 487 50 228
Other goods purchased for resale TACE 4808 b2 .37
Materials and finished goods . oAwme . 82 TE
Prepayments to suppliers R raas 58666 o 822 3749
Total inventories TVE 801 849 440 49634 54 289

Due to the decrease of net realisable value under the scquisition cost the assets have been written down and charged off

as foliows:
EEK EUR
31.12,2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
_In thousands o
Carrying amount before writingdown 900 796 1220178 : 57871 LJ7984
Reversal of impairmentloss 7Aoo 0T oars L0
_Impaiment loss. L4643 434272 -5 564 -27 755
Carrying amount after writing down " 758 648 785 906 48 487 50 229
See additional information in Notes 8 and 28.
19 Biological assels
EEK EUR
8 360 534
Acquisitions A
_Disposals -4 971 -318
_Gain or loss on change in fair valug (nete 9} 23 2
A3 December 2008 e e oo e 3679 235
_Disposals through divestment of Interests in subsidiaries {note 73 -3 879 235
At 31.12.2009 4] G

Due to separating additional activities from principal activities, Arco Vara Puukool OU was sold in 2009. Starting from

18.09.20089, the Group has no biologicaj assets.

For identification purposes only
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20 invesiment property

Investment properties include commercial buildings which are leased out and properties with development potential whose
future use has not heen determined.

EEK EUR

in thousands S S
At 31.12,2007 . geesss 63912
Acquisitions N e e e .2~ S 1
Disposals ‘ L..o8 040 -387
Transfer to inventories 100 201 o 6 404
Gain orloss on change in fairvalve (note @) . L3885 620 35611
At 31 December 2008 e e . 542753 34 688
Acguisiions 17021 1088
Disposais v ‘ — 18 868 -1.208
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 21) - 15 256 975
Transfer from inventories S, 3., S 288
Disposals through sales of subsidiaries and jointly controfied entities

(rote?) o RTB 480 17848
Gain or loss on change in fair value (note 8] : SR .1 2842
At 31.12.2009 328 888 21026

The fair value of most important investment property is determined based on the valuations performed by qualified
independent appraisers. The foliowing valuation methods are applied:

e discounied cash flow analysis
+  sales comparison method
s sales contract of the object under the law of obligations concluded as at balance sheet date

(more specific information on Note 4 "Significant Accounting Policies”). On pledged assets please see Note 28.

in determining the fair values of investment properties, cash flow projections were based on the following assumptions:

2009 2008
%
Annual increase in rental income e e e £.0-3.0 8080
Annual increase in operating expenses o 003@ 2050
Vacancy rate of the premises — IR ﬁ'»9;1.5.«¥3 .......................... G.0-200
Discount rate on exit from project 9.0-12.0 8.5-13.0

Operating lease: company as lessor

As for real estate investments, income from rent in 2008 was 33,750 thousand kroons (2,157 thousand euros), in 2008
respeciively 38,772 thousand kroons (2,478 thousand kroons). Direct property management expenses totalled 8,828
thousand kroons {564 thousand euros). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 7,266 thousand kroons {464 thousand
euros).

Non-canceilable operating lease rentals receivable in subsequent periods break down as follows:

Reniai income receivable EEK EUR
2009 2008 2009 2008

Int theusands

asoes 21619, 9se . 1382

JLessthantyear 0 onninodbo0g

25years oa7se 36043, 1584 2304

_More than 5 years Liigzen’  aes2 S1414 958

Total Vgt g5 72 644 | 3957 4 644
rfdentlﬁcation 0
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21 Property, plant and squipment

Land and Plant and Other tems of  Assets under Total
buildings eguipment property, construction
ant and and
esquiprent  prepayments

Jnthoysands EEK

Carrying amountat 31.12.2007 26 840 5134 7983 101 808 441 863

......................... 369 3115 =
Capitafised borowings costs o B82
A BE3s

10688
7 asn
4 ET

Disposals o
Changes from seles/acquisition of
companies (note 7) i B 482

Transfer to property, blé'z':;t“gr‘id‘éqmbi’néﬁ; :
forsale . - 1819 0 e 0 0 1B

2T

impairment oss (note 8, 11) 40 oo 0 3420

L0 100201 ¢ 9002
.2 863 o 5816
6 537 10664 812
15 054 10 664 67 402
_'34?5 590

Transfer to property investiments (note 20y G

Depreciation charge (notes 8, 11) 1892

Carrying amount at 31 December 2008 22115

_ingl, cost 32 950

ndl. geournuleted amortisation 11838 52

Disposals

Changes from sales/acquisitien of
companies (Note 7) o
Transfer io property invesiments {note

Depreciafion charge {notes 8, 11)

Carrying amount at 31.12.2009

incl, cost

incl, accurnulated amortisation

Land and Plantand Other itemis of  Assets under
buildings egquipment property, construction
plant and and

equipment  prepayments

in thousands EUR

: LAt - ... 516 8 507
Addifons . et B 199 45 . 691

Capitalised borrowings costs _ 8 2 ... 461

Disposals . _.....cwe 380 it S8
Changes from salesfacquisition of
companies (note 7) e e Q... 31 e 50 0
Transfer fo property, plant and equipment

forsale U . R o ¢ 0

Carrying amount at 31,12.2007

mpairment loss (note 8, 11) 218 S L 0 . . 0

Transfer to property invesiments (note 20) . 0 0 a -6 404

.Depreciation charge (notes 8, 11)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2008 1413 159 AT 882

incl, cost

incl, accumulated amortisation e =756 -335 644 . B

Additions 95 45 b . 306 446

Disposais TS B -38 L -827
Changes from saies/acquisition of
companies {Note 7} ) =144 B2 =207 0 -413

Transfer of property investments (note 20) o L ) 0 -475 475

.Depreciation charge (notes 8, 11) TS -1 o S orR2d

Carrying amount af 31.12.2009 C T - S 12 e
ingl, cost 941 2897 A 12 1727

ingl. accumulated amortisation -406 =230 ~411 a 1047
On pledged assets please see Note 28.

For identification purposes onfy
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22 Intangible assels

Goodwill Sofiware . Total

_In thousands EEK

Carrying amount at 31.12.2007 o 23957 1548 025505

incl. accumulated amortisation L ] 0 N T =1 447

Addtions 0 482 oAb

Disposals ‘ 6 229 S png
Additions through business combinations (note 7) .
Disposals through divestment of subsidiaries and inferests

in jointly controlled entities {note 7)

e SO ... " -4 74

B2

Impairment ioss (note 10) _-BT20 0 Co BTN

Amortisation charge {note §, 11) 0 -521 ' =52

Earrying amount ot 31 Becember 2008 o e SUBBB i BED oszars

inel, cost P1885 i 2258 113

incl, accumuiated amortisation. N . G -1638 -1 838

JSales and liguidation. o e SO0 A28 Sk

_Digposals through divesiment of subsidiaries (note 7) I~ 500 e 8 -500

tmpairment ioss (note 10) 0 -1 896

Ameriisation cha

8,1

23 251

Larrying amountat 31.12.2009 .. 812 g1z

0
incl, cost L . 0 2456 2 456
g

inci. accurmulated amortisation -1 644 -1 644

Goodwill Software Totak

Jnthousands EUR

Carrying amountat 31.12.2007 S e 531 88 - 1830

incl, cost . 1831 RN
incl, accumulated amortisation____ R O 71 71
Addifions — 9 Ik a1

Disposals

ote 7)

in jointly controlied entities {note 7) ! a2 GG

Impairment loss {rote 10) BT 0 557

Amortisation charge {note 8,1%) o8 ‘34 Ry

Carrying amount at 31 December2008 . . e T8 38 797

el accumulated amortisation L 105 -105

_Disposats through divestment of subsidiaries (note 7} ST - S N -33

Impairment loss (note 10) 698 0 886

_Amortisation charge (note 8, 11) . , a -4 . -4

Carrying amount at 31.12,2008 52 52

0
inci. cost 0 156 : 156
incl. accumulated amortisation [

0a 2 104

For ldentification purposes only
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23 Loans and borrowings
L.oans and borrowings comprise:
31.12.2009 31.12.2008
Inciuding
Including current
Total  current portion Total portion

in thousands EEK

Debt securities’ 18 870 L asave 59 303 59 303
- LG Ch R £ ....58 303
Bk oans 70884 55651 911946 256085
Finance iease Habiliies (note 24) 2 444 R fggg 5 482 1708
e eans 50 634 W02 69625 38311
Total (note 32) 502 232 805 248 1046 336 353 417
31.12.2008 31.12.2008
Inciuding
ncluding current
Total  current portion Total porticn
in thousands EUR
Debt securities 1 208 o 1 206 3780 3790
Bank loans 47990 - 95568  sBom4 16 367
Finance lease liabliities {note 24) 156 o 53 249 108
Otherioans” SRR R/ I dEE 4450 2321
Total (note 32) L Umigna o sz 66 873 22 587

' In 2009, the Group redeemed short-term commercial papers ,Arce Vara Commercial Paper I* at the tosal par value

47,628 thousand kroons (3,044 thousand euros). The term for these commercial papers was extended to 31.05.2010. In
2008, the Group issued shori- and long-term commercial paper with a total par value of 66,498 thousand kroons (4,250
thousand euros) and redeemed commercial paper at the total par value of 140,299 thousand kroons (8,967 thousand
euros). In 2009, the average effective interest rate for commercial papers was 13.52 % (2008: 8,47 %).

At 31,12.2008 and 31.12.2009, the following debt securities issues were still redeemable:;

Balance, Balance,
Par value EEK EUR
Setilement  Redemption . Interest
date date Commerciai paper EEK EUR rate, % 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31122000 31.12.2008
Jnthousands e . e et e e
e i e A 8 ]
11072008 10072009 | commerciaipapert %0498 4260 1200 0 sess 0 PO
Arco Vara
MO0 SS00 o pepery 830 1206 00 g 0 1m0 o
Total 18 870 59 303 1 206 3780

? In 2000, the weighted average interest rate of loans and borrowings was 5.25 % {2008: 8.95 %). The weighted average
interest rate of bank loans was 4.81 % (2008: 6,56 %).

Additional information on assets pledged for loan liabilities is presented in note 28.

Intergst rates for most impertant loan liabilities:

Loan balance EEK Loan balance EUR Interests rate, %
31.12.200
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 8 2009 2008

in thousands

bong-term bank foan 220783 1567160 M S
108 168 86970 6913
: S BT 280 & 028
Short-term bank loan 134 381 5 464
_Short-term bank lcan 80 618 3085
Short-term bank lean ... 90033 2843
Long-term pankloan .. 23389 2193
Long-termbankloan oo nlu 0l . 29900 172
Shori-ierm bank can Lo Y agang 30 000 1278

The Group's loan liabilities are denominated in Estonian kroons, Latvian lats or euros.

For identification putposes only
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* At 31.12.2009, other loans included loan liabilities to related parties of 25,820 thousand kroons (1,650 thousand euros).
At 31.12.2008, the corresponding figure was 36,009 thousand kroons (2,301 thousand euros). For information on related

pariies, see note 35.

74 Einance lsase labiiities

31.12.2009

31.12.2008

Finance lease Habilities by settlement term

Minimum lease

Present value of
minimum lease

Minimum leage

Present value of
mintmum lease

payments payments payments payments

in thousands EEK .

Less than 1 year 978 " s 3537 3222
2-5 years 884 1 é‘% e 2232 1980
More than 5 vears o 0 ‘ 288 . 280
Lessor's gross investment 2572 AEW 6937 ... .548
Future interest expense 54 R _-B75

Lessor's net investiment 2 818 Z 518 5462 5 462

31.12.2000 31.12.2008

Finance lease liabilities by settlement term

Mininmum lease

Present value of

minimum lease

Minkmmum lease

Fresent value of
minimum lease

payments payments payments payments
Jnfhousands BUR . - SR
Less than 1 year 56 B3 28 206
108 108 143 127
] [ ] 17 16
“164 161 .38 348
[Future interest expense - = 0 ; =37
Lessor's net investment 161 161 349 348
EEK EUR
Assets acquired with finance lease 31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008
LU BIE ——————
investment property 1525 5145 328
Property, plant and equipment CLEA— LAGeE 282
Total carrying amount o sgy 9 239 591
25 Payables
Current payables EEK EUR
31.12.200% 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
In thousands
Trade payables® L AB 188 75 454 22052 4822
Other payab!es
Llab:h‘ues from securatles fransactions G 1236 79
Other payables Vg esE 16 329 1044
% 658 17 565 1123

"i‘otai other payabies

For identification purposes only
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Taxes payable

Value added tax

Income tax on dividends

PEFSOHBE income tax

Soc:al tax

Other faxes

Totat taxes payahle

Accrued expenses

Interest payabie

Payab!es to employees

Dividends payable

Other accrued expenses

Total accrued expenses

Total payabies

gt

15731

40 744

3099 - 350G
0 “ 180
2053 &7
3569 20
2228 58
10949 2]
10 054 334
8 87‘; 327
8 552 345
28 709
132 677 S 800

1808

B 480

' At 31 December 2009, trade payabies included items of 5,516 thousand kroons {353 thousand euros) payable for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. At 31 December 2008, the corresponding figure was 3,308 thousand kroons

{211 thousand euros).

Additional information on related parties, see note 35.

Non-current items

EEK EUR
31.12.2000 31.12.2008 31.12,2008 31.12.2008
In thousands L
Lrabilltlas frc}m secu rmes transactlons _ O 248 ] 16
DepOSiTS recewed 1078 *f 402 &9 89
Mgsceilaneous iang—term §IEbiiItEES lpith 2 ?54 332 176
Total other liabilities 62T 4 404 B 281
26 Deferred income
EEK EUR
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 3%.12.2009 31.12.2008
In thowsands
Advances for sale of real estate 73378 5B 545 4 BE7 3761
Deferred incame from long-term service coniracts £ 448 4 ééé___ 44 282
Other deferred income 387 1810 24 122
Total deferred income B2 164 B5 174 5251 4165
EEK EUR
31.12.2002 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
In thousands
Cosis in’curred and recognised profit under the stage of 157 534 29 611
sompletion e : - . e
Progress bliélngs 165 689 1088y -29 407
Totai revenue adjustment -8 155 3193 4! 204
!ncludmg due from custemers 293 18 486
including due o customers -8 448 54D 282
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27 Provisions
Warranty
provision' Qther provisions® Total
Jnthousands EEK o
Provision at 31,12.2007 . ST . ST Y. 4. a7ig
__ﬁ_rgvig_i-qnﬁ made during the year 4674 3420 & 054
Provisions used during the year 2 e 7883 ~1 6065
Provision at 31 December 2008 5 285 4943 10 268
Including current portiony, 1146 . e 2 TTY 5937
Change from disposal of subsidiaries 782 .0 762
Provisions made during the year e 363 e P 3T 8730
_Provisions used during the year, . SR X.. .S -4 432
Provision at 31,12.2008 1434 o 1R300 12758
including current portion 1434 11 2186 12 850
Warranty .
provision' Other provisions” Total
In thousands EUR )
Provision at 31.12.2007 o 83 _ 154 : 237
Provisions made during the year . 289 218 518
3 used during the year T8 BT -10%
Provision at 31 December 2008 B U .| 852
_Including current por 13 —t 378
_Change from disposai of subsidiaries -49 0 -45
Provisions made duringtheyear 87 ‘ o B 471 558
Provisi -283 & -283
ovision at 31.12.2009 9 e BT A BTE
Inciuding current poriion 91 717 808

! Warranty provisions are recognised based on managemeni's best estimates, i.e. by reference to the terms and
conditions of each construction contract {whether the Group acts as a general contractor or uses own labour, whe the
subcontractors are, how complicated the project is, where the project is performed, etc). A provision amounts o up to 1 %
of the cost of the contract. Warranty provisions are created for covering the costs which may be incurred during the
warranty period, A warranty pericd lasts for two years from the delivery of work performed.

2 At 31 December 2009, the Group’s Bulgarian development company had created a builder's warranty provision of 10,094
thousand kroons (703 thousand euros). At 31.12.2008, the warranty provision was 458 thousand kroons {29 thousand
euros).

28 Assets pledged as security

The Group has pledged the following assets as security for its loans and borrowings (including finance lease liabilities):

EEK EUR
31122009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

in thausands
Properties carried as inventories (note 18) TOS 187 602 332 38 496
Investment property (note 20) 240 716 501 883 32007
Property, plant and equipment (note 21} '_ 2881 32414 2072
Total pledged assets 852 804 1136 638 72 645
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Arco Invesieeringute AS, a 100 % subsidiary of Arco Vara AS, has pledged BiSurmuiZas Nami SIA shares in favour of
Nordea Bank Finland Ple.

28 Share capital
EEK EUR

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12,2009 31.42,2008
Number of issued shares fully paid up T 535 Qbﬁ 15{} _ 95 284 15C % 284180 95 284 150
Share capital (in thousands) i ess éz_i‘é' ‘ 9s2842 w@é 80 298
e e per hare (i kroons and eu-.;os) ¥ . QGG e e e - e e
To.tal Shampmmmm{m lhousandsy S . . . .?12 514 , . . o
Treasury shares (in thousanc;s)2 - E -3 897 -3 082 . -258 -255

"The management decided to cover the accumulated losses with share premium

20wn shares: Based on the resolution of the annual general meeting of Arco Vara sharehalders on 14 May 2008, Arco
Vara AS was entitled to acquire own shares under the following conditions:

a)

b)

c)

d)

the public limited company is entitied tc acquire own shares within five years after taking the resolution of the
general meeting;

the total amount of the nominal vaiue of shares acquired by the public limited company shall nct exceed 10 % of
the share capital;

the amount to be paid for one share shall not be less than a half of the nominal value of the share nor higher than
the price of the last independent fransaction made on Tallinn Stock Exchange on the day of acquiring the share or
the highest vaiid independent purchase offer made on Taliinn Stock Exchange on the day of acguiring the share;

for the own shares, from the assets shall be paid that exceed the share capital, reserve capital and the issue
pramium.

Cn 8 October 2008, Arco Vara AS decided fo terminate this repurchase programme.

The maximum amount of Arco Vara AS shares that can be issued as of 31.12.2008 is 121 812 148. On a special general
meeting on 11.12.2008, the maximum amount of shares to be issued was changed down tc 18,000,000 in Asticles of
Association.

The share capital was reduced subsequent to the balance sheet date as follows:

@

first the share capital was reduced by cancellation of 450,000 own shares and additional 10 shares so that 5
shares owned by Toleturn OU (registry code 11011219) and b shares owned by HM Investeeringud OU {registry
code 10963165) {hereinafter together the “Stabilizing shareholders”) were cancelied;

then 19/20 of all shares were reduced so that 18/20 of shares belonging to each sharehoclder were cancelled and
if the number of shares owned by a shareholder (hereinafier ,stabilized shareholder®) did not enable to cancel
whole number of shares, whole number of shares owned by stabilized shareholder were cancelled {rounded
downwards) and additionally a number of shares (hereinafier the “compensation shares”), that the s{abilized
shareholder owned in order to enable cancellation of whole number of shares without rounding, were cancelled
from the shares owned by the stabilizing shareholders {e.g. if the stabilized shareholder had 30 shares, 28 thereof
shall be cancelled (i.e. the stabilized shareholder had 2 shares after the reduction of the share capital) and
additionally 10 Compensation shares owned by the Stabilizing shareholders were cancelled);

Compensation shares were cancelled in equal parts from the shares owned by the stabilizing shareholders.

If the Compensation shares could not been cancelted in equal parts from the shares owned by the Stabilizing
shareholders, then more shares belonging to HM Investeeringud OU were cancelled. As a result of the reduction
of share capital, the number of all shares is 4,741,707, i.e. 90,542,443 shares are cancelied. The extent of the
reduction of share capital is EEK 905,424 thousand kroons (57,867 thousand euros).

The list of shareholders whose shares were cancelled due to reduction of share capitat was determined on 1 March 2010
at 23:59. On 16 March 2010 the reduction of the share capital came into force in the commercial register. Share capital
was reduced from 952,841 thousand kroons (60,898 thousand euros) to 47,417 thousand kroons {3,031 thousand euros).
During the share capitat reduction 90 542 443 shares were cancelied and 4 741 707 shares remained.

The Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia provides that the equity of a company has to make up at least a half of
the nominal value of the share capital. Cancelling of shares enables us to meet this requirement.
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3¢ Contingent fiabilities and potential assels
EEK EUR
2009 2008 2009 2008
In thousaads
S — S e 5% 2@3 ..................... : 984668 s -62932
..... C ;mtlngent income tax kabﬂty B ._; {} o 0 7 0
Possible dividends : Cm 0o - ST i &

Arco Vara AS and Arco Ekltus OU creditors claims towards OU Tempera Ehitus.

On 26.02.2009 OU Tempera Ehitus OU was declared bankrupt by a decision of the Harju County Court.

On 04.03.2000 Arco Vara AS submilied its statement of claim. The amourt of Arco Vara AS claim is 2,343 thousand
kroons (150 thousand euros), based on the credit agreement of 07.08.2008. )

On 09.03.2009 Arco Ehitus O submitted its statement of claim. The total amount of Arco Ehituse QU claim is 2,371
thousand kroons (152 thousand euros), based on the loan agreement and the site management and construction service
agreement.

On 25.03.2009 the first creditors meeting was held. The generai meeting decided to not appoint Maire Arm as official
liquidator. On 03.04.2009 the creditors submitted a joint list of preferred liquidators. On 09.04.2009 the court appointed
Katrin Priilk as new official liguidator. ’

On 05.11.2009, Katrin Pritkk, the liguidator, submitted a precept for removing the deficlencies. Arco Ehitus OU and Arco
Vara AS removed the deficiencies described in the precept on 13.12.2008.

On 18.11.2008, Arco Vara partly assigned the claim in the amount of 500 thousand kroons (32 thousand euros) to Leising
Grupp OU).

On 20.11.2009 a meeting for securing ciaims of O Tempera Ehitus (bankrupted) was held and the claim of Arco Ehitus
was secured in the whole amount presented in the proof of claim. With regard to the claim by Arco Vara AS, the liguidator
objected the inferest rates for 2008 in the amount of 42 thousand kroons (3 thousand euros); therefore the defended was
ihe claim in the amount of 2,301 thousand kroons (147 thousand euros).

Based on the liquidator's report, the total liabilities of the debtor amount to 13,588 thousand kroons (868 thousand euros),
but there is no tangibles. Therefore, the management board considers it unlikely that Arco Vara AS and Arco £hitus OU
are paid the debts of QU Tempera Ehitus (bankrupt).

At present, the bankruptcy proceedings are going on.

Arco Investeeringute AS action towards AS Uhendatud Kapital

Arco Investeeringute AS, Sigma Real Estate Ltd and AS Uhendatud Kapitat have concluded a memorandum of
understanding on 26 February 2008. The purpose of the memorandum is to set out basic conditions and principles for
acquisition of a 50 % interest in a Cypriot business that owned and maintained the development of trade centres in Ukraine
by Arco Vara AS. Based on the memorandum, Arco Investeeringud AS has made a prepayment and given subordinated
loans in a total amount of 10,000 US dolars (111,052 thousand kroons; 7,088 thousand euros), that Arco Vara AS is
entitied to recail and that is secured by a guarantee by

AS Uhendatud Kapitai. Considering that AS Uhendatud Kapital and Sigma Real Estate Ltd did not agree with a
compromise proposal by Arco Investeeringute AS to set a supplementary security and postpone the debt, the realisation of
AS Uhendatud Kapital guarantee was started.

On 19.02.2009, Arco Investeeringute AS filed a statement of claim at the Court of Arbitration of the Estonian Chamber of
Commerce and Indusiry to collect 10,807 thousand US dollars (113,157 thousand kroons; 7,232 thousand euros) from AS
Uhendated Kapital, and an appiication for securing the claim. The Council of the Court of Arbitration of Estonian Chamber
of Commerce and Industry forwarded the application of Arco Vara AS to secure the claim to the Harju County Court and
the court issued an order according to which the claim is secured to full extent requested in the application.

in order to secure the claim by Arco Vara AS the Hariu Country Court set prohibition notations to the disposal of shares,
attached the financial assets of the debtor in Estonian credit institulions, and established a mortgage to the properties of
the company. )

On 12.03.2008 AS Uhendatud Kapital filed an appeai against the court ruling to the Harju County Court by claiming that
the claim security methods applied by the Harju County Court are extremely cumbersome. Arco Investeeringute AS
contested the appeal. On 22.06.2009, the Tallinn District Court made a decision that parfially agreed with the AS
Uhendatud Kapital appeal against the court ruling, and found that seizure of bank accounis limit company's activity
freedom, and that the accounts should be released. Arco Investeeringute AS contested the District Court ruling at the
Supreme Court due to the decree of the district court, but on 14.09.2009, the Supreme Court did not satisfy the appeal of
Arco Investeeringute AS.

On 08.10.2002, a session of the Court of Arbitration of Estonian Chamber of Commerce and Industry was scheduled but
postponed by request of AS Uhendatud Kapital as AS Uhendatud Kapital changed its representative again and asked for
additional ime for preparing for the session.

On 8.10.2009, Arco investeeringute AS submitted to the Court of Arbitration of Estonian Chamber of Commerce and
Industry an additional application for securing the claim. On 12,10.2009, the court of arbitration made a decision for
sacuring the application and set prohibition notations to the disposal of shares of OU Auto Forte Baltic, a subsidiary of AS
Unendatud Kapital. On 21.12.2009 the Arbitration Court of the Estonian Chamber of Commerce and industry has made
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court judgment wherewith Arco Investeeringute AS claim towards Uhendatud Kapital AS was fully satisfied and order
Uhendatud Kapital AS to pay to Arco investeeringute AS main arrears on a amount of 10,000 thousand USD (109,253
thousand Estonian kroons or approx. 5,982 thousand euros), interest calculated from main arrears in amount of 806
thousand USD (9,905 thousand Estonian kroons or approx. 633 thousand euros) and interest on account of late payment
in amount of 773 thousand USD (8,452 thousand Estonian kroons or approx, 540 thousand euros), sum total 11,680
thousand USD {127,611 thousand Estonian kroons or approx. 8,155 thousand euros). Additional on that Uhendatud
Kapital AS has to compensate court expenses to Arco investeeringute AS in amount of 1,099 thousand Estorian kroons
{70 thousand euros). Additional information see note 17,

Arbitration court judgmert is final and entered into force from the moment of adopting.

Adeption of a detail plan for Narva mnt §7

On 19 May 2008 a resident of the Liivaoja residential area brought an action for annulment of Resolution No 72 Adoption
of & Detail Plan for Narva mnt 67 in the Cily Centre passed by Tailinn City Council on 17 April 2008, filing also a request
for the applcation of provisional legal protection According to the complainant, the detail plan adopted for the properiy
known as the Tivoli plot is unfawful and viclates the rights of the complainant.

Since the property belongs to Arco Investeeringute AS, the Group is involved in the proceedings as a third party

On 8 July 2008 Tallinn Administrative Court ruted that the request for provisional legal protection would be satisfied and
execution of Taliinn City Council Resoiution 72 of 17.04.2008 would be suspended until the compietion of litigation and
entry into force of a judicial decision.

On 18 July 2008 both the Tallinn City Council and Arco Investeeringute AS filed an appeal with Tallinn Cireuit Courtin
which they requested annulment of the ruling on provisional legal protection.

The Tallinn Circuit Court heard the appeal against the court ruling on 11 August 2008 and dismissed the appeals by Tallinn
City Council and Arco Investeeringute AS.

The Group’s management finds the implementation of provisiona! legal protection unjustified as:

v The court has been biased in defining the public interest and has not considered the interest of & third party in
suspending the validity of the detail plan.

. The complainant does not follow the principles of good faith.

. Traffic arrangement of the detail plan is in compliance with the comprehensive plan, the plans of neighbouring
areas and the relevant siandard EVS 843:2003 “Town streets”, the traffic solution is adequately motivated in the decision.
. The parking development plan is not administrative legislation of general appiication but a good practice not
obligatory to comply with.

v The arguments of environmental impact assessment are adequate.

On 14 Qctober 2008 Arco Investeeringute AS submitted a request for annulment of the ruling on provisional legal
protection to Tallinn Circuit Court. Arco Investeeringute AS and Tallinn City Council agreed to make a compromise in
regard of adding parking spaces to the area subject to the plan, the opinions on the shoricomings of the detail plan as
indicated in the ruling on provisional legal protection were alsc explained and reasoned by documents as well as faciually.
Yet, the court did not annul the ruling on provisional legat protection.

On 5 May 2009, the Tallinn Administrative Court made a decision in favour of the claim and cancelled the decision by
Tallinn City Council by which the detail plan of Narva mnt 67 was established. The decision of the court was based on its
earlier standpoints.

On 3 June 2008, Tallinn City Council and on 4 June 2009, Arco Investeeringute AS filed an appeal against the decision of
Taillinn Administrative Court of 05.05.2009. The Tallinn District Court scheduled 29.10.2008 for the court session.

On 27.10.2009, the contester of the detailed plan filed an application of disclaiming to the Taliinn District Court and the
court satisfied it by its decree, annulled the decision of Tallinn Administration Court by which the detailed plan of the
property was annulled originally, and terminated the proceeding. Thus, the detailed plan of the property at Narva mnt 67
entered into force in its original version.

At the time of preparing the present statement. the court proceeding is terminated,

31 Government grants

EEK EUR

31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008
in thousands . R
_Greenhouses o 843 ’3 -3
Watering bearm 0 2 o 9
Inventory w FO T - 0 2.
Total g 1018 i 65

in 2009, the Group received no finances for government grant. In 2008, resources for government grant in the amount of
1,018 thousand kroons {85 thousand euros) were received from the foundation Environmental investments Centre.
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32 Financial instruments and financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to various financial risks: market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
Hquidity risk.

The Group's risk management programme is based on the assumption that the financial markeis are unpredictable and
appropriate measures have to be adopted to minimise potential adverse impacts on the Group’s financial activities, The
Group can use derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

The Group's risk management process is based on the premise that the Group's success depends on constant monitoring,
careful analysis and effecfive management of the risks faced by the Group. Centralised financial risk management is the
responsibility of the Group's financial team. The main objective of financial risk management is to prevent any damage or
financiat ioss that could jeopardise the Group’s equity and continuous operation. The Group establishes risk management
policies and activities which are aimed at identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing risks and spreading risks across
fime, activities and geographical areas. Risk management policies and activities are implemented by the managers of
Group entities.

By implementing financial risk management process the critical issue is o monitor the Group's risk exposure in
deveiopment segment due o the concentration of interest rate and liquidity risk in one business segment —development
and geographically in Estonia. The main reason is that the property development is very capital intensive and several large
development projects are under process at the same fime,

information on financial instrumentis by category

EEK EUR
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents {note 34) 172 574 4 563 11029
Loans and receivables {72 574 4 563 11025
Receivabies {note 17) 301023 10 889 19 239
Loans and receivables 301 023 10888 19 239
Financial investmenis {note 16) 40 671 $98 2 589
Loans and receivables 129 & &8

] 40 542 990

Total financial assets 514268 46450 32 867
Loans and borrowings {note 23) 10486 336 51272 66 873
Liabilities carried at amortized cost

1046 336 51272 66 873

137 081 8201 & 761

137 081 G201 8767

Payables {note 25)

Liabilities carried at amortized cost

Totat financial liabilities 399 ':255 1183 417 57473 75634
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income, expense, gains and losses on financial instruments can be assigned to the following categories:

2009
Current
investments in
equity
instruments -
Loans and carried at fair I iabilities carried
receivables  Derivatives value  at amortized cost Total
In thousands EEK
Interest income (note 12} 4958 .a 684 0 5642
..... Interest expense (rote 12) 8 0 0 -38462  -38 462
Galns and losses from other non-current financial assets
note 12} R S e 793 9 728 B 2318
Impairment Eosses on fmanclal assets (note 12) . ..o15684 B 0 8
et result -8 633 1] 1409 -38 462 -45 986
2009
Current
investments in
eguity
instruments —
Loans and carried at fair  1iabilities carried
receivables  Derivatives valye  at amortized cost Total
in thousands EUR
interest income (note 12) O 1 A S ... SOOI 361
Interest expense (note 12} ) D L. 0 -2 458 -2 458
Gains and logsas from other non-current financial assets
Jnote 12y e w8 A6 0 161
_____ Impairment losses_on financlal assets (note 12) 4002 4 0 ‘ 0 -1 {02
Met resuit -5710 0 90 -2 458 -2 938
2008
Current
investmenis in
equity
instruments —
Loans and carried at fair  Liabflities carried
receivables  Derivatives value  at amortized cost Toftal
In thousands EEK
Interest income (note 12} R 48511 88 3927 e B B3 264
Interest expense (note 12) ] 0 -156 0 S48 028  -48 184
Gains and losses from other non-current financial assets
{note 12} e 2428 0 2429
ment logses on fnancuai asgeis{nole 12} Y} 0 ) 0 72435
Net resuit -23 824 670 6 356 48 028 64 926
2008
Current
investments in
equity
instruments
L.oans and carried at falr  Liabilities carried
receivables  Derivatives value  at amortized cost Total
In thousands EUR
nterest income (note 12) e 3100 B8 ; Y 3 404
_interest expense (note 12) 0 L 9 -3 070 -3 08¢
Gains and iesses from other non-current financial assets
{note 12) - 0 S~ B8 D 138
impairment losses on financial assets (note 12) D 4629
Met result ~f 529 43 406 -3 070 -4 150
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Claims by their ferm

The Group has some trade receivables which are overdue but for which no impairment allewance has been made. The
Group's management has assessed the recoverability of such receivables on an individual basis and has come to the
conclusion that the items are not impaired.

The following table provides an overview of overdue receivables:

EEK EUR

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2000 31.12.2008
In thousands
unidue or up to 3 months A2 991 54 8§92 2812 ) 3509
3 - 6 months . ‘ S . 4227 . 78620 a0 180
6 - 12 months R iees 11685 W 747
Mare than 12 months 3 584 5120 230 327
Total trade receivables {note 17) 52 418 80 327 - 3414 5773

Liguldity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that a change in financial position will cause the Group to encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with financial liabilities in & due and timely manner, or that the Group will be unable to dispose of
property at market price and within the desired timeframe. Above all, the Group’s lquidity is affected by the following
factors:

=  Group entities’ abilify to generate independent positive net operating cash flows and the volatility of those cash
flows;

= Mismatch in the maturities of assets and liahilities and flexibility in adjusting #;
«  Marketability of long-term assets;

e Volume and pace of property development;

e« Volume and pace of geographical expansion,;

s+ Financing structure.

The Group’s financial team manages the Group’s liquidity based on & relevant strategy which is aligned with the Group's
investment plan.

Short-term liguidity management of Group is first and foremost based on steadily observing of guarterly cash flow forecast.
The purpose of short-term liquidity management is to guarantee the availability of sufficient highly liquid funds {i.e. cash
and cash equivalents and highly liguid investments). The main tools for short-term liquidity management are the group
account, which pools the funds of Group entities, and, in the case of foreign Group entities, loans from the Parent.

tong-term liquidity is primarily influenced by investment decisions. The Group observes the principle that Group entities’
net cash inflows from operating and investing activities have to cover the Group’s cash outflows from financing activities.
Accordingly, the purpose of long-term liquidity management is to ensure sufficient liquidity of the investment (property)
portfolio, harmonize the timing of cash flows from investing and financing activities, and determine the optimal financing
structure. Long-term projects are monitored to ensure that the timing and amounts of investing cash flows do not differ
significantly from the timing and amounts of financing cash flows. The following table illustrates the Group's open position
in refinancing loan liabilities:
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Maturity structure of financial zsseis and financial lHabiliies

Maturity structure of financial
assets and financial Habilities

) 31.12.2009
< 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years = § years Total
_In thousands EEK L
Gash and cash eguivalents Lo Ttage o 9 o] 71382
Receivables 56 093 1067 982 6 304 170 379
Financial investments ...t R 15813 0 15613
_Total assets 127 485 107 982 21 917 ] 257 384
_Leans and borrowings 272882 332455 . 196680 LMe o 8e223
Payables B0 475 30 269 8279 0 97 023
Total Habilities 333 467 362 724 202 945 119 809 255
31.12,2008
< 3 months 3-12 months -5 years > 5 years Total
In thousands EEK
cash and cash eguivalents 172 574 0 0 G 172 574
Recelvables | o 190 900 193 452 ¢ 301023
Financial investments i, 40 418 0 258 G 40 871
Total assets 313880 193 452 6926 0 514 268
_Loans and borrowings . 1sg9se 334450 576128 116 793
_Payables . L8278 40 502 e B804 ! A3
Total Habilities 111 133 374 961 &80 530 116 783 1183 417
31.12.2008
< 3 months 3-12 months i-5 years » 5 years Total
_In thousands EUR
Cash and cash equivalents 4563 .. 0 0 - 5154
.Recetvables ases 6 90 408 e B 10 889
_Financiat Invesiments U 0 g 298 LB .98
Total assets 8148 6901 1401 0 164580
_Loans and borrowings v 21248 12369 8 LL31Ane
Payables . 3865 1838 401 0 8201
Total liabilities 21 312 23 183 12 970 8 &7 473
31.12.2008
< 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > § years Total
Int thousands ELUR -

Cash and cash equivalents 11029 0 0 ¢ 11028
Regelvables .. LBAAe 1238 A2r 0 19240
_Financial investments . _..2583 L 18 0 2599
Total assets 20 061 12 364 443 0 32 868
Loans and borrowings t2i2 21376 36 821 7 464 86 873
Payables o 5891 2589 281 0 8 761
Total Habitities 7103 23 965 37 102 7464 75 634
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With regard to the repayment terms of the liabilities within the ioan portfolio, the weighted duration of loan liabilities as of
31 December 2009 is 0.9 years (31.12.2008: 2.5 years). The division of joan liabilities on the year-over-year basis is
displayed on the following chart.

Breakdown of loans and borrowings by maturily {in thousands of kroons)

600000 -
500000 -
400000 -
300000 -
200000 -

100000 -

0
2010 2011 2012 2013

Refinancing risk is managed by monitoring the liguidity position on a daily basis and analysing different financing options
on a consistent and ongeing basis. In addition, partner banks and professionals qualified in analysing developments in
capital markeis are involved in the process already in the initial stage.

in 2010, the term for lcan liabilities in the amount of 605,249 thousand kroons {38,682 thousand euros) wilt be due. With
regard to short-term loan liabilities, 28,028 thousand kroons {1,858 thousand euros) are mostly loans from related parties
and extension of their payment terms is usuailly not a problem. 225,202 thousand kroons (14,393 thousand euros) of short-
term loan liabilities are loans that are reiated to ongoing development projects and the redemption of which is related to
sales transactions. For these loans, there is no substantial need for refinancing as the term of ioans is usuaily related to
project end date.

The risk of refinancing loans is bigger with regard to these loans the purpose of which is acquisition of land, and the start of
active development activity has been postponed. Such short-term loan liabiliies make up 307,984 thousand kroons
{18,683 thousand euros). The Group is actively minimising the risk of refinancing these loans by negotiating with various
credit institutions and possible investors. As an alternative, project disposal is considered. In some cases The Group has
broken material loan covenanis that gives to the creditor the right to accelerate the loan payment. Although the creditors
have waived the covenant breaches so far, The Group has accounted these loans as short-term. The Group is in constant
negofiation mode with ali of its creditors in order fo prolong the loans and make the historic covenant package more
suitable to new market situation.

interest rate risk and currency risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that a rise in market interest rates will increase interest expense to an extent that will have a
significant impact on the Group’s operating efficiency. Exposure to interest rate risk results from:

1. use of loans and borrowings with a floating interest rate, and

2. the need for refinancing in connection with the arival of the due dates of liabilities or the invelvement of new
ioans in connection with the realisation of the investment plan in a sifuation where the volatility of financial

markets is increasing and the economic environment is changing.

Most of the Group's long-term loans and borrowings are linked to EURIBOR. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
developments on the international financial markets. Interest rate risk is managed, among other things, by monitoring
movements in the money market interest rate curve, which reflects the market participants’ expectations of market interest
rates and allows estimating a trend for euro-denominated interest rates.

in response o a 1.95 percentage decrease in EURIBOR in 2009, the Group analysed the sensitivity of its profit before tax
and cash flows to a 1 percentage change in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis of generated cash flows to changes in interest rate demonstrated that a 1 percentage point change
{rise or decline) in interest rates would affect {increase or reduce) the cash flows generated in 2009 by 7,138 thousand
kroons (456 thousand euros) (2008: 9,147 thousand kroons {585 thousand euros). The sensifivity analysis of profit before
tax demonstrated that a 1 percentage point change (rise or decline) in interest rates would affect {increase or reduce} profit
before tax for 2009 by 3,625 thousand kroons (232 thousand euros) (2008 5,628 thousand kroons (360 thousand euros).
In managing iis short-term interest rate risks, the Group regulatly compatres potential losses from changes in interest rales
against corresponding risk hedging expenses. To date, no financial instruments have been used to hedge shori-term
inferest rate risks because according {o management's assessment hedging expenses would exceed the losses which
might be incurred.
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The Group’s interest-bearing assets and lishilities

31.12.2008
By maturity < 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years = b yoars Total
_In thousands EEK e o
58 486 42 711 1632 0 102 829
212002 332 455 196 666 119 802 232
Met position 214 506 =289 744 =195 034 «i19 -G89 403
31.12.2008
By maturity < 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years > 5§ years Total
nthousands EEK -
Interest-bearing assets 163 678 103 805 254 0 267 837
Interest-bearing liabifies 18 958 334 459 576 126 116 793 1046 336
Met position 144 720 ~230 5E4 -B75 §72 ~116 793 ~175 498
31.12.2009
By maturity < 3 months 3-12 months 1-b years ....> 5 years Total
In thousands EUR
Interest-bearing assefs L3738 2730 104 0 BE72
Interest-bearing liabilities 17 447 21248 12 569 51272
Net nosition -13 709 -18 518 ~12 455 -8 -44 700
31.42.2008
By maturity < 3 months 312 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
. e e Aot ot e e
intersst-bearing assets Llessr . 8eat o8 TR
_Interest-bearing liabilities oormnz 21378 36 821 7 464 68 873
Mot position 9248 -14 735 -36 805 -7 464 -4% 755

Currency risks are hedged by performing most transactions and signing most agreements and contracts in euros or
currencies pegged to the euro. The main currency risk is the devaluation of the local currency against the euro. in view of
the low probability of the devaluation, the risk is not significant. USD/EEK exchange rate fluctuations affect the Group
somewhat due to receivable against Sigma Real Estate Lid nominated in USD.

Breakdown of loans and borrowings by currency

EEK EUR share, %
31.12.2009 31.12,2008 31.12.2009 31,12.2008 31.12.2009 31,12.2008
nthousands : R B - R
EUR 782 468 753 877 50 609 50738 98 75
EEK 19 847 236 597 1256 15 313 2 23
Other curmrencies 117 L iz2s62 e 7 22 1
Total 802 232 1 046 336 51 272 66 873 100 100
Breakdown of interest-bearing assets by currency
EEK EUR share, %
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

in thousands

EEK . e 99 524 211248 6 361 13601 100 ix

Othercurrencies o 55 589 o_. 3817 0 21
Total 99 524 267 B37 6 361 17 118 100 100
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The Group's Habilities are denominated mainly in-the euro or in the Estonian kroon and operating volumes are the largest
in countries whose local currency is pegged to the euro. Therefore, the currency risk is insignificart. Currency risks arising
from open positions are hedged by euro-denominated ransactions between countries and matching the timing of receipts
and payments in the country involved.

Cradgit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the other parly to a2 financlal instrument will cause a financial loss to the Group by falling to
discharge an obligation.

Credit risk is managed by making sure that there are noe major concentrations of credit risk. Group entities prevent and
minimize credit risk by monitoring and managing customers’ setflement behaviour on a daily basis so that appropiiate
measures could be applied in due fime. In addition, sales and construction activities are partly financed with customer
prepayments and in real estate fransactions, where the other parly is offen financed by a credit institution, the Group
cooperates with banks. Consequently, the risks arising from customer insolvency are well hedged.

Allowances are made for potential losses. Potential losses are estimated based on historical experience, the ofher party’s
abiilty to meet existing obligations in the short term, and developments in the economic environment.

Group entities perform iransactions only with counterparties who are considered creditworthy. As a rule, immediate
payment i demanded. Credit is granted against additional collateral only. Accordingly, management believes that the
need for additional hedging of credit risk is minimal. The maximum potential credit risk equals the total carrying amount of
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and investments in financial assets. Additional information about receivables can
be found in note 17.

Fair value

The main financial assets and financiai liabilities of Group entities are recognised in the batance sheet. The Group does
not have any significant off-balance sheet financial assets or liabilities which have not been disclosed in the financial
statements. Because of the accounting and reporting principles applied, the carrying amounts ¢f the financial assets and
financiat liabilities do not differ significantly from their fair values.

The fair values of assets and liabiliies with a fixed interest rate are not significantly different from their carrying amounts
because the fixed interest rate does not differ significantly from current market interest rates.

Hedging

All derivative financial instruments which are used to hedge risks are recognised as assets or liabilities. Regardless of their
purpose, they are initially recognised at their fair values. Changes in the fair values of such derivative instruments are
recognised in the income statement in finance income and expenses (in “inferest expensefinierest income”).

As of 31.12.2009, the Group had no valid risk hedging transactions. As of 31.12.2008, the Group has no valid risk hedging
transactions.

For ldentification purposes onfy

=
e .ﬁy“ERN,gT& ING _Page 75
y R




Aran Vara AS Anvsigt repon 2008 Transialion of e Baonian Oeigingl §

Other information

33 Capital management

The obiective of capiiai management is to maintain a capital hase which ensures the Group's continuous operation and
development and to prevent risks which could jeopardise the Group’'s equity.

The Group finances its operations with both debt and equity capital. Property development is very capital intensive.
Therefare, as a rule, related investment projecis are financed on the assumption that equity financing should be at least
30 % of the cost of the project.

I designing the optimal financing structure and identifying and measuring risks, the Group monitors the proportion of
equity in the consolidated balance sheet. At 31.12.2009, equity accounted for 27.8 % (2008: 36 %) of the balance sheet
total.

Management makes a proposal for the distribution of dividends based on the Group’s resulis of operation and investment
plan, and developments in the economic environments of the markets in which the Group operates. In recent years, the
Group was announcing dividends in the amount of up to 15 % of the consolidated net profit, and intends to continue the
distribution of dividends pro rata to its net profit. Nevertheless the Group cannot warrant that dividend payments wilt be
continuing at the same rate in the future, because the exact sum of dividends depends on the resuits of the latest financial
year of the Group and the estimated liquidity position in the medium run.

in January 2009, 41,500 thousand kroons (2,652 thousand euros) from the loan principais related fo the Tivoli and Laeva
projects were paid back to SEB bank on an extraordinary basis, by releasing the Group from the obligation to keep liquid
assets in an amount of 150,000 thousand kroons (9,587 thousand euros) in the SEB bank. On an extracrdinary basis,
smaller loans and principal amounts have been paid back, too. In order to improve fiquidity, holdings in three joint veniures
were sold, as a resuit of which the Group eamed 55,000 thousand kroons (3,515 thousand euros) by the end of the year.
We have extended and restructured a half of our commercial papers in the amount of 26,208 thousand kroons (1,675
thousand euros), whereof approx. 7,338 thousand kroons (469 thousand euros} have been paid as a result of the sales of
security assets.

On a current basis, loans have been redeemed in the Kodukolde” and Merivélja 2 projects in Tallinn and the ,BiSumuiza-
1" in Riga as well as in projects creating cash flow. Most of the liabilities of the Group were in euros.

34 Cash and cash equivaifents

Cash comprises cash on hand, bank cheques and demand deposits. in accordance with 1AS 7 "Cash Fiow Statements”,
cash and cash equivalents also include term deposits with a maturity of less than three months.

EEK EUR
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
In thousands
S der,nand deposﬁs T N L. 12808 e e p 313 . oo 3%1 .
Termdeposstsi S ob a0 — P 2,61 aras . 576
Total cash and cash iacit.xi\rahalntsw 71382 o 172 574 4 563 o 11 UZé

'As of 31.12.2000, the time deposits consist of deposits with a length of up o 3 months in the amount of 41,157 thousand
kroons (2,630 thousand euros), at the end of 2008 respectively 92,763 thousand kroons (5,929 thousand euros), and
overnight deposits in the amount of 17,329 thousand kroons {1,108 thousand eurcs), at the end of 2008 respectively
30,498 thousand kroons {1,949 thousand euros).

The interest rates of time deposits were in 2009 beiween 1.3 % and 11 % (2008: 1.8 % to 7.85 %) per year.
The overnight deposits interest rates of demand deposits were 0.25 % to 5.7 % (2008: 0.25 % to 0.5 %) per year.

Although the consolidated cash and cash equivalents balance of the Group at the end of 2008 is 71,392 thousand kroons
(4,563 thousand euros), 33,877 thousand kroons (2,165 thousand auros) of it are under the direct control of the company,
while the rest is on the accounts of joint companies or project companies where payments o other group companies or
parent company require an approval by the partner or the bank. In 2008, the cash and cash equivalent balance was
172,574 thousand kroons {11,029 thousand euros), whereof 117,862 thousand kroons (7,533 thousand euros) were under
the company’s own control,
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35 Transactions with related parities

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements related parties comprise:

- jointly controlled entities

- associated companies

- companies and other persons having control, joint control or significant influence over the Group or Group eniiies {this
includes venture partners and shareholders of the Parent);

- key members of the Group’s management {this includes members of the Parent's supervisory board and members of the
management boards of the Group’'s subsidiaries and jointly controlied entities);

- other related parties (this includes companies related o members of the Parent's supervisory board),

Transactions and balances with related parties have been presented as foliows:

EEK EUR
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
2008 or 2008 or 2008 or 2008 or
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

In {housands

_Transactions with joint companies’

Sales revenue e e 181880

Servicepurchased S o . -B2
. Shori-term: loan receivablss {note 17) : LS 13885
Long-term loan receivables (note 17) o o 5750
Trade receivables (note 17} [ 918 1039
) t 2205
.Transac?iél;ls wEiH.éompanies having joint control over Group
JCOMPAMNGS e
_____ Purchase of fixed assets 10180 G 651 o
. Other current receivables (note 17) 872 13348 558 853
Other current receivables (note 17) poeEdw 8 135 0
Shot-term joan liabifites (note 23) S 1538 18377 880 1047
Trade payables (note 28) 0. ... 368 a 24
Jnterestpayable (note 26) e 2447 968 156 B2,
5201 0 B2 o
Sales revenue’ - T0e 1747
Service purchased e SR 1 0
Trade receivables e ce St 262 .C‘ 17
Shortterm ioan Habilties (note 23) 0491 85 670 5
interest payable (note 25) |l ] 4 0
Transactions with other related parties
Sales revenue G 1869 o 1¢
Service purchased g .33 ) -2
Current joans and borrowings 0 ....7.?.424.= i ..730
Non-current ioans and borrowings 3 31181 | :":'b: 1991

' On 9 March 2009 Arco Ehitus, a subsidiary of Arco Vara, concluded an agreement under the law of obligations for

acquisition by instalments of the office building at Odra Street 16 / Jakobi Street 29 in Tallinn. The former owner of the
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office building is OU Euro Shipping related to Richard Tomingas, member of the supervisary board of Arce Vara. Arco
Ehitus has been the main tenant of the building for the last five years and paid rent to OU Euro Shipping. There are other
tenants in the building. The cost of the transaction was 10,150 thousand kroons (651 thousand euros), the major part of
which will be paid at the end of 2011. Pindi Kinnisvara, an independent valuator, estimated the market value of the
Eroperty on 19.02,2008 to 10,700 thousand kroons (684 thousand euros).

Other short-term receivables from entities having joint control over the Group entities as of 31.12.2009 included the
taking over of the receivables from the Group's related parties by the owner companies of Arco Vara AS in the amount of
8,728 thousand kroons (558 thousand euros). The corresponding figure for 2008 was 8,728 thousand kroons {558
thousand euro). This receivable will be cleared upon distribution of dividends with the dividend obligations of the Group.

Arco Vara AS transferred its 100 % holding in Arco Vara Puukool OU. This was aimed at removing additional activities
from the main activities of the Group. Arco Vara Puukool Ol was specialisad in the production of forest plants, The 100 %
holding of Arco Vara Puukool OU was obtained by Metsamarket OU (member of the Board: Lehar Lindre). It is a
fransaction with a relaled person for the purposes of the Tallinn Stock Exchange rules (section Raquirements for
lssuers®). Lehar Lindre was a member of the board in the 100 % subsidiary Arco Vara Puukoo! OU.

Arco Vara AS transferred fts 86.66 % holding on Arco Ukraing Valduste OU. The fransacton was made in several stages,
the first of which wasg increasing the holding in kind, ag the result of which the holding of Arco Vara AS was increased o
86.86 %. The pumpose of the transaction was to opt out of unprofitable activity, the holding up of which required additional
financing. Therefore, Arco Vara does not consider its presence in Ukraine having prospecis in the coming years. Arco
Ukraina Valduste OU was the holding company of Arco Vara real estate company in Kiev, Ukraine.

The 89,664 % hoiding in Arco Ukraina Valduste OU was obtained by Bagatini OU that was a minor sharehoider of the
transferred company and that, as the result of the transaction owns 100 % of Arco Ukraina Valduste OU. it is a transaction
with a related person for the purposes of the Tallinn Stock Exchange rules (section Requirements for tssuers®). Jury
Nikitin, the owner and manager of Bagatini OU is alsc one of the board members of Arce Ukraina Valduste OU.

Arco Vara AS 100 % subsidiary Arco Ehitus OU sold its shares of Arco Caonstruction SIA (55 % subsidiary of Arco Ehitus
OU). The majority holding in Arce Construction SIA was oblained at the beginning of 2007 with the purposs to build the
development projects of the Group and to earn profit from the quick growth on the Latvian bulldings market. Through
dividend income, the Group has gained hack its acquisition cost of the share capita!l in Arce Construction SIA. During the
naxt years, the Group investments into the Latvian development projecis would have baen up to 15,000 thousand kroons
{approx. 955 thousand  swros), which would not guaraniee a sustsinable development of Arce Construction SIA. At the
same time, Arco Construction Si4 has been successful in conciuding agreements cuiside the Group. Additionally, the
Latvian apariment market has considerably deceased compared to 2007, and does not correspond to the principles of
Arco Vars AS strategy the important part of which is reducing Group liabilities and give up activities that the Group does
not have a full control of. The holding of Arco Consiruction SIA owned by Arco Ehitus OU was obtained by co-owners of
Arco Construction SIA, whereby Viklors Savins obtained 27.3 % of the transferred hoiding. Marting Bubens obfained
23.8 % of ransferred holding, Aivars Kacars obtained 23.6 % and Janis Codars 25.5 % of the transferred holding. It was a
transaction with 2 related person for the purposes of the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Siock Exchange rules {section
SLeguirements for issuers”). The obfainers Martind Bubens and Alvars Kacars are board members of Arco Construction
SiA and Vikiors Saving is member of the supervisory board of the same company.

The remuneration of the Group’s management board for the 12 month of 2009, including associated {axes, totalled 5,282
thousand kroons (338 thousand euros). In 2008, the same indicaior amounted to 21,935 thousand kroons (1,402 thousand
euros).

In 2009, the remuneration paid to members of the supervisory board, including the associated taxes amounted to 647
thousand kroons (41 thousand euros). The corresponding figure for 2008: 590 thousand kroons {38 thousand euros).

36 Events after the reporting period

Bankruptcy petition against Arco Vara

On 21.01.2010 indrek Porila filed the bankruptcy petition to the Harju Country Court. Arco Vara AS has considered from
the beginning the bankruptcy petition by Indrek Porila as a malicious act aimed at discrediting the reputation of the
company and deeming it as extortion. Indrek Porila has previously claimed pay out from Arco Vara AS in amount of 37
943 thousand kroons {2 425 thousand euros). Arco Vara AS has cbjected the unfounded claim and contested it. Despite
the lack of proof about the claim and solvency of the company, Indrek Porile filed the bankruptey petition.

The management board of Arco Vara AS stipulated in the 2007 in Initial Public Offering prospectus (IPC prospectus) that
Indrek Porita has right for the bonus in amount of 12.5% from the equity capital of the Floriston Group, which is subject of
payment after realization of Floriston Group’s real estate projecis. In PO prospectus the partial equity capital is valued in
amount of 37 943 thousand kroons (2 425 thousand euros). Since last autumn Indrek Porila did not want to obtain 12,5%
equity of the Floriston Grupp OU as was agreed by oral agreement in 2001, instead demanded Arco Vara AS to pay a sum
mentioned prior. Arco Vara AS has not acknowiedged Indrek Parila’s such kind of claim contrary with the agreement, since
non one of the real estate projects on the basis of which the equity considered to be divided, has been unrealized.

On 16.03.2010 Harju Country Court with its judgment decided not to commence bankrupicy proceedings against Arco
Vara AS and dismissed Indrek Porila bankruptcy petition. According to the Bankrupicy Act, the court shall not initiate
proceedings if a claim is not clear and is being disputed. With its judgment the Court stroked the vagueness and
coniestability of the claim and that Arco Vara AS is not insolvent, therefore there will not exist any ground io start
bankruptcy proceedings.
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Enforcement of the detalied plan for the property at Paldiski Street 80

On 26.11.2009 By the decision Nog. 239 of the Tallinn City Council, the detailed plan for the surroundings of the property at
Paldiski Street 80 was approved. Since the decision was not disputed, it came into force at the beginning of current year.
The property at Paldiski Strest 80 belongs to Wilson Kinnisvara OU, a 100% subsidiary of Arco Investeeringute AS.

The intended purpose of the property of 8,200 m? is commercial land. The maximum gross enclosed area allowed by the
detailed plan is: on ground — 24,000 m® underground — 6,300 m? The number of planned parking places is 257.
The only difference from the current comprehensive plan is an increase in the planned height of the building. The
maximum height of the building will be 44 meters and up to 12 stories, however, this will not apply for the whoie building
volume.

Loan refinancing with Piraeus Bank Bulgaria

Arco Invest EOOD, a 100% subsidiary of Arco Vara Group, refinanced under favorable conditions for the Group the loan
taken for the development of the Madrid project in Sofia. As a result of that loan amount increased from 242 500 thousand
kroons to 258 000 thousand kroons (from 15 500 thousand euros i 16 500 thousand euros), base rate is 3-month
EURIBOR and the annual margin 6.5%.

As a result of refinancing, the repayment term was extended for 3 years from 2012 to 2015 and the loan amount increased
by 15 600 thousand kroons {1 000 thousand euros).

Agcording to the refinancing agreement between Piraeus Bank Bulgaria and Arco Group, the repayment of the principal
starts in July 2010 and ends in June 2015. Extension of the repayment term is a proof of Arco Vara credibility among
foreign major banks. Thanks to refinancing, the financial risks of the group have considerably decreased.

The Madrid’s residential and business building development project located in the city centre of Sofia and will be finished
on first half of this year.

Executing a contracting and financing contract with AS Merko Ehitus

On 01.03.2010 AS Kolde, a 100% subsidiary of the Arce Vara AS Group, and AS Merko Ehitus conciuded a contracting
contract for building and financing of the construction of 4 apartment buildings of the next stage of Arco Vara's Kodukoide
propetty development project.

The estimated comprehensive value of the contract is 80 000 thousand kroons (5 200 thousand euros), and the contract is
financed by AS Merko Ehitus through providing a credit limit of up to 40 000 thousand kroons {2 600 thousand euros). The
maturity date of the loan for financing the construction is February 2013,

The residential complex consists of 96 apartments with the closed net area of 6370 m2, and of thirty-two underground
garage units. Construction work will start within three months from the signing of the contract and will last for up to 20
months. According to the contracting contract the first two buildings wili be completed in the spring of 2011.

Selling of the shares of Arco Vara Saare Kinnistud 00

On 11.03.2010 Arco Vara AS 100-percent subsidiary Arco Investeeringute AS sold its shares of Arco Vara Saare
Kinnistute OU (50% related company of Arco Investeeringute AS) with the share capital of 200 thousand kroons (12
thousand euros). The transaction is following strategic approach {0 exit from operations and activities which are not under
full controf and management of the Company. The value of the transaction was 6 000 thousand kroons (383 thousand
euros) and the Group made loss 5 009 thousand kroons (320 thousand euros). The final value of the transaction could
eventually be 3 000 thousand kroons (192 thousand euros) smaller due to potentially possible tax claim against the sold
entity.
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Structure of Arco Vara Group

Feroe Vara Fedlminnistole O

0%

Aroo Ivest EGOD

o Faciiny ey t BCLY

fren Bulgaarta 00

Ki!?d‘(:!

g Projseis BOOD

b= Sgen hevaztovets TOW

Aren Devaloamait S¥

Limans Gstvas Narv 518

2 . Y .
53).3% Ao Ve drenduse GO } 200 M Aresdus GG

}ﬂ“% ‘aramasd Rinmsvare &G !

k] Al Sautoask SIA
AT | i AE
2 Aron hweest UBE Aron Developiruent L l
H
5‘3;\.-4 o Vara Saaes Hirmestud
1 =)
IR o vers Rite vakdused CU

az qi
A0S Hachame Of i
ARG

0%
Bifunwsting Yany 574 F—'fﬁ-l Seartheas fies SIA

FEE waldrep Investraents OU E—‘imb‘l" furcn Capival Fesl Borste BRL |

30 Prrms Blomeia TR

elee )

iitinne nrizvam O

l

|

Ares Rugal Estabe ECICT

|

Syor Raal Estate 514

Adepte B

i
Aot Vare Rinnisvarsbines AR

s—ﬁﬂ ki Saen HOE O I

G2

i 3 AHTL REAL FETAIR &

Tt & Eles QU
iy bankrugtoy)

Kol Ol

AP mowsuee Bolf &5 1

For Identification purposes only

2N ERNSTEYOUNG ™
LD 7F A -



Aron Vara A8

Al renot 2008 { Translation of the Bs

38 Financial information on the parent company

URCONSOLIDATED INCORME STATEMENT

EEK EUR
2009 2008 2009 2008
Jnthousands
Revenue from rendering of sel FAzz 474 o r1os
Cost of sales THATS e 2838 A 252
Gross profit 5848 380 946

Other income

Selting and distribulion expenses

Administrative expenses

_Cther expenses

Operating profit

“Gain / loss on shares in subsidiaries and‘j'c;imr'{ﬁ;m“

confrolied entities 9343 85

Finance income . 1 160 414 F2E5

Finance expenses -'465.7"4'59 ................................... 17323 AZ2IE L 1aer
Profit/loss beforetax L lsrrses 119 434 36910 7633
.Income tax expense . N -0

Net profit / loss -577 515 106 752 -36 910 6822
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UNCONSOUIDATED BALANCE BHEET

EEK EUR
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
in thousands e
Cash and cash equivaients d38E3 AR 26 7533
Financial investments O .40 496 o 2583
_Receivables 1061758 1099074 67 85% 70 244
Prepayments 4 130 B B
Total gurrent assets 1085 684 3287 481

Financial investments

Invesiment property

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asseis 836
Tetal non-current asseis B2e4s BT 573 Sa82 38274
TOTAL ASSETS . 1178338 1825084 7580 116642
Leans and borrowings 18870 1208
_Payables 18088 1156
Total current liabilities 36988 106 075 2 362
Locans and borrowings [V 84 o B
Total non-current ifabilities g B4 L 5
TOTAL LIABILITIES 36 959 o8 159 2362 6784
Share capital gsz842 60 B35
..... Share premium_ e 712514 o
Statutory capital reserve ; . 31483 31 48B3 2013
Retained earnings 181067 26 068 10264 1866
_Treasury shares {minus} -3882 _=3g92 -255 -256
Totalequity 1141380 1718 895 72948
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1178 339 1825 054 75 310 116 642
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UNCONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUETY

Share capifal  Share premium Statutory Treasury Retained Total
capital reserve shares earmings
(minus)
in thousands EEK S e
At 31.12.2007 R 957 842 712 514 20 084 4] -32 144 1652 286
Transfer fo capital reserve e G 11378 0 -11 37¢ 0
Dividend distribution oo ... B ] ' -37 181 <37 161
Profit for the period N o 0 0 0 ‘ 0 106 752 108 752
Treasury shares {(minus} _— 0 0 0 ... -399z 0 -3 992
At 31 December 2008 o esmmaz 712514 1463 3992 26 068 1748 885
Loss aliocation for the period . -712 514 Y 0 712 514 G
Prefit for the period ) i 0 ] 4] 0 577 818 57T 5%
At 31AZE008 . 957 847 Y 3% 483 -5 BE 81 87 T 141 380
Share capital  Share premium Statutory Treasury Retained Total
capital reserve shares earnings
{minus}
In thousands EUR —— ) .
At 31.12.2007 .....50888 48988 .. 1284 0 =2 034 165 665
Transter to capital reserve o 0 0. 727 0 727 0
Dividend distribution - 0 0 L . S e 378 2378
Profit for the period . 0 0 0 6822 6822
Treasury shares {(minus) S ' . o] -2585 . -255
_At31 December 2008 80 898 45538 2014 . -285 1666 109 858
Loss alipcation for the period 0 -45 538 G G 45 538 G
 Profit for the period . B UL UL I © -36 910 -36 910
By 3‘@21212_&_&& B0 898 ] 2011 258 10 284 T2 848
Adjusted unconsolidated equity
EEK EUR
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
In thousands P ——
The Pareni's unconsciidated equity i 72948 109838
Carrying amount of interesis in subsidiaries and jointly centrolied
entities in the Parent’ uncensolidated balance sheet O .-27s8

Carrying amount of interests in subsidiaries and jointly controlied
entities under the equity method

The Parent’s adjusted equity 384 050 708 159
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EEK EUR
2009 2008 2008 2008
ARIDOUSENGS e R
Operating profit -30°802 -33 000 -187s 2109
Adjustemans for: 13977 AT sa6
. Pepreciation and amortisation BIT e L HBT B 38
.Gain/loss on sale of investment property 44 ... B4 P 400
Change In fair value of investment property 72 416 . ) 84 .
Operating profit after adjustments =47 8§25 -25 255 <1 13% -1 614
_Change in receivables and prepayments 5435 .-979 2 -626
Change in prepayments 1R85 -2 460 Bes
MET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 250 -37 511 138 -2 397
Acquisifion of property, piant and equipment and -
intangible assets Z3e 831 .
Acquisition of subsidiaries and interests in jointly
_controlled entities “liggeg  -41964 -7 471 o -2 882
Proceeds from dispesal of subsidiaries and interests
in jointly controfied entities & 00 - e ¥dE D

Acquisition of other financial investments

Loans granted

Repayment of loans granted

Change in group account receivables

. Dividends received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

_Proceeds from loars received

Repaymant of loans

Change in overdraft

Change in group account liability

Interest paid

Repurchase of won shares

Dividends paid

Income tax paid on dividends

NET CASH FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW

Cash and cash eguivalents af beginning of period

thorease / decrease

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

243 871

e 2207 B84

__-368 147

O . B6T08
43 284 -144 839
LD 14
32 002 -18 515
4233 831 @7t .53
i -3992 O 285
L 42274 L 2702
9 -16.200 o 978
Tesae 1723538 A R 1t 027
‘82888 578193 5297 -36 952
117861 7.5%3 43 966
52 888 5267 38952
-1 080 70 _ 819,
33 893 117 861 2166 7533
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Arco Vara AS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arco Vara AS and its subsidiaries (hereafter “the
Group”y, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, the statement of
comprehensive income, changes in eguity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and cther explanatory notes. The audited financial statements, which we have identified on
the accompanying pages, are enclosed with the current report.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparaltion and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union. This
responsibility includes: designing, imolementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due Lo fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibiiity

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our-audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audif to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but nof for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Arco
Vara AS as at 31 December 2009, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention fo the Nole 292 in the financial statements. The equity of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 did not comply with the requirements of the Commercial Code. In Note 29 post
balance sheef evenis are disclosed after which the Group's equity meets the requirements of the Commercial
Code.

Amembar frm of Brnst & Young Ghalsal
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Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requiraments

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The financial information of Arco Vara AS as a parent company in Note 38 is presented because it
is required by the Estonian Accounting Law and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements
prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, Such financial
information has been subject to the auditing procedures applied iy our audit of the consciidated financial
statements and. in our opinion, is prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of the
Estonian generally accepted accounting principles and in relation to the consolidated financial staterments
taken as whole,

Talling, 29 March 2010

N\ L

lvar Kiigerhaqgi Urmo Kaltakas
Ernst & Young Baitic AS Authorised Auditor
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Loss allocation proposal

The Management Board proposes that the General Meeting of the shareholders of Arco Vara AS allocate at the
31.12.2008 year net loss for the amount 324 412 thousand kroons { 20 734 thousand euros) of the retained earnings.

Retained loss at 31.12.2009 _ ~596 263 thousand kroons (38 108 thousand euros)
Cancellation of own shares with according Note 29 -3 992 thousand kroons (225 thousand euros)
Note 29 is indicating event after reporting period where

with retained eamings in amount 905 424 thousand kroons (57 867 thousand euros).

The retained earnings at 16.03.2009 is 305 169 thousand kroons {19 504 thousand euros).

Lembit Tampere
Member of the Management Board

2010




Signatures

We hereby confirm that the information presented in the consolidated financial statements of Arco Vara AS for 2009 is true

and fair.

Richard Tomingas
Chair of the Supervisory Board

Hifllar-Pester L.uitsatu
Member of the Supervisory Board

Ragnar Meitern
Member of the Supervisory Board

Kalev Tanner
Member of the Supervisory Board

Aare Tark
Member of the Supervisory Board

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

Lembit Tampere
Member of the Management Board
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The Het of activities

EEK EUR
EMTAK Activities 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008

263305

42060 Civit engineering

41000 Construction of buildings 172 301

68101 Buying and selling own real estate 43101
Management of dwellings and S

68321  apartment houses o CE3TE0 98507

58311  Real estate agencies 4TTE2 71696
Other business support service

82981 activiies G mvio 20869 : i
Total 404 725 658 775 25 588 42 168






